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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1993. The Group is a renowned container
manufacturer in the world and having comprehensive
depot operation networks in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
four factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers, tank
containers, offshore containers, customised containers
and other specialised containers and container parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots and
logistics company, and is currently running eight container
depots at the major ports in the PRC — Dalian, Tianjin,
Qingdao, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and Xiamen. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.

Corporate Profile
A AEIT

BREBEXERARTEBRDBE - A=
FRELBMAXRZABRAF LT - KRES
tRZZMNERBRER RN PEARKM
B(hEDEEEEDERZNES R
& o

HELEXRB I E - KREREHARBEOBALR

TENBE c KRELEESNER  BELSE
KA ABEATRERME FHREAEER

M ARmAE - BB BIERM  TRER
BB R R KA R RRAE -

mmE% T A BRERAHES R A
Al - RE BRI AKLE \EREMEMES - LR
mEARE - XE-BE - LE - BR - @I
NEFIZEHED - FETNFEEFMR
—ERATE] °

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR



Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

R IRREAE R (ER)
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2022
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US$’000
FExn
Revenue EETR 775,983
Profit (loss) attributable to A BIRR R EL & ) (BE)
owners of the Company 46,340
Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents) EXRGREN(EE) (EMW) 1.92
Net asset value per share (US cents) BREESFEGEWD 25.01
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PIN/NE] Y g sy 595,826
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS 369,770
Total borrowings (Note) meEmE) -
Current ratio BN L & 4.30 to/ Ltt1
Gearing ratio BAREE FH X N/A
Net debt to equity ratio B FEERRES L E N/A
Interest coverage ratio MERF = 278.6
Return on equity (%) AR AW 25 2 (%) 7.8

Note: Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

PRODUCTION OUTPUT REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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Chairman’s Statement

EFERE

Mr. TEO Siong Seng TR & 4
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FTEREFETHARE

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS BB E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby AAZRREZEETS((EECREBHEE
present the operating results of Singamas Container ©®¥BRAR(ARQR]DRENB AR (A
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries [A%£E ]| THHNEE T -_—F+_-A=
(collectively, the “Group”/“we”) for the year ended 31 +—HIFFEZKEELE -

December 2022.
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Over the past financial year, the Group’s business
performance was significantly impacted by changing
market dynamics, the catalysts of which included the
Russia-Ukraine war, slowdown in the global economy
resulting from weak consumer sentiment, decline in global
trade volume and the overproduction of containers by
the industry in 2021. With the rise in empty container
inventories, there was a decline in demand for new dry
freight containers and drop in their average selling price
(“ASP”).

In response to the challenging conditions, we decided
to intermittently close the Group’s dry freight container
production facilities from the fourth quarter of 2022 so
as to reduce operating costs. As for our specialised
container operation, we expanded our Shanghai operation
in the second half of last year to better address demand,
particularly for energy storage and equipment containers.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
total consolidated revenue declined by 33% to
US$775,983,000 (2021: US$1,151,764,000).
Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to US$46,340,000 (2021: US$186,802,000,
including a one-time gain of US$27,001,000 from the
derecognition of financial assets). Erosion in gross profit
margin driven by the drop in ASP of dry freight containers,
lower production volume and higher overhead costs per
unit. Basic earnings per share was US1.92 cents (2021:
US7.73 cents). The Group remains in solid financial
position, with cash and deposits with banks amounting
to US$369,770,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
US$438,171,000).

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacturing

As at 31 December 2022, the manufacturing segment
recorded revenue of US$748,375,000 (2021:
US$1,117,195,000), which accounted for 96% (2021:
97%) of the Group’s total revenue. Segment profit before
taxation and non-controlling interests amounted to
US$84,272,000 (2021:US$273,220,000).

The manufacturing operation achieved a total sales
volume of approximately 242,000 twenty-foot equivalent
units (“TEUS”) (2021: approximately 347,000 TEUs) of dry
freight and ISO specialised containers during the review
year. The ASP of 20’ dry freight container for the year
2022 fell to US$2,836 (2021: US$3,521). The depressed
ASP was due in part to the drop in steel cost resulting
from a slowdown in the Mainland China property sector.

For the year, the manufacturing operation experienced
a decline in production volume of approximately 36%.
Though dry freight containers accounted for over 80% of
segment revenue versus less than 20% for specialised
containers, we leveraged the Group’s flexible production
to increase output of customised and specialised
containers as their demand rose appreciably in the
second half year. Such demand was driven both locally
and abroad, and particularly by renewable energy storage
and equipment containers. We believe that renewable
energy storage containers possesses tremendous
potential given the current environmental protection and
renewable energy trends. Other customised containers
that the Group views favourably include 5G equipment
and digital-data-related containers and modular integrated
construction (“MIC”) containers.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Both the Group’s Huizhou factory and Shanghai factory
recently earned the title of “2022 ‘Specialised and New’
SMEs” and Huizhou factory earned the title of “Innovative
SMEs in Guangdong Province” as well, it shows the
Group’s remarkable ability in product innovation and
technical skills. Going forward, we will continue to nurture
research and development that is focused on engineering
and product development.

Logistics Services

The logistics services operation performed in a stable
manner during the review year, generating revenue of
US$27,608,000 (2021: US$34,569,000), with segment
profit before taxation and non-controlling interests of
US$5,653,000 (2021: US$5,851,000). As at 31 December
2022, the operation handled approximately 703,000 TEUs
(2021: 538,000 TEUs) of containers and repaired 119,000
TEUs (2021: 117,000 TEUs). Average daily container
storage reached 21,000 TEUs (2021: 18,000 TEUs). As
port congestion has eased, a large number of containers
have returned to Mainland China, thus boosting revenue
from storage and container handling. The decline in
segment profit for the review year was mainly due to a gain
on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately US$412,000
recognised in 2021 was not repeated in 2022.

As for our investment in Xiamen Logistics, it contributed
dividend income of US$1,926,000 (2021: US$1,864,000)
to the Group during the review year. We will continue
to review its operations in a timely fashion, and when
necessary, streamline business to enhance efficiency and
bolster its business portfolio, thus ensuring that Xiamen
Logistics performs in a steady manner.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

PROSPECTS

In the coming year, global growth is expected to further
weaken, slowing from 3.2% in 2022 to 2.7% in 2023,
according to the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) . This
would be the weakest growth profile since 2001, except
for the global financial crisis and the acute phase of the
COVID-19 pandemic.” With respect to Mainland China,
the IMF projects real GDP to gradually recover, rising from
3.2% in 2022 to 4.4% in 2023. And with the country
reopening its borders, household consumption is
expected to grow by approximately 9% in 20232,

The unpredictable conditions over the past two years
have nevertheless helped shipping companies improve
their financial performance significantly, and the demand
for containers is anticipated to improve during the second
half of 2023 as new cargo vessels are launched and
replacement containers are sought. Given the tremendous
potential that the energy storage and equipment
containers hold, the Group will dedicate more resources to
capitalise on relevant opportunities and will remain vigilant
against cost pressures in face of steel price fluctuation
brought by the ups and downs of China’s property
sector and automobile manufacturing sector. Ahead of
this possibility, we will continue to invest in automation
to improve efficiency and ensure that the Group remains
highly agile.
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Although we expect challenges to remain in the upcoming
financial year, we also believe that our focus on non-
shipping related containers will allow the Group to be
more resilient and less vulnerable to volatility in global
trade. Moreover, with our healthy financial position, we
will be able to actively seek new M&A opportunities which
facilitating new synergies to be generated in the long term.

APPRECIATION

| would like to extend my gratitude to our business
partners, customers and stakeholders for their unwavering
support over the past year. | wish to also thank every
member of the Singamas family for their diligence,
dedication and perseverance, which has allowed the
Group to overcome highly challenging conditions. | am
confident that the Group will continue to make forward
transformation in becoming a leading equipment provider
in green energy industry.

TEO Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2023
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Frequently Asked Questions
—RiEMA

1. As COVID-19 subsides and Mainland China market
gradually opening up, what is the Group’s view on
the industry and opportunities ahead?

- Although the market anticipates global
growth to weaken in 2023, it is believed
with Mainland China gradually opening up
and global shipping costs returning to pre-
pandemic levels, global trade volume will be
positively affected as the country’s household
consumption and GDP are expected to
experience healthy growth in 2023.

- Overproduction of dry freight containers
by the industry in 2021 is still impacting
container demand in first half 2023, yet
the situation is expected to improve in the
second half. New cargo vessels launch
will generate organic growth in container
demand, while hopefully increased global
trade volume will also encourage overall
demand of dry freight containers.

- Singamas will also continue dedicating
resources to developing non-shipping related
containers with specific focus on renewable
energy storage and equipment containers.
We believe such strategic focus will allow
the Group to tap the tremendous potential
of the green energy market as the world
becomes more and more conscious about
environment conservation.
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How does the Group’s latest sales mix look like
and what’s your target split moving forward? What
will be the key factors impacting your performance
moving forward?

i The Group’s sales mix in 2022 was
approximately 81.5% dry freight containers
and 18.5% specialised containers in terms
of revenue generated from manufacturing
segment.

- With increased usage of specialised
containers in various industries, and the
Group’s flexible production facilities to
increase output of specialised containers as
needed, we expect the sales proportion of
specialised container to increase.

- Global container demand, trade volume and
vessels delivery will still affect overall results
yet impact will be smaller moving forward as
the Group diversifies income sources through
investments in research and development
(“R&D”) of new specialised containers to
seize relevant opportunities.

- The demand of specialised containers is
less volatile, and in general the profit margin
for specialised containers is better than
traditional dry freight containers. We target to
have an optimal revenue split of 50:50 of dry
freight containers and specialised containers
in 3 to 5 years.
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Frequently Asked Questions

—REERE

3. Renewable energy segment looks like having
good potential moving forward. What is Singamas’
view towards market demand for specialised and
customised containers in 2023 and beyond?

Over the years, Singamas has been able to
attract satisfactory orders from specialised
and customised container customers by
providing tailor-made container solutions to
suit customers’ needs.

In recent years, we saw increasing demand
from both local and overseas customers for
renewable energy storage and equipment
containers. We believe renewable energy
storage containers possess tremendous
potential given the current environmental
conservation trends. Other customised
containers with good potential include
5G equipment and digital-data related
containers, and modular integrated
construction (“MIC”) containers.

Other customised containers produced
by the Group include housing, power
generation, electrical equipment, sewage
treatment and medical applications etc. It is
believed with the rapid growth in renewable
and “green” energy to meet with global
trends of carbon neutral, the rise of big data
industry, and environment concerns are all
favourable factors for the growth in demand
for specialised and customised containers in
2023 and beyond.
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How has average selling price of the Group’s
containers been affected by the overproduction
situation in the market lately? What do gross
margins of the various types of containers look like?

- ASP of 20’ dry freight containers fell sharply
in 2H2022, due in part to drop in steel cost
resulting from slowdown in the Mainland
China property sector. Overall weak container
demand resulting from slowdown in global
economy, decline in global trade volume and
overproduction of containers by the industry
in 2021 also contributed to the fall.

- Prices of ISO specialised containers, like
flatrack, open top and bulk containers in
general decreased in line with dry freight
containers. For customised containers, prices
are more stable as there is no standard
specification for each batch of orders.
Price setting for each order is based on the
complexity of the specification along with the
labour hours and material cost required for
the production.

- With specialised and customised containers
taking up a more substantial portion of the
Group’s sales moving forward, Singamas will
be less impacted by demand and competition
of dry freight containers. As demand and
selling price of customised containers are
expected to be relatively stable, the increase
in its weighting will enhance the gross margin
of the Group going forward.
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Frequently Asked Questions

—REERE

5. What does the order book look like in 2023 for
dry freight containers and specialised containers
respectively?

Demand for dry freight containers is still
weak for first half 2023, as impact of
overproduction in 2021 and low consumption
demand globally are still lingering. We
currently only have approximately one month
of orders on hand.

For customised container production, it
is normally on project basis from product
design, technical drawings, and production
until delivery, the whole process may last
from few weeks to few months. We are
continuously receiving orders for customised
containers without seasonal trends.

6. Does the Group have plans to dispose of any more
of its current operation to further consolidate its
business? How can the Group further streamline its
overall operation and increase efficiency?

We review our business model regularly
to adjust business strategies suiting latest
market developments. The New Singamas is
still on its way to expanding its product range
and clientele, we have no plans to make
further disposals at the moment.

It is also worth noting that the Group’s
flexible operating mode has enabled it to
agilely satisfy rising orders for specialised and
customised containers during the year, when
dry freight container demand was relatively
weak. This demonstrates the management’s
foresight in planning well-ahead to prepare
for changes in the operating environment.
We believe our long-term strategy will enable
us to be more resilient and less vulnerable to
market volatilities in future.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Can you share a bit more about the latest R&D
efforts of the Group? How do you expect your R&D
function to support the Group’s long term growth?

- Seeing the success achieved from the
introduction of our various specialised and
customised containers, we have dedicated
more resources in our R&D capabilities,
as well as to developing more innovative
specialised containers that cater for the
needs of our customers.

- Supported by the technical and marketing
team, our engineers work with customers
directly on product design, technical
drawings, and producing prototype for
meeting customers’ specific needs.

- On top of our strong team in Shanghai
Baoshan, the Group set up another R&D
Centre in Huizhou. Besides, all of our
factories have local R&D teams to serve local
needs. With the growth of our specialised
container business, the number of our
R&D staff has been growing in line with our
business needs. We believe high product
quality together with best customer service
shall win us ongoing orders and strengthen
our reputation.

- During the year, both our Huizhou factory
and Shanghai factory earned the title of
“2022 'Specialised and New’ SMEs” and
Huizhou factory earned the title of “Innovative
SMEs in Guangdong Province” as well,
demonstrating the Group’s remarkable ability
in product innovation and technical skills.
Going forward, we will continue to invest
in R&D that is focused on engineering and
product development.
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Frequently Asked Questions
—RIEM

8. Apart from manufacturing and logistics services
business, does the New Singamas have any new
business or investment plans coming up?

- The New Singamas always strives to look for
new opportunities which bring stable cash
inflows and good margins. With our current
healthy financial position, we are actively
seeking new opportunities that can bring
synergies in the long run.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAEG

The directors of the Company (“Director”) at the date of

this annual report are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Mr. Teo Siong Seng "°

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie "

Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca *

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng #
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David #o4

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan #o4

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*#

#  Audit Committee Member

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director and
Chief Operating Officer
Executive Director,
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary
Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive
Director
Independent Non-executive
Director
Independent Non-executive
Director
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEREEEAESHN

Brief biographical details of the Directors at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B. Sc. (Naval Architect), aged
68, was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 February 1997 and was appointed as Chairman of
the Company on 27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Teo started his
shipping career with Pacific International Lines (Private)
Limited (“PIL”) Group in Singapore since 1979. PIL is the
controlling shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Teo was appointed as the managing director of PIL
in October 1992 and appointed as executive chairman of
PIL in April 2018. PIL activities include shipowning, liner
shipping, ship agencies, freight forwarding, container
manufacturing, container depot/terminal operation,
warehousing and logistics park. Mr. Teo is currently an
independent non-executive director of COSCO SHIPPING
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He retired as independent non-executive director of
COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, with effect from 8
July 2022. Mr. Teo is also currently a non-executive and
non-independent director of Keppel Corporation Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Wilmar
International Limited, both companies are listed on the
main board of Singapore Exchange. He is the Immediate
Past Chairman of Singapore Business Federation and the
Honorary President of Singapore Chinese Chamber of
Commerce & Industry. Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of
The United Republic of Tanzania in Singapore.
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Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie, aged 51, was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company on 1 January
2023. She joined the Group on 1 October 2021 as Chief
Operating Officer Designate and was appointed as Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on 1 January 2022.
She also serves as director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. Ms. Siu graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor’'s Degree of
Business Studies (Majors in Marketing) and obtained an
MBA from IMD Lausanne in Switzerland. She has over
26 years of extensive experience in container shipping,
manufacturing, leasing and trading plus global logistics.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 54, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company on 2 July 2015. She was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company on 2 February 2013 and 10 September
2013 respectively. She is also the director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chung joined the
Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than 31 years of
combined experience in public accountancy, sourcing and
manufacturing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, DBA, MBA (Distinction), M.Acc,
B.Acc (Hons), FCA (Singapore), aged 49, was appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 June
2019. He graduated with B.Acc (Hons) (second upper
honours) and master’s degree in accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore. He holds
MBA with Distinction from the University of Leicester, the
United Kingdom, and Doctor of Business Administration
from The University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Kwa has
been the Chief Financial Officer of PIL since 1 October
2017. Prior to joining PIL in 2015 as General Manager
(Finance), he had held a number of senior positions in
finance and accounting in manufacturing and logistics
businesses. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant of the
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEREEEAESHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 74, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
had assumed the position of independent non-executive
director of Grandland Shipping Limited from 1 January
2016 to 30 June 2022. Mr. Cheng has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December 2016.
He has also been appointed as Independent Director of
Sincere Navigation Corporation, a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect from 28 June 2019.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in
Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014.
He has also retired from the Senior Advisor to Credit
Agricole CIB with effect from 30 June 2016 and retired as
a director and honorary chairman of Credit Agricole Asia
Shipfinance Limited with effect from 10 July 2020. Mr.
Cheng has also been appointed by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for a two years
term as Member of the Maritime and Port Board (“MPB”)
and Chairman of the Promotion and External Relations
Committee under the MPB with effect from 1 April 2016
to 31 March 2018. He was also the Honorary Treasurer of
the Hong Kong Maritime Museum up to November 2022.
In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the Distinction
of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by the French
Government.
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Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, aged 64, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. He had been appointed as independent
non-executive director of China United Venture Investment
Limited (formerly known as Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited), a company listed on the growth enterprise
market of the Stock Exchange, from 13 December
2001 to 1 March 2020. He had also been appointed as
independent non-executive director of GBA Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, from 14 August 2002 to 10 June 2022. Mr.
Lau is currently an independent non-executive director
of CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, MBA, aged 64, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 October 2019. Mr. Ho graduated from McGill
University, Montreal, Canada in 1984. Mr. Ho is currently
an independent director and has been appointed on 2
December 2021 as a Non-Executive Chairman of China
Shenshan Orchard Holdings Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the main board of Singapore Exchange. He is also
currently an independent director of NorthCape AS, a
Norwegian financial advisory company. He possesses
extensive experience in assets management and banking
industry.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association. For the particulars
of the Directors proposed to be re-elected/elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, please refer to the
circular accompanied with this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie  Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Chung Pui King, Chief Financial Officer and
Rebecca Company Secretary

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27
May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie, was appointed as Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on 1 January 2022.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.
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Corporate Governcmce Report

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for the deviation disclosed
below:

Code Provision C.2.1

Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
not separated. The Board considers that this structure
has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership
which is conducive to making and implementing decisions
efficiently and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate
that the Company is not, or, was not during the year
in compliance with the code provisions of the Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance practices
are essential for the Company to enhance its accountability
and transparency so as to achieve a balance of the
interests of shareholders, customers, employees and
investment partners of the Company in all material respects.
Accordingly, the Company aims at maintaining high
standards of corporate governance practices.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

Key corporate governance principles and corporate

ARAZEBEEERRIMEE

il
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governance practices of the Company are summarised — #atzn T -
below:

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (‘E)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX #E(E) PEERER
A CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY ANG GOVERNANCE

EBRH - BRRER

A Corporate strategy, business model and culture
PR - EBHRA R

Corporate Governance Principle

EERRA

directing and supervising the Company's affairs.
BEFgRAEASRERATNEME  TEEAER

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for

REREBERAER -

A1.1 |The board should establish the C .
company’s purpose, values and
strategy, and satisfy itself that these
and the company’s culture are aligned.
All directors must act with integrity,
lead by example, and promote the
desired culture. Such culture should
instil and continually reinforce across
the organisation values of acting
lawfully, ethically and responsibly.
EFRHERFTMNERN  BEKR J
B WEREQ BN —8 - FTE
BRTEAFEDM - LEER - &
NHEBRBEXL - ZULERPE -
TR - WAET MR [TEES AR
BEREEINES -

Company’s purpose:

ARFR B

The Company is committed to create a chain of energy-saving,
environmentally friendly and sustainable container industry, providing
fast and convenient container logistics service solution, integrating
the world and giving back to the society.
RRBBRARITIEMEIRR - AR ERMERRE 18
iR EROEEEYRRB IR REMNE  OEte -

Company’s values and strategy:

RARIEEERRE

“Top quality”, “safe production”, “customer orientation”, “
conservation”, “corporate harmony” and “sustainability”
(MEE—] - [R24E] [FFPEL] [HaRR] - [(EME]
AEESE &4

energy

— The Group devotes itself to producing and providing high quality
and safe products for customer. The Group actively integrates
environmental responsibility into daily operation activities by
upgrading the equipment to automated machinery in order
to minimise the impact on the surrounding environment and
achieve safe production.
REERNAEFPHEREHRHELERZ2NER - FEEE
BRI RERMAINCERBLLITRT - EEEAREBM
%Eéf)g‘l}ﬁ%m AR BRBRRERNTERERLY Y4

SEH o

— The Group respects the labour rights and basic rights and
interests of all employees. It implements a fair and equitable
employment mechanism. Meanwhile, it keeps improving the
human resources system and occupational health and safety
system to nurture talents of core competitiveness and protect
the physical and mental health of all employees.
AEEESMBEETINS TRMEERERS  BIAFY A
EREERS : ARTEH TS ANEREAMBEERELR
2RE UBBEEROBFNINEBEAL LREMEE
TIHFORE -

— To establish a “green factory” is an important part of the
Company’s commitment to sustainable development and a
necessary way to fulfil corporate social responsibility.
AEREITHMIEARNRERAHFEERAGNEEZ R 7F
RETCETSEANLERE -
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Corporate culture:
EXL

The Board is committed to developing a positive and progressive
culture that is built on the Group’s purpose, values and strategy.
The Board continues to cultivate the culture that it needs to create
the desired future.
BEEEHNUAEE 2 RE  BEBEREBEAAX  BIZTFHE - [
ATHE B L - %$§T—r%\L_L7%EUL1§*Eﬂiﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁ’ﬂﬁﬂs°

The Group adheres the corporate culture of “practice with integrity”.
It upholds the highest ethical standards of business integrity and
foster a culture of compliance throughout the Group to ensure
legitimate operation. It reinforces the safety culture to ensure
occupational health and product safety of the Group.
REBFRAGREBEINGEE Bz%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ% HaBE
RE jﬂi$¢@WE&EA%EBZTKLME{%A%EW cEEEET
2t BMRBERRNERLZ S

The Group adheres to the corporate culture of “high efficiency and

innovation”, strengthening the product research and development

and integrating ideas for sustainable development.

RE @%%F%%{EU%M WXL - R B FMEMAE - BA
AEERRIES -

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “harmony and
sustainability”. It respects the labour rights and human rights of all
employees and promotes an inclusive culture within the Group. In
order to achieve sustainable development, the Group adheres to
the development concept of staying green, to create a healthy and
green Communlty and to protect the environment.
REBREIMEKEINEEXE  BEMGEINSTENR
AR WIELE Wa%ﬁ BAXE . ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ—iﬁmé‘é@ REEZE
SHEERRNBRES  TERRZEHE - RERK -

The Group’s corporate culture of “practice with integrity”, “high
efficiency and innovation” and “harmony and sustainability” is
communicated to employees from time to time through regular
journals, e-magazines and billboard display to let them know about

the culture.
AEEHEBE] - [RBAF] - [M#EKEINDEUE - BBTE
HEa c EFHERAERER  TRABIEE  FEIRHE

REE -

A1.2

The directors should include a
discussion and analysis of the group’s
performance in the annual report, an
explanation of the basis on which the
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.
EEREFHRATR RO EERSR
B RMANAHREEFEIREEE
WEREBRX)RERARMLAE
IRE)ER M

The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion

and analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on

pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.

§$AEEA¢t¢$&%8E F1BAZ[EFHRE IR TR TR
AR B R R EE LAUH

TEICEFR o BWE

BEERERAR
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A2 Co‘rporate Governance Functions
EERBRE

Corporate Governance Principle
REEBRE

or committees.

The board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties. It may delegate the responsibility to a committee

EXgRERTEEERBE  LAHEAERT —EAxXZELZES -

A.2.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or C .
a committee or committees performing
this function) should include:
BEXQEETIHBRENE B SR RE
HEEBRE

— develop and review the company’s
policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;
fil7E Rig s R Ale B E B RIR
RER THMEFFREES

— review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and
senior management;

BT REREERAREEBAS
R RS EEEERE

- review and monitor the
company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

B RERAAEETEAERE
ERTETEOBRLER

— develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and
HE BAREREERESRH
BTEARERFM@E) : &

— review the company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

B ARIEFREERTANG
MBREREEARENNRKE -

No corporate governance committee has been established. The
Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with
the following duties:

PN/

S RV SN TS =N
NEIWEERIBEERLZRE

rEERBEOESTEAR

WA TIBE :

@)

to establish the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and
satisfy itself that these and the Company’s culture are aligned;
EERRHTEARFTNERN - BENKRE H THRERRKRQF]
B XA —5

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
HIET B AR RN EEABRRER - WREES

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors;
B REREFNIFII RSB EERR

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

BN RERARAEETEEREERETANEERE
)

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors;

@1&@ﬁ&%%@%%ﬁ%&%%%&??%&éﬁ?%
n 6

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
RAARAETFTFANERRREEERREPIELOHRK
BiR

such other corporate governance duties and functions set out
in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board
is responsible.
ﬁ@ﬁ?@m%%@%%%%%ﬁ@@%%ﬁ“%&%%%@
TEHER]) ©
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B. BOARD COMPOSITION AND NOMINATION
ERGAER KRR

B.1 Board composition, succession and evaluation
EEGHENX - EERITZ
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business and should ensure that the directors devote sufficient time and make contributions to the Company
that are commensurate with their role and board responsibilities. It should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised.
EEGRBBEAFTEBEMEABESIF IS CREEENGHEASVERRESESHIRAACREZTGRER QT
TARHKELIELER - EFETHTESHEIFNTESNESEZRFAME - LUBEMBEROOIEL B HIE -

B.1.1 | Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors
should be identified in all corporate including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors,
communications that disclose the the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
names of directors. Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications.
NEAMEHAERH LN AFAA EMBRABAPEREETRA B (BIEEE  NITEF - 3
B EREABEIERITES SN - HITESKBUFATESNMR) BEESSAK -

e The Board currently consists of a total of seven Directors,
comprising three executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors. More than one-
third of the Board are independent non-executive Directors of which
more than one have appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Details of the
composition of the Board are set out on page 21.
EEgRtUESER  BRE=UHTES  —LFNTESER
SRBUFRTES - FR=ZHD 2 —EFENERBUIIFNTE
2 EPEBUBUVHFNTEFABEEEEER  HEABE
ENEHIEBMBERER - EFGEAMGFIEIIENE21E -

e The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying
their roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors.

RABEECERERABRAE FRESINEZTSHNES
B WHREAEFBEE  AREHERTEIFNTES -

e The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 21 to 26.

EREABRIIENE21EEE26E °
B.1.2 | The company should maintain on its C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of

website and on the Stock Exchange
website an updated list of its directors
identifying their role and function and
whether they are independent non-
executive directors.

DA R B R A ERRTF
RRMEFNERGKERE - 17|
PAEHACNBE  URTHERESE
SFEHMITES -

the Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles
and functions, and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors.

BN ESRECEFHRNARRRBEZAAM - WIREARR
et RAINMERESSELIFNTES -

The Company has also posted on its website and the website of
Stock Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees
to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those
independent non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant
Board Committees.
RARMREBUE KRBT BLEHESTEE T EQRESR
B ERRRTREIRTESFLIARETEETZESK
BTz AR -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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B.1.3 |The board should review the C e The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1

implementation and effectiveness of the
Company’s policy on board diversity
on an annual basis.
EEQREFRIATINEETESZ T
{EBUR B B J B R -

September 2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, details of which are summarised
as follows:

EEER-_T —FNAABRMERERB SRR - #
NNEEFSRESKESZTTEMERIM A - AFBEHRmT

(@) In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be duly considered in the
selection of candidates.

LﬁﬁAh&W§$ﬁm@m A ZBRM HEIES
B BEETERMER - Fik s XMERHBEER  FEK
B - RAE - AEBARTER o

(b) All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria.
FIBEEENZEHARAES BRE - WATBIREEBIR
BA

(c) The Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board appointment.
EFeReRENERKBEEEF A ABROKEELIRES
R BRI o

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee will review it annually or as appropriate and
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
REZESHRBFIERBIEZETENE L TLBER MR M
AR ZMER]  MRETZAEN  YEBRESF R RILE
EIZEERT -

During 2022, the Board considered and resolved the appointment
of a female candidate as a new board member. At the date of this
annual report, there are two female Directors on the Board, bringing
the female representation to about 29% of the Board. The Board
will take opportunities to increase the proportion of female member
over time when selecting suitable candidate as board member.
RZZBZ__FHHE EFEFRWREEH M REARN
MESEXE - RKAFHAY EXETEMBALEES - X
MEZEFSPHLOIERL20% - EF SR SEETERERBE
EEFAEZRORGES RS LR BRLLAI

As at 31 December 2022, the male and female ratio for the
workforce and senior management of the Group was 87.8%/12.2%
and 50%/50% respectively. The company hires workforce based on
business needs and strategy and the nature of work, expertise and
experience required for the position.

RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H A 5EENE2EEIRSEETEA
B - %’I'i-ta’%uﬁ'l&ﬂ@tuﬂﬁﬂui%srea%ﬂ2.2%&50%/50% J/NC]
BIEXB S RS A R BRI M TAEIEE « AT A3 05 I i
BREAY Eﬁ
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B.1.4 |The Company should establish C e The Company had established channels through formal and
mechanism(s) to ensure independent informal means whereby Independent Non-executive Directors can
views and input are available to the express their views, these include but not limited to private meeting
board and disclose such mechanism(s) session with the Chairman and interaction with senior management
in its Corporate Governance Report. and other Board Members including the Chairman outside the
The board should review the boardroom
implementation and effectiveness of ARARBEHFSY T ARIMERFIEER GRS - @Eﬁi#a&ﬂﬁ%%
such mechanism(s) on an annual basis. ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁ’], H o BUERBEIERTRREEIENLARE
NAEHIEHSE - ARRESG A& URESEEBAENEMEETEXNE (BREBESHINE
ﬁ-ﬁia’ﬁéﬁ%ﬂ R WHEH(REE B
SAME)PIRBEZ S c EEREEF
RET M ERE R B e When assessing suitability of the candidates for election as
Independent Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee will
review their profiles, having regard to the Board Diversity Policy and
the list of nomination criteria set out in the Nomination Policy. Those
policies are subject to review annually to ensure their effectiveness
and independent views and inputs are provided to the Board.
BB ENITERHREANCBEILR - REZEGHEET
BEEGNE L TLIE MR R BER P V4R 2 2RI © 35 LLEBUR
TEFETHRN  UBRREGUMEREZSERERBUEMNE
B.2 Appointments, re-election and removal
L - EERESR
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for
orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
ﬁ%$§fﬁ%ﬁiﬁ§fﬁt CREREZEVEABAE  WERTFTEHRFNEFEITHE - MEESHEERE TRIBETE
i@ o
B.2.1 Directors should ensure that they can C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year.

give sufficient time and attention to
the company’s affairs and should not
accept the appointment if they cannot
do so.

EEERIRA H.‘ﬁi%’]ﬂﬁ'ﬁ&# 18 A
EE/‘TE’J%&% GRAITEERZ

Please refer to C.5.1 below for the attendance reoqrds. .
FAEEELERIHEERSARE - HECRHFRTXECSA
1A o

All Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track
record, whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every
Director has given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of their extensive knowledge and experience in
their respective business undertakings to the Board for the fullest
performance of |ts functions.
PREFRHABRENTEANBNCELNEELHE - HEOF
FHEAR TE’Jfr‘Jm B BEEEDHAR TZ%?%HHL%EHT
BIRES - BYUATESMABNRERAXBHEENEZS
EHNREESR  AHESS MBI THBE

TEICEFR o BWE

BEERERAR
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B.2.2 |Every director, including those C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of
appointed for a specific term, should non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director and
be subject to retirement by rotation at the Company, the term of appointment is three years but subject
least once every three years. to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at annual general
BEREF(RREETEAHNES)E meeting (“AGM”) under the articles of association of the Company
WRRE ELE=F—K- (“Articles”).

RIERIFRTESRBLIFRTEEEBARRFRLZ REHE -
EHR=F HRBEAXFZEABSZMAR(ERMADRE -
%f%ﬁ’&ﬂw&i%iﬁ@(FH&%EEK@DJ:%EE@EWS%E

e Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every
three years but shall be eligible for re-election.

BEEEMAA REERRAFAE L ERAHE=/2—KHE
EHEGERT  EEREZAZVE=_FAREAFAS LR
E—IR - BRI FEERBERET -

e Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a

Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any such new Director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a
casual vacancy) or until the next following AGM of the Company (in
the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for
election at the same general meeting.
REBEZRME - E2gr] TR EEEFARBRRZREIER
EEGKE c MEESF2EHEARA T RARREAES (NEEM
BRRER)XERARGB TERRAFAG(WMBIGIESTENE) R
b WEBERRRA—RERE F2E -

e Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

AR ENEHMNESG 2 EN  BRESSHARBILEAARRAIE
BHRBER  THEREHR 2 ALTHERK -

e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director on its website.
REEEENATZ2NESER2IRF  EZHRAAAHE L
A o
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B.2.3 |If an independent non-executive C e As at the date of this annual report, Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and
director had served more than Cheng Fu Kwok, David have been serving as independent non-
nine years, such director’s further executive Directors of the Company for more than nine years.
appointment should be subject to a Each independent non-executive Director who was subject to
separate resolution to be approved retirement by rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the
by shareholders. The papers to Company’s AGM. Each independent non-executive Director who
shareholders accompanying that was eligible for re-election at the AGM had made a confirmation of
resolution should state why the board independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
(or nomination committee) believes BEAFRAR B RLERDHHLE —FETARRBIL
the director is still independent and FERTESDHBNF - RARRIZREBAFAE L - §EH
should be re-elected, including the MERZBIIIENTEBZHUBLRBREMT - SANBREFF
factors considered, the process and A LEEER BN TESHICIER EMMRAEIASGR
the discussion of the board (or the TERLEE S MR RERR o
nomination committee) in arriving the
determination. e Since Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Cheng Fu Kwok, David were re-
BRMIERTESEADBAF - K elected as the independent non-executive Director of the Company
DEBETRAB L REREAHK in the 2021 and 2022 AGM respectively, according to article 92 of
RERBIE - BENZARE —RBG the Articles, Mr. Lau and Mr. Cheng are not subject to retirement by
BRE S - EHPAE B @ (I8 rotation in the 2023 AGM.
ZEG)RMUABR/ZBEEFTDBEEIA B A0 81 AT 45 5 A % B0 B O A o RIS T‘—i& T_FR
TREESE mﬁl BIEMEEY ﬁﬂiﬁ BEELAR Tﬁi#%ﬁ%$ LREZMANFE2
X BEe(HEREBR) FIR 5 B AERBAERER T -ERAAFEAE LHRE
EHEERFHRAR - ﬂo
e The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information
on re-election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests
and (where appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for
re-election. If an independent non-executive Director serves more
than nine years, the information would be included in the circular
to advice shareholders the reasons why the Board believes the
relevant Director is still independent and should be re-elected.
RARIRREAFRGEAHBEEESENFMAER  BEREE
BEENMEEENFARE  #ak(WER)BLIE - 5B
IRTEEEELBNF  E—TERBEHABEA - MREIE
HEFERREFERNEB LA LT REESENRA -
B.2.4 |Where all the independent non- C e As at the date of this annual report, Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and

executive directors of the Company
have served more than nine years on
the board, the Company should:
ERRMESEANMBENIENITE
SHEEBBNAF - RAE

(@) disclose the length of tenure of
each existing independent non-
executive director on a named
basis in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the
annual general meeting; and
TE A% 3R JE) 8 K & i 45 T BE B 69 B
A% 3R 38 £K K B8 5 B Bl R R AR R
BREEBIENTESTNULS
RAEH &

(o) appoint a new independent non-
executive director on the board
at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
ETROBRREFAEG R E—
EHEVBIEMITESR -

Cheng Fu Kwok, David have been serving as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company for more than nine years
and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong has been serving as independent non-
executive Director of the Company for not more than 4 years.
BEAFRAD - B0 GEE REWHE L ERERNRRELIEHR
7%§tﬂh¢ il E R EEEARB B LIERNITEE I
BN -

TEICEFR o BWE

BEERERAR
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B.3 Nomination Committee

REEZES

Corporate Governance Principle
REEBRE

In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under
Sections B.1 and B.2 in the Code.

RERBEEBITRAR

ARDERBLEEATHFEBINB2EAMNRA -

B.3.1-
B.3.3

The nomination committee should
be established with specific written
terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.
NAEEBEARRECEEGAE
@?‘%ﬁ%%ﬁ BB AR A
=T o

It should perform the following
duties:

REZEQEETATEE

(@) review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the
board to complement the
company’s corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRINEFTGNER
AB AKX (BIEREE - AH
RS mE) - W ER SR
ARTIRBMBHEEGIEL
MWEBRNER

(o) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;
MeAEaHEAKAIERES
AT - WHEREEEALT
Eg%%ﬁzmm%%@%ﬁ

C

The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
2012 for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing
the nomination of Directors, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director and making recommendations
to the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).
RARRER-ZE-——F=ZA_+tHERUREBEEGHEUREE
BENBEFAE BIRRELNEF SIRSLBUIFNTES
WBYMELRERAZERNESESIRLES - FHREZESRE
& B A 5E15 55081 B8 2 AT Uk (http://www.hkexnews.hk) & A A &)
A9k (http://www.singamas.com) ©

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one
executive Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr.
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David.
REEZERRENEBRE AR TEFTHREF IR RINBAE
(R EMBBILIEATE S-S G E R4 -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREFR REZEGIFGNEETEREBERANES -

In 2022, the Nomination Committee met twice and attendance of
individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is
summarized below:

RZBZZF REAZBESEMN - EEAKENLREXEG
WA -

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE

Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) 3R (/&) 2/2

Lau Ho Kit, Ivan EIRIES 2/2

Cheng Fu Kwok, David B 5 [ 2/2

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to
the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board for
information.

REAZEQHEHEARERUNBITERE - REEEQANE
EZERENEERAHARRESSMEM -
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B.3.1- (c) assess the independence of e The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
B.3.3 independent non-executive Committee during the year under review:
(cont’d) directors; and FEEFA  REZESNTERMNT

(%)

B ERITEENEL
MR

(d) make recommendations to the
board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors
and succession planning
for directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief
executive.
HMEELZERENEZAEUARE
F(LHEREFERITHRAH)#E
FrEMEESREEE -

— The nomination committee
should make available its terms of
reference explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the
Stock Exchange website and the
company’s website.
REZESEREBRMBLEA
AL FARAEBESRE - B
%ﬁ@u&%¥@%ﬁ%ﬁ%%

— The company should provide
the nomination committee
sufficient resources to perform
its duties. Where necessary, the
nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice,
at the company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities.
RAEMRZZESRERZEE
BABTERBE - REZEESR
THRERNERE  ESRKET

EXER  BMADAXNM -

(@ made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assessed
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
ARRERELTESIAL  EERENEZAEZRAES
ﬁ%ﬁ@%&%ﬁﬁ%vu&ﬁ&@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%Zﬁj

(b) identified suitable individual qualified to become Board member
and make recommendation to the Board on the nominated
individual for directorships;
MEABESEERAIEEEENALT  UHEZREAA LY
FESFRNESSIREER

(c) reviewed the terms of reference of Nomination Committee;
BFREZEGHRERE

(d) reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;

RAEFRRE S TLEE

(e) reviewed the nomination policy; and
RAIRBHER - &

() reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and
assessed the balance of skills and experience of the Board
as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Company.

BRI EEENAR - BERZ T VTR EEFSRENEL
%%ﬁ%:&@%%ﬁ%%@é&ﬁﬂ%$@ﬂm%ﬁg

e The Board has also adopted a nomination policy effective from
26 March 2019 (“Nomination Policy”) setting out the criteria and
procedures when considering candidates to be appointed and re-
appointed as Directors.
BEEFGEHT-NF=ZA- T BRITDEMEBBE - 7IER
ERIFEANZERENEZERESH 2 ERRER -

Nomination criteria
REZEH

All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based
on the following criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

BESENMZERBENZTRUTEYFGHEREARSAE

(@) Integrity

Bt

(b) Independent mindedness
BIMER

(c) Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs
of the Company and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors
BEZEANBLFEARARKRE  TEEARBEEESY
GG

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
B.3.1- (d) Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
B.3.3 responsibilities effectively
(cont'd) FEEMNERAEAREN - WERETREREBE

€)

(e) A good track record of experience at a senior level in
corporations/organisations

ERAR,/ WELEXZESRERENBERIFAR

() Financial knowledge
EEME EER

These criteria are for reference and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

LHiEHERER2E  UAEEREMERE - B TEREME
A -REZEGAEREANERREENAL

Nomination procedures

REREF

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee for consideration of a proposed candidate
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee shall
nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to the shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies or
as additional Directors. Proposed candidates will be asked to submit
the necessary personal information in relation to the candidates
as required in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional information
and documents, if considered necessary. In order to provide information
of the candidates nominated by the Board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders. The names,
brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to shareholders.
According to the Articles, the shareholders may also propose a person
for election as a director, details of which are set out in the “Procedures
for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting, Put Forward Proposals
at Annual General Meeting and Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company and available on the website of the Company.
REZESGNERABFMIERZEERAMRERZE@ERIRANGRE
A REZEGAMNEZTGRLGEEAE  UHERSS MK
REBERREAS FETAES  AHEFTSZETAREFINAME
RERIEANEES - EEAEKSRERRIRIE LHHRAZE
13512 A EI 2 BERAREAMBENEAER - REEZEFNRA
BME - AIAERREARBEBEIERNRXM - RIEHEBREESS
REERRAG E2ENEEABR  ARAKSRRRE L@ -
FIHREANGS  SE(BEERKERLER) BuE  B2Eie
REMBEBERAERE  RAERBROFHNEE TRIBHHER -
BRBEZRMA - RETAIIREG2BERHAE - FAFBHINEAR
AIN(RREBARRAE RBRRBAFASREERRREBEIIAL
DEBEEZRZRF)IA - WEEHRAAREL
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
B.3.4 | Where the board proposes a resolution C e Mr. Ho Teck Cheong will stand for re-election as the independent

to elect an individual as an independent
non-executive director at the general
meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of
the relevant general meeting:—

FEFGRNBRRAG ERERER
BERALRBYFERTES  5H
P BROK & 58 5 P B PR A B SRR K
R/ SFHBE T EZINA -

1. the process used for identifying

the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be
independent;
RUMEzZ2 ANTHRE EF
BRA/EBEEZEATHIERIA
PR REZEATBE AL
HRA ;

2. if the proposed independent non-
executive director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, why the
board believes the individual would
still be able to devote sufficient
time to the board;
MREEBIIFRTES LT
BRI L) FHTARINES -
BEZERAZAATIHARAR
HNERTESEENRRA

3. the perspectives, skills and
experience that the individual can
bring to the board; and
ZEAANTA REEGHRNER
AR BRERER: R

4. how the individual contributes to
diversity of the boa(d. \
ZENTHAREEEENES
Ttk o

non-executive Director of the Company in the forthcoming AGM of
the Company according to article 92 and 92A of the Articles.
RIBERMBEI2RI2AN - MBS R EFNARRIERERRAE
FRGERETARABILIFRNITES -

The Company’s circular of AGM set out the information in
considering the re-election of Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, having due
regard to the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy and
assessment of Mr. Ho’s independence.
RAARIBRRAFAGBRUEEEREZMEEXLEMNRA - K
i@?ﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬂ(%ﬁ&%%@ﬁi%%fszﬂz%ﬁu&%‘%mﬂ%imﬁ
i“ o

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

C. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES, DELEGATION AND BOARD PROCEEDINGS
EREME BNERRESERF

C.A1 Responsibilities of directors
EEEE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
Every Director must always know their responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and
development.
BREFARABREERARESTNRE  URQAANKLEF  EREHRERE -

C.1.1 |[Newly appointed director of C e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive
the company should receive briefing and related materials of the Group’s business activities,
a comprehensive, formal and induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
tailored induction on appointment. requirements.
Subsequently they should receive any FESRZIREES EXEERLEHEER  EHRRELEE
briefing and professional development EBEN EFRARBBEN 0 REMEEEK -
necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the company’s e All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly
operations and business and are fully provided with comprehensive reports on the management’s
aware of their responsibilities under strategic plans, updates on lines of business, financial information,
statute and common law, the Listing etc.
Rules, legal and other regulatory FEEZ(BEIRTES) ST HEEEERERBETRNE
requirements and the company’s EEHRE  ERERAEHER - BBERS -
business and governance policies.
TEENESHRCXZARESS e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
- EARFEAEMIBHOREEN - updated on Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
ERMEESHEONA R TR requirements.
& - DARERM IS R R EIE R RAWEBERRABEFISAM LR REMET ZRKHN
HEBENER URTEHERS BETER o
EERLE®E - FHRA - EER
EMEEREUARRAINERRER
HETHBE -

C.1.2 |The functions of non-executive C e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have

directors include:

FEMITEENRERLE

— bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board

meetings;

SHEBEEREH - B RERE -
BE RElRE - -HELE- &
B ITEZERBTEUEEE
o R#BYNER

— take the lead on potential conflicts
of interests arise;
AR BEFRERERIERR
SIZER

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
EHLIEZZES  FTMZE
T REZEEREMEREZE

BKE R

been actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors
review with management in respect of the Group’s strategic
development and direction, emerging risks and opportunities
available to the Group.

FRTESERANTHEANBERERETERE EFHE
BENSENEEECASENREIBR AR - ARAKNEET]
BEHEBRM R R e -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
C.1.2 |- scrutinise the company’s
(cont’d) performance in achieving agreed
(B corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring performance
reporting.
FmE N a MR EDEDE
ENEEBZRMBEE  WERE
BRARKRMEE °
C.1.3 |Board should establish written C e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
guidelines no less exacting than the Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
Model Code for relevant employees out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
in respect of their dealings in the regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
company’s securities. AAREHEMETRAMEETFEHN ETBITAESETES
EEQENEHUREERELFESS REGNFEETA(FRETADARARRFAREENEFRHTTRT
HRXEEEIES - 5| ABEZ L 8y .
FESFRIRE -

e Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors
have complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered
by this report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RRARMMBERELEEERNE  MEEFELAREMBEZ
SEHEAR 2 AT - B SFIRESPRIPTARERISFA o

e Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating
to securities transactions for relevant employees are set out in the
“Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the
Company.

AARGIEREEEEESF 2 EMIES - Z5 ol AEFE%EFRIHE
2 BRIBIRE »
C.1.4 |All directors should participate in C e As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors

continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant. The company
should be responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.
FEESRSEFEZERE &R
A R ELANEE R BR e - AR R H AR
EEEXAEARINEMENERLT
HEZSELER - ARIEEERH
BENEITREFELE - UKE
DEELDRAERHAL - Bt
E1E o

are updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors
are encouraged to attend external forums or training courses on
relevant topics which may count towards continuous professional
development training.

ERHERFEEIZ —H  EFRIRENRGFHEETHRAUR
HiEREERTE N EREN  WER2BERETEHR
E o ARFIEE R BE S HEINURIE BRE 2 B g sk
R ERFEZEHREI 25 -

e Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous

professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December
2022, all Directors namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Ms. Chung Pui
King, Rebecca, Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David,
Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan, Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and the then director
Mr. Chan Kwok Leung had confirmed that they had complied with
the code provision C.1.4 of the Code by participating in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by attending
training courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors duties and responsibilities.
REFR EREDEBEEXEER - LRI EHEMB N
Bt UWERHEETABIEHEAARIEMENERTHESS
EHER - BEZZ-_ZF+-A=1+—BHULEFE  2BEZEHE
FBRMBEE - EMIRL LT - EELE  BHEBL4E - BInTH
FhE IBEFEAREFREFNREREEGER  BhLH
IR R M ERAR R ER N E TR LB EREERES
A2HEAEFBEEXEEREIES - SEETR2FRNEXE
CAMEZIRE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

C.1.5 |Directors should disclose to C e The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their

the company at the time of his appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and
appointment, and in a timely manner nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
for any change, the number and nature other significant commitments, identifying the public companies or
of offices held in public companies organisations involved.
or organisations and other significant EENEXZARERARABBEWREREFEL—RER
commitments. The identity of the public NBABNABETRAOASE RME - URHEMEREE - I
companies or organisations and an T f Zii? YN UNEIEFEE e i
indication of the time involved should
also be disclosed. The board should
determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.
BEEENEXZERAATREER
NBN A RABEEBRAAEE R
B AR H At 8 KA e - HigE BEM
BENE SRR o WINTEEE S
FEARAR BB BEARER
HETEBBEMIRNER S
BEETREMERBZ AEH — /B
& -

C.1.6 |Independent non-executive directors C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board
and other non-executive directors, as Committee meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the
equal board members, should give the independent non-executive Directors and the general meetings
board and any committees on which during the year. Please refer to C.5.1, D.3.1, B.3.1-B.3.3, E. 1.2,
they serve the benefit of their skills, C.2.7 and F.2.2 for details.
expertise and varied backgrounds FTAEESEER ESTRTZBEEH - TRIVFIFNIT
and qualifications through regular EFgRRRERGZERERHSARME - u$‘ﬁuﬁ BIZEC.5.1,
attendance and active participation. D.3.1,B.3.1-B.3.3, E.1.2, C.2.7 & F.2.218 °
Generally, they should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a e Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
balanced understanding of the views of quant|tat|vely and qualitatively.
shareholders. SHEBERMELEMNEERNEEREEMHEETT
BUIERMITEERAMIEMITESE
REHMEEREERSHWUNESS e All non-executive Directors attended the AGM held on 29 June
KE  ErEHHEESEE RERED 2022 and the general meeting held on 4 May 2022.
FEEENENZESNGARLIER FIBEFNTESAERE - F XA TN ARTHRRAEASF
e AHERE  FEMFIRT KA&fgiiiﬁﬂ@E;‘ﬁﬁmﬁxﬁﬁm ]
AHERREBELER o 0 E
HERRARE  HARRRNERE
NIER TR

C.1.7 |Independent non-executive directors C ° Please refer to C.1.6 above.
and other non-executive directors E2MLENECA6IE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and
informed comments.
ﬁ_L#ﬁﬁ%?&ﬁﬁﬂ##lﬁ%%m
FRREHBY FRRERARED
BERHA T%Hﬁ”*ﬂiﬂ&ftﬁz RIEH IEE
B -

C.1.8 |Arrange appropriate insurance cover C e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers
in respect of legal action against the Liability insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.
directors. RARHEREZERSMAERHEZENEETLSRABEER

AAERESFI LR AR ERTE B e
{’Em BIRARZBE ©
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Explain (“E”)
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2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
c.2 Chairman and Chief Executive
TR RATHAAE
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.
EEGNEEEENEBRNBREEENEXRERE S - URRENNBEED HHE
C.21 |- Roles of chairman and chief E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the
executive should be separated and Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles
should not be performed by the of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated. The
same individual. Board considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
FTRETHEZNACEER and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
5 WA ER— ARBEIRE - implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.
RINBAEERKEEARACEEE IR RAFITHAE - ME
- Division of responsibilities between FBREFBITHREMBI D ABILIES EFCRABILERE
the chairman and chief executive BRI REBRAE 2Bae - A AMNEL REHEA B KR —H
should be clearly established and LIRS o
set out in writing.
FREETHAR CEBRENS T
EERRATELLAEHEIEH o
C.2.2 | The chairman should ensure that all C e With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management
directors are properly briefed on issues and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
arising at board meetings. Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
TREERRESEERLIMAESEY and receive adequate documents and information about the Group
HEMBERMNEIE - in a timely manner.
ERITES EBERAFTWENHDT - TEUERDEE
FYURZSMNEESSRMEECER LR EINEH
REEOXHRESR -
C.2.3 | The chairman should be responsible C e The Board papers including supporting analysis and related

for ensuring that directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate information
which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable.

IFREAEBRREERFERIZHH
Bl - ™A REE SN A REREB BT %

SRS -

background information are normally sent to the Directors at least
three working days before the regular Board meetings.
EEGRINMBREESTREBESER  —RREFETE
HERAFMTIR=EALEAERESE -

Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the
communication between the Directors to ensure that queries
raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and
further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
appropriate.

NAWMEELHAERESSHABER  BRESFHIEMRE
SKBE 2 BRI EIE - WERMEE — S EFEM RS (i

HE) -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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C.24 |- The chairman should provide C e The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is
leadership for the board. responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board.
FENABEREEEYE - EEEFFHATERLE  EEFERENERESRY -

— The chairman should ensure that e The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction
the board works effectively and of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for
performs its responsibilities, and the high-level oversight of management.
that all key and appropriate issues BRI R AEAAESSRTEIASERBRE TR YARR
are discussed by it in a timely REEREEERENTE-
manner.

ITEERERESSEVULEE - e All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any
BETEARE  UREHMA matters in the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the
EEMREEBEEITHR ° Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into account

the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in

— The chairman should be primarily the agenda.
responsible for drawing up and ETREFNEZASETEIMNIEERRIABERN EEQERE
approving the agenda for each BIRA TMi%ﬁm%?@@%%ﬁ&%%TEﬁ1&%$§$E§E’U%IE
board meeting. He should take (B)FIAZERA ©
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the e With the support of the executive Directors and the Company
other directors for inclusion in Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly
the agenda. The chairman may briefed on all key and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
delegate this responsibility to EHRTEZRRARWERD T @ EERNERIEESYEEN
a designated director or the ERBEEREEEE -
company secretary.

IERITZEAEETUHAETK
%$ Elu%ﬂﬁu%%i ’ jfE}:EE‘i
AT REMESREMAZ
B EEIE - Ir—”ﬁklﬁﬁ&
HRETNERH D AIWE -

C.2.5 |The chairman should take primary C e The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company
responsibility for ensuring that good Secretary, takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate
corporate governance practices and governance practices and procedures of the Company.
procedures are established. EERERERATNENR TEERYARAIRFLEERE
IFEAFTEEMR BRAFAGER BERBFCEEHE -

NG EEAEARIER -

C.2.6 |— The chairman should encourage all C e The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various
directors to make a full and active matters of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their
contribution to the board’s affairs views concerning the management of the Group.
and take the lead to ensure that ITEAEEFTREBRImASEETRAEBENEEREBAEE
it acts in the best interests of the ERIHEHEEELREENER -
company.

ITEESBAEESEHIRAE
EEER - WASER - BRE
BITEFERARKENS -

— The chairman should encourage

directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow
sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board
consensus.
TREESBETRELNESY
FELASMINEE  LTE
LETFHERENR LA&E@%
EEGMNATHAERRESTS
M -
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C.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent
hold meetings with the independent non-executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In
non-executive directors without the addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board
presence of other directors. had met with the independent non-executive Directors without the
FTREEVSGFHRBIIENTESTR presence of the other Directors.
T—RREHEMEZHRENEE - TR EERE S IENITE SRR EARRE RS - B
ERerHes) EFSIRTEBYIINTEFELEEW
HEFBEHNBERATRITEE -
C.2.8 |The chairman should ensure that C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.
FERERREE S P RRFER R
BERHE  ARBRIRRE R A EE
HREAESY -

all shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate,
through the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars,
notices, media releases or other means in compliance with
the legal and regulatory requirements. The Company has
made such information available on the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) as well as on an independent website
provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose
is to provide our shareholders an alternative channel to access the
Group’s information easily and reach the potential shareholders
globally.

RARBMOMMERRIBHASE ST ER - WEZZELER
ZEEEATEPHGRERFR B BE  EEEMLET
FEREERENAMEN - RAREHZEEN LHRARA
B #8UL (http://www.singamas.com) + [R] BF IR _E 8 7 — %8 37 A9 4
FETE (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) * Itk B H) =2 #55k
REFIMBERRRER S TFRARERNE R L E G R E B
PIRBEERR -

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with
shareholders in the Company’s general meetings during the year,
the Company continuously enhances shareholders’ communications
by holding press and/or analyst conferences during any reporting
period or year. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently Asked
Questions” section in its annual report providing its shareholders
with more clear and concise information that may be of common
concern. Besides, the Company has responded to letters and
telephone enquiries from shareholders and potential shareholders
throughout the year under review.

REEFA  BREARFBRRAS FRH—(ERFREEELHEN
FEN  ARFEFERREBRBBOR G  WEAMHEN
FEEER  KARDERTEER S MEEGH o b - K
NAERFRARE—MRIBRIE G - BB B IS R ERHN
HEABIERGEHRR - 5 ARAIREEFANEAEHEEE
Bl M BE AR R BRI B EE A

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can deposit a written request at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83
King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Company Secretary. The written request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those shareholders.

RREFERRAEZERF
RIRRAREHFE N DREBN AR T 2R FKRENIR - AL
EMFERXEARANTMPERE - BER2E75-83%MA
FRAE1918 - IBEFAARIMER - ZEMBHREARAGE L&
RIEEHH RIS VATEBEERRFZRTHZHERX

AR - B Al d Bl — B A ERRERE o

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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C.2.8 e Procedures for putting forward proposals at AGM
(cont’d) Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of
(B all shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote

at the AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the
Company who have a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can
submit a written request to move a resolution at the AGM. The written
request must state the resolution, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form
(which between them contain the signatures of all the shareholders
concerned). The written request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP
Tower, 75-83 King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the
Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not
less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
a relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, may request the Company to circulate, to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
(a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at
that meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s
Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, identify
the statement to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and be received by the Company not less than seven
days before the meeting to which it relates.
REBRAFASRUBREZRER
IATFTATAIMARRRREMBRUERRBFRE LEERE
B EZARERIWBMHELAIRRREFAG FRA - B
TLORIIBRFBRAEN2.5% 0 KT DR50%FH AR A
BRAENRER - ZEEBRERAZREAR - EAEEBABAR
REERUBZHARXHEK (B2 BEARREZNFK
E)  ZEEARATEADANIMBER - BERBE75-83
TS HMRAE19E - RBERARWMEN  WHRETDRATE
KzBRRBAFRGRITZAEMAK(RE) BERRAFAE
BAMZEEEZEL BETOREEHBARERECMERRZ
HMIRREN2.5% ; H T DRE0EFRFB AR EIHATORENAR R A]
ERARRNAMBRKIIRRASEE 2 REERM—H 251,000
FHRME ATERN@QBFEZRIEAE FREBEMNEHRL®N
RBAIMMETR : O EMEFEZRRARE FREHNER - It
ERBHFAERRAZAMMREEFTBE2B75-835R B S LA
E1918 - FIAFEFEM RN VAHRBERARREE  ZEX
FERTORBEGRERITRITRRERRA]
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C.28 e Shareholders’ enquiries
(cont’d) Shareholders should direct their questions about their

®)

shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the contacts
under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries. Shareholders have the
right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing
and sent by post to the registered office of the Company or by e-mail
to info@singamas.com for attention of the Company Secretary.

RERRER

k?ﬁﬁ$ ARNBEPERE-BERFRELHEZLARA

kﬁﬁ@A%%Z§ﬁ %%&ﬁéAiT%ﬁgi
%Hﬁ%$ AIZERHEN - RERIITARERAD A
(http://www.singamas.com) Hxﬁ%ls AR INE S EES
Ao BRTARAEETEIELER - AAESHANEERL N
Bt WERFRARIMERBFEARAEMREENEHE

info@singamas.com °

Shareholders’ communication policy
The Board established a shareholders communication policy and
made it available on the Company’s website. This policy aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the Company’s
shareholders, both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company (including its financial performance,
strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance and
risk profile), in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. Shareholders may
also, at any time, make enquires and communicate their views on
various matter affecting the Company by writing to the Company
Secretary or directly by raising questions at general meetings.
The Board will review the policy on annual basis and considered the
policy is still effective.
LESEENE
BEEFHERFEMBE - W EHNARR R o ZBERATE
BXEERRADGRR - BEEARKERE - REEZER
T’PE?% MIEAT HERERSEZHE - *amxu%mm%
RAEH (BREHEMBRE BB ERE  EXERE -
@Kﬁﬁ%iﬁ) C —HEERRAIEMEER TITEREN %—Eﬁﬂz
RARER KA E AT EARR B INEE R o MR I8 A] e R BUR 2 7R
E HAARARRERERREELRARNSBEERRER  EE
RIREA® FIRMA -
EEGREBFRIZBE  URR/ZBERDAEKK -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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CREARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER

C.2.9 | The chairman should promote a culture C e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively
of openness and debate by facilitating encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and
the effective contribution of non- be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the
executive directors in particular and Board’s functions.
ensuring constructive relations between FEREAPUE TEGBEBHFIARENEERELEER U
executive and non-executive directors. k2A2HEEZENEY  UHESSMNBEELER -
FREREQAR  BEAmH XL -

REZERFFZIENTES)HES e Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication

SELERER - WHERRNITESHR between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved

IEMITEE 2B ERMENEER - through discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee
meetings and other Board activities/programmes.
HENEZGGH SETZERRRHEMEREEE I
B ARR D EBENITESNERNERM RNITE S HIFH
TEEZHENER

C.3 Management functions
EIRTEE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to
management.

AREA—BIEAMETETE  JEFNEESSI AN SEREEEEEATMNEE -

C.3.1  |When the board delegates aspects of C e Management meetings are held periodically where executive
its management and administration Directors and heads of senior management of the respective
functions to management, it must, at business divisions are present and clear directions are given as to
the same time, give clear directions the management’s powers.
as to the management’s powers, in EEEgEHRTIE $ﬂﬁ§$&ﬁﬁ§¥ﬁ§§5?%’]*ﬁ& B8 A
particular, where management should BREFEABSLFESR  WHEBEMNENE TEMES -
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or e Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the
entering into any commitments on the Board for approval.
company’s behalf. ERMEERZFEARFHHRHEETETEM -
EEESHAEEERITBINESTEN
BOEETERER  LWERKRE e Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules
EEEE’JEEVJ By EMWRIES] - R or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure

EEEEEBRERAESSERARER will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and
A A)VEH AR SR B Bk BT S AEfr] A 7R shareholders’ approval will be obtained in accordance with the
AIERSESSHAESEE M - requirements of the applicable rules and regulatlons
BE EmRAS @AM RAS RS METRE EEEE -
HEFHEE BE  UHRBERREER ZRAIRBIIELK
FBE 38 ok R BUS IR 2 B -

C.3.2 |Formalise functions reserved to C e Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the
the board and those delegated to Chairman of the Company, management is responsible for the day-
management and to review those to-day operations of the Group
arrangements periodically to ensure E%Jﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁﬁ' g*({ﬂw‘]'\?%$ AICERTET EEEAELRE
that they remain appropriate to the BB EEE
company’s needs.

NI ERGIPLLRE TEE S MR e The Company has established clear terms of reference for the
BRLLE i T EIE ER B AL 5 5l EEIET Board which are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain
PK W E HATE R AT AT IR B B R BE T appropriate.
BARMNHRE - f@ﬂaﬁiiﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁwmﬁ%%%ﬁ 0 FE B AR R FEAR EL AR FF
(=)
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TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

C.3.3 |Directors should clearly understand C e Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key
delegation arrangements in place. The terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly
company should have formal letters of appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
appointment for directors setting out FEESERIERNZEE  USBPEZAZEIEZBRAKRK
the key terms and conditions of their - BRMEAESNEREEETAE -
appointment.

EERERERUTHENIEER
o REIEAEAMNEREZMEE - 5]
REBZ AN EZER RGN

C.4 Board Committees
EEGETNEES
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties.

EXEQETELESNRUEAEANS TRERE  BRIAEZEERHIREE -

C.41 |Where board committees are C e Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
established to deal with matters, the Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee,
board should give them sufficiently have been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer
clear terms of reference to enable them to B.3.1 = B.3.3, C.3.2, D.3.3 and E.1.3 for details.
to perform their functions properly. BEECERVYNEETZES  IRZEZES  HFWEZE8T Ik
EERULZESREEE  ESTR ZEGhEEZES  SEREGBESE - FAFLH%B.3.1
MEWREZESRETD EENBES -B.3.3,C.3.2, D.3.3%E. 1.3 »

CEEREE BT -

C.4.2 |The terms of reference of board C e Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
committees should require them to recommendations at the Board meetings.
report back to the board on their BEEeRTZEeNEZeRRNESTERIAT REH -
decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so (such as
a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).

EERETRZESNBEBEER
FTREESEMNEETFEREAATR
B RERFEESREAEREE
B2 6] P BR 1M 1> BB 1 UL R () AN (R B5
FEMRGIHE) -
C.5 Conduct of board proceedings and supply of and access to information

ERERENREREHRRER

Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRA

The Company should ensure directors can participate in board proceedings in a meaningful and effective manner. Directors
should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make an
informed decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.
NAEBREZRPAGEENAVN AR EERSREEF  EFREEHEENEREY  BRARERERESE
BHUHEZREBEEENNER TELAE - WeEBTEREREE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
C.5.1 |Regular board meetings should be C e The Board held nine meetings in 2022. The Board would meet more

held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person
or through electronic means of
communication, of majority of directors.
EXeTHEREBFELARD
R ARBAOEEERFUFE  HFER
BFEAEEGHRHE -

frequently as and when required.
gEeN B —FEZRTAAeE - EAEE
Eﬁﬁgg\%ﬂu& ©

- Z2Fgrd

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
No alternative Director was appointed during 2022.
ELESTR=-ENTESF —BHNTEER=BBIFNTE
HEK c —T - _FRWELZEENEEES -

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this annual report and details of Directors’ attendance
at the Board meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out below:

HE_Z_—_F+_RA=+—BUFERBEArFHRAACES
Aﬁa&§$ﬁiﬁéﬂzifﬁ$::¢+fﬂ =ST—BIEFENES
E =] u#ﬂz%@ﬁ”ﬁu—r

Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EEHA HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng SR 9/9
(Chairman and Chief (FEFBEE
Executive Officer) T ABES)
Siu Wai Yee, Winnie P 0/0
(Chief Operating Officer) (HEEEEE
(appointed on 1 January R=ZF=Z=F—4
2023) —HEZM)
Chung Pui King, Rebecca EmIR 9/9
(Chief Financial Officer and (B /81 F5A4BE:3
Company Secretary) REFE)
Non-executive Directors  E#HTES
Tan Chor Kee PR 2 6/6
(retired on 30 September R=ZF=Z=FNA
2022) =1 HRMA)
Kwa Wee Keng EE 9/9
Chan Kwok Leung PeR [ 1 9/9
(resigned on 24 February R=ZF=Z=F—H
2023) By =Y /f)
Independent VHHTES
Non-executive Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David L e 9/9
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2] W 9/9
Ho Teck Cheong OS] 9/9
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

C.5.1 e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone

(cont’d) conference or by means of a similar communication equipment

(&) or by their alternate in accordance with the Articles. An updated

and consolidated version of the Company’s Articles (both
English and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of
the Company (http://www.singamas.com) and Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk). The Company has not made any
changes to its constitutional documents during 2022.
BEERMA - EF0 RS BBSESEIELBNE Mtlj

FEE - AHEBEEEAR/LRE - AR Ta% MA 2 &FERE
H&$@i§‘<&¢ﬁ(ﬁ&) BEEFHRAR T(http//www.singamas.com)

N7 2 P (http://www.hkexnews. hK)&8uf e R =—ZF = =4 » KA 7
3 EHARE IR SHE R A2 ) -

C.5.2 | All directors are given an opportunity C e All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter
to include matters in the agenda for in the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
regular board meetings. issued.

FRESEARGREBIFEIIA REEZSTHERBTHAREN  EHARBOMEESIELGE
EREETHERRRE - ﬁﬁéﬁéﬁ%lﬁuﬁw EEE
C.5.3 |~ At least 14 days notice for regular C e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each
board meetings. regular board meeting and gives reasonable notice for other board
BREEecHeREELED meetings.
TR o RELAARESGEHERNEL TORBHEXRBM - WET
HBEES@RaBRH 2B -
— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
AHEMEEFSIRRELSE
AN o
C.5.4 |Minutes of board meetings and C e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the

meetings of board committees should
be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting and should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.
HIEARES g%w%@%ﬁ§$@
MEETEZE®NE:R Eaﬁ HEE
T‘J§$§’*Ed/\$¥5_%u Eﬁﬁ?ﬁa
%uaﬁﬁi\ﬁﬁ{{ﬁ/\ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management

Committee meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is

responsible for taking minutes of Remuneration Committee
meetings.

ATWMEBERREES  FREES REZEGREEES

/i:/g\a%uaﬁ MEFMEE & @B LM BRI —(IIBTELRE W
=] T_E

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all

Directors/Board Committee members within a reasonable time after

each Board and Board Committee meeting.

t/A§?$A&E$iT§Ei@@a§%§Ef§: EAAEEHTEXWTE§$A

ﬁ%ﬁi%T% BEegH0 RERERLBESE HETLES
B o

Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made
available for inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at
the registered office of the Company.

EESNEE (ZERRSNY ANERTHES HBTZEE
ERERARARGZMFEEER -

TEICEFR o BWE

BEERERAR
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TEER®E
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

C.5.5 |- Minutes of board meetings and C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record
meetings of board committees contain sufficient details of matters considered and decisions
should record in sufficient detail the reached including concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
matters considered and decisions the Directors.
reached. EEghHBTZEENgRLBTOEHERIAIIAERRE L
EEGRABETZEENgEERC FHIERAERIRE - AR BESEERENEMEERRENRY
¥ - J%%#@E%J:ﬁﬁ%)ﬁ%léi&L BR -

BHPRTEVE R S AR ae ek o

e Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board

— Draft and final versions of minutes minutes.

for all directors to comment and to EEERENETSERLHVRRERR -

keep records within a reasonable

time after the board meeting. e Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a

EESSRERE  EREAER reasonable t|me after the Board meeting.

BALEGE %.:Eﬁ-m%mn&r EEEEBARE  RNEBERRAREEZLHNKEERERT

BERBEXERES  VREE el I

BEXREER  REERIMEER

el I

C.b5.6 |- A procedure agreed by the C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if
board to enable directors, upon needed and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent
reasonable request, to seek professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
independent professional advice in BEX0ERNBARNRGNEAEER  NETERTEERT - EFIRA
appropriate circumstances, at the SXBUEEER  WAARRRZNER -
company’s expense.

EXGRZBERF  EEER
ERER  AJEEENBEATSE
KBUEEER  BERBEQRX
i o

— The board should resolve to
provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to
assist them perform their duties to
the company.
EZGRBARSINZESEMEE
VEEZR  AmBMbPIEITE
HARMELE -

C.5.7 |— If a substantial shareholder or a C e |mportant matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions
director has a conflict of interest so that all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
in a matter to be considered by can note and comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval
the board which the board has is granted.
determined to be material, the BEEFE-MUEEARRIANERE  UEXBES(REBVIE
matter should be dealt with by a WTES)TNBEBEE  UHEBRRER(WES)® - FiE
physical board meeting rather than ZEIE °
a written resolution.

EEXTEZRFENESHEESTSH e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in

TERNEBETGREZERA the resolution, if applicable

BAMAZER  BHAFHEEDL ERARABRANEFRB EHARENZER) -

BTEEgeR(MESHAZ)H

R e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director

being a connected person, in general, would be considered

- Independent non—executive at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including

directors who, and whose close independent non-executive Directors, may consider, if appropriate,

associates, have no material granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions.

interest in the transaction should —MBFRAT  BEATERRKEFTCHEATETIEARSE

be present at that board meeting. REESSEHREZE - %%(E%ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%i)ﬁ@@%iﬂ%%

ERGHAGREABTBE ALY REEELTRA EHERERS

RAB RN =B IIERTES

EZLFEEHENESTSEE -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

C.5.8 |Send agenda and full board papers C e Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three

to all directors at least 3 days before working days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings
regular board or board committee to enable the Directors/Board Committee members to make
meetings. informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board
ExgrfeanmiEREEgEX Committee meetings.
HREEHARFEAZIZEESE WD RERER HETZEEXENRESY HETZESEH I
ERTESEHIHEHETEZEESEA REZARZEEBADERUELRT  @ENHFHIRES
HR = RATEML - e/ HETZEETHERBRTOR=ZELEEAEXRES
HBETEZEGKE -

C.5.9 Management has an obligation C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer
to supply the board and its of the Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on
committees with adequate and corporate governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and
reliable information in a timely financial matters, as appropriate.
manner to enable it to make ARARZAFIMERGEMBBELFABESSTHEE - U
informed decisions. MEEES  RIEERSHENEEEENESZRHEER (M
EREBEEXRNESERAET HE) °
ZEERERELAIENERE
B UFEEEENTCERBERE e The Directors have separate and independent access to the
B R T ELRTE - Company’s senior management to keep themselves abreast of

business activities, financial performance, internal audit and internal
The board and individual control progress in the Group.
directors should have separate EEHTABUMEBAARNBRERALS  USBRETH
and independent access to the AEENERTE BHERE - RIPBEZRAPEITER -
company’s senior management
for making further enquiries where
necessary.
EEghENESTREATER
RAlERERBABNBILRE -
NERFEBIEE—FEH -
C.5.10 All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by

access to board papers and
related materials.
FAEEEHEREHNESTE XY
RAEBEH -

Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.

HREZREOMEBE  RFKA
RAREHRLR RS EMEIFE

Directors and committee members. Senior management of the
Company has taken appropriate steps to respond promptly and
fully to any queries raised by Directors.
EERZEGRENEHEFEXNHREHLE  c EEESIED
B SREEBASSRIEE FPRARREL 2 EADIE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERBRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX f(E) PEERER
C.6 COMPANY SECRETARY
NSIE/E

Corporate Governance Principle
REEBRE

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional

development of Directors.

NREWEAEXEEES I EESEAE  BREFIUNEZMEMIMRL AREBRESSRELEF - ARAINER
EEHHTEER  UZHEENABBENIREXHE -

BEEBIRE/JERTHAENEETIE

RN
#\E/D

C.6.1

The company secretary should be
an employee of the company and
have day-to-day knowledge of the
company’s affairs.
NAMEBEELAINEES - HRAIN
HEEBEMRH -

C

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public
accountant), who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company on 10 September 2013, is also an executive Director of
the Company. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are set
out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile”.

EMEatT(Ext ) GERErmR _E—=F LA T+BEZT
REARBZ RAIWE  BWIFRALRMITES - EBLTRIEMER
NRIZEFNGRE BRIt BREFBEHNEEREEEREA

B]—#-

The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted
under appropriate procedures. e
NEAMERREZTSGHRNBEZIEF TH#IT -

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes
and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board and Board Committee meetings.
RAWERBTEESENAE TZE SRR EARERAEE
FEE c WSS FRAENEEREIERNATE

During 2022, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
RZZBZZF » RANEBEEET IO NENFEEFIIRA
H R K g o

C.6.2

The board should approve the
selection, appointment or dismissal of
the company secretary.
NAMENHE  ZAENRERLS
EEgHE -

The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary
is approved by the Board.
NRAMEREE  ZERREHRESSIE -

C.6.3

The company secretary should report
to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive.
NAWERAESTEER R, HITH
BEER

The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman
whilst all members of the Board have access to the advice of the
Company Secretary.

ARAMNEBAEIFAESSER MABESSXNEHTRER
AMEZER -

C.6.4

All directors should have access to the
advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations, are followed.

FEESEREATMENE R
ZAMNRY  UBERESSERFR
FrB#ERER - RAIRRIHESFE

=n

Sf oo

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the
Company, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all
applicable law, rules and regulations, and corporate governance
practices.

PRESHALTHERARTNABIWEREEREEER (WA
SE)NERERE - UWRRERMEERERE  RAUREGIA KR

== 55
™ 2

N
EEERER -
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Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #5(c))/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER

D AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
RE - NEPERE AR B TR

DA Financial reporting
B 75 B 4R
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects. . .

EESETE  BMREEMFRAAORE - BREAE -

D.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business
explanation and information to the activities and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each
board to enable it to make an informed board meeting.
assessment of financial and other EENERESEERYEREEEEZT X 2XBAHEER
information put before it for approval. FEMMIBER -

TRERAEFERETINRER
B REF S UBERG MM
BB REMEN - AEHBRIEN
AT o
D.1.2 |Management should provide all C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board,

members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties.
ERERBAMNESSNERMEN
BE RVNBBARMKIE - BB
MR ATREV R IE K 5 IE R
NBERAEERETHBE -

for the purpose of providing a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.
EEEMAEKECBIRHEAEREN  FRAVNEFAARAIK
B BBRARARNRERGRER 2 WREFERE
BEERITARE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
D.1.3 |— The directors should acknowledge C e All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing

in the Corporate Governance
Report their responsibility for
preparing the accounts.
EERAECEERBSETARM
MERUKRENEE -

There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the financial statements.
ZEENINETE R BT IS Mk %
AR & R A P10 R R E E/E
HEERR o

Unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the company will continue
in business, the directors should
prepare the accounts on a going
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as
necessary.

BRIFBRBAB B EHELEED
g BH - FEERENK
BRELARBELCERER - B
FERFEREHUBRBRIXREE

Where the directors are aware
of material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, they should be
clearly and prominently disclosed
and discussed at length in the
Corporate Governance Report.

CEFNBERERTHARE ML
BRI EREZERARFEL

N BERECEE

mg
o¥
isig
b=n]

the preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cashflow for the year.

TREFARARSEEBRESEY BSEE 2 MBRROTE
WARBEEAAMRMFAREENTEAMR - UREERRE

MEBMR °

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity to
the International Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the
accounts on the going concern basis.
ERUBE-_S-_—_F+_A=-t+—BULFEZWERERE &
ECERMKASENSTER  YE2ERAEEMBHRSELE
A - RS BRI R R - I B i E S B U R — U] R BT R
et BUERRE FUARAIREEE BER

With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which
is under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a
professional accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

RARMBHAAEXGHMER  AEMBREEE  E&%F
FImBN T EFHREEVBRERNGEFTEBE@ERIERZ

&8 -

The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements
of the Group is in a timely manner.

BRSPS RRBE T AT -

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to 113 of
this annual report.

RARZEEM G EE N BBERPAE2 BRREEZANNHNILF]R
F105EEFE 1A 2B MR ER o

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
EEWTANBEAREARANBELC LR NERNEREBNE
fAIERTAREE -
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
D.1.4 | The board should present a balanced, C e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all
in annual and interim reports, and other shareholder communications.
financial disclosures required by the EReRMAERERAMY  HEBZRRARAKRIELEH - T
Listing Rules. It should also do so for RS NIBRETE o
reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements. e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
FHRESeREFERS P RS under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to
RARYE LT R E'J %ﬁ BETHERNHA present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ A B ARRBELDFE - Group’s position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key
B %ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁﬁ’] AR o &t?l\ - HIR officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and
EEREEERINBEERBEE in consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and
FIMERENE Jr A E ﬁ [A) 5% &9 PR sensitivity of transactions and proposed transactions and advise the
st o Board accordingly.
EEQMBERETFEARNERAINZEZEER  EEFHIRE
2V EEW M SRR AL BTN RATRATE o RAIWMER
RAMEBFTEABEZEBEHETEE U FGEFERRHE
BNEEMREBREEZRAELER IETFllmi%‘\ﬁEdEm g
D.2 Risk management and internal control
[ B I e A B e A
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the issuer’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Such risks would include, amongst others, material risk relating to environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”). The board should oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the board on the
effectiveness of these systems.
%%@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&#i%ﬁ)\%@ﬁ%% BIRE AR EMNRRIEERER THRRBETARZREFSEREENE
MEERABEIERS - FEREFBENRNERE HERELRFRNEANLR EFTREETEEHRRERE
RAFEZERGH R  BERER  MEEERAESSREEHRSASTARNER
D.2.1 |The board should oversee the C e Please refer to D.2.3 and D.2.4 below for the details.
Company’s risk management and BT XED.2.3K%D.2.418 o

internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and
its subsidiaries’ risk management and
internal control systems has been
conducted at least annually and report
to shareholders that it has done so
in its Corporate Governance Report.
The review should cover all material
controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls.
%%@E&?%fﬁ*ﬂﬂﬁmﬂ T -BEPSE
NEBESHE R4t - WHERZ D t¢$ &
—RARRERB AN RREIR R
NEPEEIE R R B AN jfE(m% B
JA¥RE) R AR R E AR 2 A TR Eig
Eﬂ‘ c BN EREMEEENEE
FHE - BEVGEE  EEEERE

R

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER

D.2.2 |The board’s annual review should, C e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of
in particular, ensure the adequacy resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s
of resources, staff qualifications and accounting, internal audit and financial reporting together with ESG
experience, training programmes and performance and reporting staff as well as their training programmes
budget of the company’s accounting, and budget and considers as adequate.
internal audit and financial reporting EZCCERARA R - NBEZ R EERA K EQAIRE -
function, as well as those relating to HEREARBANMERNEINRER BEERERKRITERER
the company’s ESG performance and o URBIFEINEIRENEAREXRESRRETFE
reporting. ®E > WRABETH -
EERHETFERIK  BERAA
Egs - NEEZ R SERBEE S
HARBEAFIRE e kEaRR
MEREENNER  BEITERERLK
B UREBIMBEZNEIRERE
HEEREEM -

D.2.3 | The board’s annual review should, in C e For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board, with the

particular, consider:
ELEREFRINFHEERIBET
PIEIE -

(@) the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent
of significant risks (including ESG
risks), and the company’s ability to
respond to changes in its business
and the external environment;

B EFREE - EARER(BER
FodahkErERBR)MLEE R
BRERENEE R AREN
%#%%@&QI\E%%%@E’HE

(o) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks (including ESG risks) and
of the internal control systems, and
where applicable, the work of its
internal audit function and other
assurance providers;
ERERBERARBERER
e RERER) RAEP T RS
WIEHEEREE - R(W@ER) W
%B{%*ZUJ’@E&E@%%}E{%%E@
T 8

(c) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring
results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the company
and the effectiveness of risk
management;
MESSGHETEES)EER
EEIRNFERERRE - E
DESSIRARANETEBRLL
[R B EIRE B IR

assistance of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
Function, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the
management, has conducted regular review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls systems, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management systems
and no irregularity or material weakness was noted within any
function or process. The Board considers the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for the Group
as a whole. The Board further considers that there was no material
issue relating to the controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group.
Please refer to D.2.4 below for the details.
HE_T__F+_RA=+—HIEFERN EERZET K&
EASEZEE  CPEERREEZEGREEENRYT EF
SEEHRANAREANREIE RS (RENL - 28 RERET)
BEBRERBRSF KN - WARBFEREMBAESREFRIBLZ
BRHEBARK - EFGRA - AREERAMBEZRGEHAEE
BREMEBERNTR - BEEWRR  AEBEENE EER
EREENREAREBRBES TEARFEMEREEME - F4
FE2BTXED.2.4E -

7
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Code Ref.
238

Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
BR(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

D.2.3
(cgnt’d)
€)

(d) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes or
contingencies that have had, could
have had, or may in the future
have, a material impact on the
company’s financial performance
or condition; and
HRNBEENERETERRAER
BEREEIESHIE - U RE B
REERNEBERKEZBENAER
BRE MZEFERIEREA
AN RIS BEREESE A
BREELERERAIESEENS
ATE R

(e) the effectiveness of the company’s
processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rule compliance.
NAIBBEHBRE REFCETR
ANRENEFERAN -

D.24

The company should disclose, in the
Corporate Governance Report, a
narrative statement on how they have
complied with the risk management
and internal control code provisions
during the reporting period. In
particular, they should disclose:
NEEECPEBE RS ) AU
TR B 5 B Al 7E 3R 5 BA N <7 Bl g
EIR R NEPEEEH)SFAIMG - AfEm
T EEARERRE

(@) the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
RARHER  THREBEERNAR
MR

(b) the main features of the risk
management and internal control
systems;
FERERRABEERGN TR
R

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
R\ 3R K )RR BR R

Purpose

B#Y

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for
reviewing their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.
EXQAEARASEREREMNERERE KA BEIEGIE -
Winst BRARET - BRIEN TR D UEMBERIE -

The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for ensuring the smooth operation of business in order to
facilitate the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate
goals and objectives by allowing it to respond appropriately to
significant business, operational, financial, compliance, ESG and
other risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable
financial and corporate information, safeguarding the Group’s
assets and shareholder’s interests, ensuring all the transactions are
executed in accordance with the management’s authorization, and
complying with the requirements under the applicable rules and
regulations, and also with the Group’s internal policies and conduct.
However, the risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to mitigate, rather than
eliminate, the risks of failure in operational systems when business
objectives are being sought.

RARBREE MBREAREZEFERM—EDEECK - %8|
NAEF  AMEREKEGIREE  FERERER 28 B
BaR ERE degkER - AREMER ELHESNE
& REEGUERBRICHERCXABRERTE  REZER
B ARHAISEMBREEEN REASENEERBRRF
& BRAERXSYIRREEENRENIT  URETERNE
Bl IR B 35 BRI SR A EBI R KR AT RSP RI o AW - bR E R
MAMBERZREER TS FAEAERRAMIIBRIEHSIEE
%ﬁgZ%%'ﬁmﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁgﬁﬂgxé
VE KR °

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERBRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
3258 | FAKX #R(E) LEERER
D24 (c) an acknowledgement by the board Framework
(cont'd) that it is responsible for the risk 2erE

®)

management and internal control
systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material
misstatement or loss;
%$@@£ﬁﬁﬂﬂ BB RA
HEZERGEE I*ﬁafﬂm
ZEFENERE - ESFGINE
Fﬁﬂ%é SZREEEBMIEER
BLEKEBAENER - A
/\amff\mﬁika’a%ﬁfiﬁtiﬁi
BRIEH A B M IFBE IRE

the process used to review
the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems and to resolve material
internal control defects; and

FA LA e B f 32 2 A B B 4
,/Nﬁxilliél’ﬁfl*&%w& RE AN
EEIERARIRT R

the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
BEREMANEHEENEFNA
BRESIE IR B o

The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced
internal control and risk management systems, with clear division of
work among the Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the management, functional departments
and business departments within the structure of the entire internal
control and risk management systems.

ARAZBITAE - AW - BHEGIE AR &J‘H&a@%

% BEPEEY  EXFTES CERAKREELZES  THEE-
HEERY ¢ 3 LEA

%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁfﬂ%ﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁ%flWﬁﬁ%@&ﬁk

The Board is responsible for maintain a sound and effective
implementation of internal control and risk management. The Board
has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for
assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee, through discussion
with management and engagement of internal audit team of PIL,
to review the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and to report to the Board any
significant risk issues. The Board will provide its own view on the
effectiveness of the systems after reviewed the works and findings
of the Audit Committee.

BEg ”a,ﬁ%%{k&*ﬁxﬁlmm*ﬁﬁ*% Ko B B B SE A o %%@
TRERZES  BERDEFEETEARE MET$‘§@H
BRABEZRFSERIREN - EXEZEE] %iﬁiﬁiaﬁ@.ﬁ
i RIS TR A F RIS EBE St A - AT M EREIE I BLR B IR R
(BIEVK  SERAAEERERERINE)NARE - YnE
% iﬁ%i{fﬂikﬂ BREH ° %%Ai@%&ﬁ%’f?ééﬁ%ﬂ?&
BRI ERE  SREEHENRBRERLER -

Relevant executive directors and senior management have been
delegated with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring
the performance of designated operating business units. The
management is responsible for organizing and steering the daily
operation of the internal control of the Company. The management
would report the business plans and development to the Board
on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the
changes in business environment. Each operating business unit
also maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate to
its structure and business environment whilst complying with the
Group’s policies, standards and guidelines.

HARTEERSREBRBEERTREERNINREEERSETE
CEEBEN RE  c BEREEEEEMKRAEABRARAPERES

HHEET- %ﬁ@éf?%i%ﬂ‘%%%&%)ﬁ%%%@ g Jﬂ:iﬁéﬁ
DEEGNREHRFEPERERAREEH2E LA -

B BRL R BA N RS AR RN
B AR EEE  RAI RIS -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX fR(E) PEERER
D.2.4 Internal Control System
(cont’d) N EPEEIE R 4%

#®)

e The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal
audit team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s
operations and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based
approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business unit on
a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for approval.
Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of
concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management
from time to time.

AEEONBELMERATRBEONBBAASE - LS
PIAS B EE kNG E R T - §EnEa T BIRALE
BREENSA  BORSAEEEE DG ERRE N E Rk
T BAREASESERBENN TR RS KEE - TASE
XTELZBEEM - I TETHRBELZ B G RERER
RENFEBBETHEEMN -

e Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of work performed by Internal
Audit covers all material controls including financial, operational
and risk management functions. During the year, Internal Audit
deeply inspected, investigated and assessed two subsidiaries
of the Company. It has reviewed and assessed their systems on
procurement, operation flow, internal control, financial, contracting,
safety and environmental protection, human resources and
administration etc.

ﬁ?ﬂ%%ﬁﬁum%ﬁﬁgﬁﬂgﬁﬂ WAL & H) T{E
BE BAYG CERANELENABEES L RERE
ﬁ%%cim’W%E%ﬁﬂ% BB R HE AL Bl
MEAA - RERTE T ZEARNRE - 28R - AEE
égzgﬂﬁf% B8R ZREERRRERE  URANERETHE
ZRAL °©

e The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management
level and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal
Audit’s recommendations. The internal audit findings are also
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate
meetings following the issue of the internal audit report. The
responsible heads of departments will be notified of the control
deficiencies noted for rectification. The management would urge
the relevant business segments and units to implement rectification
measures in a timely manner, so as to ensure the internal control
system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews will be
conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. During the year, corrective actions
were taken based on the audit findings and no significant control
failure which might affect shareholder’s interest has identified. The
Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit findings, management
responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations, if any, are
referred to the Board for consideration. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s
attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of
mtemal controls is inadequate.

NEEZERELIEX TEREN® - WEENHEZOZER
Wﬁﬁﬂ@oW@%ﬁﬁ%%&?@%ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%&m@ﬁ
tRETERZZEENES S - XM EHEANAEETE
ZBRAEITIZIE - EREBRBMEG DB R EMREEEEIE
e RABNMEERREUER - BEREEEZEEE
I - ENEERETRERY -  UNEZZBEIARE
EeeETIm TN ERHREANBECET  WESER
AR MG BT ENEAEEXE - BERZBECEMHME
NEEZAER  BIREOIE LA RN LK - WAE
EgERFARREELEEZAE) o AR B E ] 5GE R
TIEF ARSI IR 3 Al & HOE [ORE ~ R8I K F M 5| BEZ
ZBeiE BEYEZZESHRERNMERERGL TR -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERBRE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX f(E) PEERER
D24 Group’s risk management
(cont'd) SERRERE

(&)

e The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set
up an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, composed of
senior management and heads of key corporate functions, with a
mandate for overall risk management activities of the Group. The
Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s main responsibilities
include a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s major
risk exposures and its management status and maintaining the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system.
EEgRRESASEAREREAGRBAERSMERBRIL -
AEERECERAREELZE S HaREEERFELEDBM
WEEHEK  EEZEAEREEERBEMREIRES - PERERE
BLZE T ERBOE T EERARARENSHEERNRRKEE
AR - AR AR R B IR RGEERN AL -

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk
management matters such as the overall objectives and policies as
well as its working mechanisms of the Group’s risk management
system, the establishment of individual risk management unit
at company level, risk assessment of major operating activities,
provide recommendations for the mitigation of major risks and to
carry out any other assignments from the Board.
TtERREEZESNTAENALERREREFERNESSRL
2% mASERREBEFSNEBRERECE - ARHEER
N EAREAEYERNRBREEEN  REBEETESHEHR
BRATAh  WIRMERAEHRERNER  UREITESSTHNGE
Al ELfh 3 IR o

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board
and Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the
Group’s risk management activities, risk positions and management
measures for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk
Management Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports
which evaluate the risk level of major activities and processes of
the Group’s operating business with focuses on financial risks,
operational risks, strategic risks and market risks to the Board and
Audit Committee twice a year.
CHERREEZESRFREIMAMNESEREZLZEGERA
AEINAREEREREIREE - BB REREZRRNEIE
Bt UEBFMAMNESFEREREZEREARTHRS -
HEGBERE  2ERR - RBERERTISERRSE - FTEARER
CEEKEEFHRBENEREE

e With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses
the key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates
relevant strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
ErERREREEES FERZESREEERY T  EHGH
RIREHE RSB FEE 2B EREE FERMR - WHETHAR
WA e - DURE RS R -

62 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
D24 INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
((cg)]t’d) NEH B ERE
e |n order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure
obligation under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Board has
adopted an “Inside Information Disclosure Policy” effective from 29
June 2016 which sets out the guidelines to the directors, officers
and the employees of the Group, who is likely to be in possession
of the unpublished inside information to (a) monitor the Company’s
business developments so that any potential inside information is
promptly identified and report to the Board to enable them be timely
informed of any circumstances or development that may constitute
inside information of the Company and to make timely decisions
on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable precautions
to preserve confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication.
RERGEBIMEMBAEBEFHEREST  URESRBPE
BOI(BREDESNB)ERARBEANREENRTE  EESCE
ZE-RERAZTABRREN AR EERELE] - §ERK
SEHCER  SRABRES (HAREKRERARZAREL)IR
HIES] - (@B AR A EBERETESR - AEFREANEM
BENAREES  WAERSER NEESSRFEREMA
BEBRARRANEEENBERRER - WIEHRTE - FERE
HHEBEHKE  RORREGEEE  BRBEEREAAS(NE
RIRE - BEERRTIERIE -
D.2.5 |The company should have an internal C e Please refer to D.2.4 above for the details.
audit function. Company without an S S M EXED2.418 »
internal audit function should review
the need for one on an annual basis
and should disclose the reasons for
the absence of such a function in the
Corporate Governance Report.
NAERSLNFBEZINGE - BB N EP
BERNENRRAEFEFRAIEEHRE
EERULIEDIRE - WECREE A®ME)
AR R B EEINRE °
D.2.6 |The company should establish a C e The Board adopted a whistle blowing policy on 30 March 2017. It

whistleblowing policy and system
for employees and those who deal
with the company (e.g. customers
and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the
audit committee (or any designated
committee comprising a majority of
independent non-executive directors)
about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the company.
NAEGIERBRBRRRS  EEE
REMEBARGERE(WEF REE
BRI R RATAE A MEZEZE
B EERMBBELIFNTERERSH
TR E Q)R A WM AT AR
NAEINTEFENMT -

provides employees and the stakeholders with reporting channels
on whistle blowing matters to raise concerns about any suspected
misconduct, fraud and inappropriate, unethical or unfair treatment in
the supply chain, as well as to notify their department head or report
to the Chief Executive who should report to the Audit Committee
when appropriate.

RAFER - E—+HE=ZA=ZTAEMNEBREE  ZHEAREEN
R ERHBRFANEE HEETEAERNIETR  F
B LRTAEE - NERAT R THFBREMMAERE - W]
BAEIFEEMERITRAEEFELER, §F1T RS R
MEZZEERE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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SEEARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) TEERER
D.2.7 |The Company should establish C The Company arranges for its employees to attend the anti-corruption
policy(ies) and system(s) that promote and ethic training provided by a local regulatory agency at least once a
and support anti-corruption laws and year to enhance employees’ awareness. The company’s staff manual
regulations. also sets out applicable anti-corruption rules for employees to follow.
NRIEHIEREMTFERESTEEZR RABEZEL—REHEIZ2NHEHMRERBRENRE)S REBE
ROIBER A ZRAT o iﬁ*ll RSB IEH - ARMETFMA M HERNRESERE -
HETEST -
D.3 Audit Committee
BEZEEE
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relat|onsh|p with the Company’s auditors.
%%%ﬂﬁmmﬂﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi& R E IR R AR EE 1 R Bl R ] M R LN AIAZ BN E E B R EL ER R AERENT
D.3.1 |— Full minutes of audit committee C e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate
meetings should be kept by a duly and handle matters within its terms of reference and make
appointed secretary of the meeting. recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.
EZLZEENTEERRHER EEEERUBREZEGHNNEREEREEBRESEANET
IEﬁéEE’J E.n;twiﬁéﬁ A RIH - LRAEFFREARNRSER °
— Draft and final versions of minutes e The current members of the Audit Committee include three
should be sent to all committee independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan
members for their comment and (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong,
records, within a reasonable time and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, of
after the meeting. which at least one independent non-executive Director possesses
ERLENTRERRETRERT the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
BRE—REERMBALEIERX financial management expertise.
ZEG2BRKE  VIREKER %TZ%?a@ﬁ*ﬁ&%@%ifﬁ?%ﬁ#iﬂﬁ%% * D RIRBIR B
EER mRBEWRMEHRHZ H(FE) - BEHBISAERMEESE  UR—FIIFRITESME
A - BRAE *EPKfJ\—ﬁ@i#%ﬂﬁ%$ﬁﬁi@%‘?§r¥ﬁ% C A

BEENSHRARHBEEER -

e The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

BREFR ERZESIFGNEFTSERABRER -

e The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year.
In 2022, a total of three meetings were convened and held with
satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee members’
attendance in 2022 are as foIIows
ERZEGEHRTER  ROEBFMR -N_T__F X
ZERABBRRITS RS HHER 7/\/%3 cRMIZTZZ
F - EHREREZEENENEEFEIHAT :

Number of

Attendance

Committee members ZEERE HERE
Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) 2| 7] ¢ (/%) 3/3
Cheng Fu Kwok, David R 3/3
Kwa Wee Keng TR 3/3
Ho Teck Cheong (appointed  fAlfEE (R =F = —4 2/2

on 1 April 2022) /A —HEZAE)

e The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of
meetings are circulated to the Board for information.
ERLZEQANESEBARASHLBARIESZSEM -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
D.3.1 e The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
(cont’d) during the year under review:

)

EEREFEAN  EREZESNTHERRNT

(a) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and for the six months ended
30 June 2022;
EMEE TG+ A-+-ALSERBE-_T-—
FRA=ZTHIEAREA EI’JKEI%?G@H%*&E% ;

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s Group audit plan and the letters
of management representation;

EHINEZEMNEERAHEREEERABRRAE

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal
auditor;
EHATZEENR BB ERREE

(d) considered and approved the 2022 audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditor;

6 M A — T = — 4 MR A2 2 P R BB R K

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on
pages 86 to 93 oi}his anntial report; and* .
EHHRNAFIRESEZFREZIFEAERS] &

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group

ERAREE AR N AR E TR R AL o

e On 15 March 2023, the Audit Committee met to review the 2022
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the
management and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the
best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in this report complies with the applicable accounting
standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 for public release.

R-Z_=fF=A+HA EREEEMANEREAEN_T
—CERREAMGER  DRENASERA GHRARE
BREA - BB SEMAR IR EEBE R R B
&~%&§E@%E$QEW%MZ§HEE B WO ENE
RARERBOY B ENTABA 2 Bap A% A2+
A Bl REERERARE TSt -f=f-HIF
EIRA RIS HAN T B R IR AT -

e The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor for 2023
and that the related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’
consideration and approval at the forthcomin: /QAGI\/I
EZEEENERE TR IR -HER S EBM AL EE
OB CEEMNERBE  TRINEEREAFAE L2
RIREE & s o

e During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s
external Hong Kong auditor for audit work amounted to
HK$2,724,000, and for non-audit and review activities amounted to
HK$ 540,000 (including HK$309,000 for interim review, HK$52,000
for tax review and HK$179,000 for other related services).
REBFRN » RNQRXTINEEBIZ AN 2 %28 & B /52,724,000
ST B IEAZ S BB 2 BR% B A A540,0008 T (BIER R &
F3309,000% 7T « I EBI & 52,0008 T R E B RB E A

179,000 7T) °

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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XE

ARE

Code Ref.
234

Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
R(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

D.3.2

A former partner of existing auditing
firm shall not act as a member of the
committee for two years from the date
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to
have any financial interest in, the firm,
whichever is later.

BB BEETAARANZERQAN
AIEA B AEMKIER BZARE R
AMBH - St TNBEZEHZA AT
B 572 B B BB (UA B BiE R & A XE)E
AMER - MEEEELRZEENK

B o

C

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years after he
ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
MERFEEEZAQAKRENZBEARAEERARKILENS
ZERBAARNERABYEHBMEN  FERRRERZEEGNK
B o

D.3.3

The audit committee’s terms of
reference should include:
ERZEENBEREESE

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
HRINEZBMNEZE - EFEE
kBEMNESSRHEZZRIE
HNEE A% 20 AM A BE A AR

- review and monitor external
auditor’ s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process;

BE RERIINEZBMEOBELE
B R AZBUR Fr 0B U

= review of the company’s financial
information; and

FEHRRNHBER R

— oversight of the company’ s
financial reporting system,
risk management and internal
control procedures, including
the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
EEARPBRREE AR
BRABEZERT  BEEE
RIES M BERBAESTE
AR BIBELRKEBR=ER
o ARB I EeEIE
REBEERRRR

8 /0 3 DD

The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms
of reference which have complied with the Code requirements and
are modified from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is made available on the website of the Company and
Stock Exchange.

BEREE N IETAREAES A AEBESE KD TRE
B - EREE G BESE R BH N AR R KB -

D.3.4

The audit committee should make
available its terms of reference,
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company’s website.

EZE BRI MM RAFHE
W EARERESE  BEAACR
EEGERTENES -

Please refer to D.3.1 and D.3.3 above for the details.
FEMES M EEED.3.1%D.3.31 ¢
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TEERRE

Code Ref.

$%34

Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
BR(E)

Corporate Governance Practices

%E/uﬁﬁ

D.3.5

Where the board disagrees with
the audit committee’s view on the
selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors,
the company should include in the
Corporate Governance Report a
statement from the audit committee
explaining its recommendation and
also the reason(s) why the board has
taken a different view.
NEFETREETZEZESHEE
ZE - %ﬂldz %9\%@%{%%55’]
BER - RAEEREEAREHIIH
%%?Eﬁ B A ZEMNER - UKk
EXEgRTRAERNRE -

C

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
2023. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the
Audit Committee.

BERLZECNEETTER  ENMBEEEY-HER A EATHE
RARZEZ=FERINEZEEAED - HELRFNEERITHMR
REAFAG LIE  FAEE -EEEREERLEQCEE -

D.3.6

The audit committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

Egi?%@fﬁ%{muﬁiéﬂxﬁﬁ

The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary
can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company should the seeking of such advice be considered
necessary by the Audit Committee.
ERZEGCOEBN  EERLEESRRAUESRKBUYEEE
NEIWEARARYE - BREBAREXZM -

D.3.7

The terms of reference of the audit
committee should also require it:

EREENRESETARRE

— to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;

and

1% ST BRER AT RHE -

1 | ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%[i&
EEE’J

ok 2]

-Iéiﬁ}ﬁhir-l}
N
% 5

‘ﬂ]]

@EEF@“MEEJ

3

B¢

o |2
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! Ww

[ 2l A
S HE I 2

S o e 2D
@}%ﬁﬂﬂﬂkﬁﬁq

%r‘?m@%}

Jees
SH
<t
W
o

B o} SV S A
TRt 5

U OSDBEEE

s

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
EERRAEINEZEM 2B E
Eﬁ% BEER_EZHNE

Please refer to D.3.1 and D.3.3 above for details.
FEHES M EEED.8.1%D.3.31 ¢
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TEER®E
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
E REMUNERATION
M
ENl The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

7 Ko % BE O 7K R A AR

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

The Company should have a formal and transparent policy on Director’s remuneration and other remuneration related
matters. The procedure for setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages

should be formal and transparent.

AAEREENE LEMEGMARNEEHEERAMABARNBER  BRELCAMLERENRRF - IAHIETEHH
TEEMS RE2BEEHITBNBER -

of reference should include:

FMEESERESE S HERRE

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
RAREERSRERBAEND
BEETINIK 2R S R4 - MBLERSLIE
M B AR R A9 12 I AT 5 B 2R
® - MEEFGROES

- review and approve the
management’ s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
HEEESMAICEFHIER
miga R EEEENH I E

2 .
oA

E.1.1 | The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about
consult the chairman and/or chief proposals relating to the remuneration packages and other human
executive about their remuneration resources issues of the Directors and senior management, including
proposals for other executive but not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as
directors and should have access to well as policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
independent professional advice if FNEEGERNESREREBEABZTMNERZRAMANER
necessary. FRE(BEETRAETE  EZEASEZT  ULKBERKERE
HNE B & R H AN TT E B BRATBR)EAEFENER -

EBEBRAERRRATHER - 05

FE FNEERREUSKELEE e The emoluments of Directors and senior management have been

BR - determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the
profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions during
the year.
RRRIZEEZEREREBAEMSERBEARNATZTH - BH
KFERBEARNBEHZBERKE  WRREFARARZ&FH
AR R TTISIRIBMEE ©

E.1.2 | The remuneration committee’s terms C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and

structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management.

No Director and senior management can determine his own

remuneration.

EEQERUFNEEGHEURLEARAEENERERAR

aﬁ\ﬁgﬂgﬁ%&@&%zgﬁ cEEREREBASHTEETHE
\ “ﬁ o

e The current members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David (Chairman), Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong.
FNEEGREXNERE (B IHFNTES D ATEHEL
H(ERE) - BIFTEEEERMAEE KL -

e The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREeFER FWLESIFEGNEEIERLIERNES

e |n 2022, the Remuneration Committee met twice and attendance of
individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in the year
is summarised below:

RITZZF  FHEESSBEMA  FHEZESEMKEMT
FERBE®RAT
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LEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX R (E) PEERER
E12 — either to determine, with delegated Number of
(cont’d) responsibility, or to make Attendance
() recommendations to the board Committee members ZEEHRE HERE
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and Cheng Fu Kwok, David L 2/2
senior management; (Chairman) (F/E)
UTMEZ —  EESSERE Tan Chor Kee (ceased on BREE (R =T = —4F 2/2
T EEENATEERSRE 30 September 2022) NA=+HEEE)
i@/\ﬁﬂ’]#ﬁ@ﬂﬁk PACE S Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2l m] {5 2/2
2 1E Bl %MT%?&% MEREAN Ho Teck Cheong (appointed 1aJ{ES (R —F = — 4 1/
8 E@ S 3 on 1 April 2022) WA —HEZE)

recommend to the board on the
remuneration of non-executive
directors;
RERTESHFTFIHMEZTTIR
M

consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZERERDANOEM - AN
HHRERBEARSEEREM
AL B0 1R PR IR 1

review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;

AT K BE A B B2 2K Bl A% IR B S ok
ZEMAZNEEEE

review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for
misconduct; and

WA REEBEEITRAKE MR
BIBREEHEESMYRHNEE
ZHE &

ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.
%ﬁ&ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ BEE AT
FLHEEBTERSOFH -

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable
to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board
for information.

FNEZEE G EIRRARERABITARE - FNEZEGARE
ERRENHEERLRARIESSEMN -

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review:

EOESER  FMZESNTHERANT :

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2022;
Y- T _FRBEErEENSRAEERREEMMN
%nﬁz ;

(o) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff; and

BHIIERARTARTESRSREEABNTHARE : &

(c) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-
based bonus policy.

FHRMERRRRFERR ZBEBEK -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

%ﬁ@ﬂ@éﬁAE%EZHﬁEW CAREBEEENATES RS
REBABNEFMNGTE  BEFESENG  RASEMNEEES
”E(@%Eskiﬂtﬂsﬁ%iifﬂ’]ﬁ* ) - WL TTE ) B
MESFSRHEZERZERBLARMINOETH - BN HAOR
1 S B DA S SR B A B A BB L B 1R PR R A ©

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration
payable to members of senior management for the year under
review are set out on pages 215 to 218 and page 296 of this annual
report.

REEER  AHEAEEREMALHTEEERAARALY
HNBERAFRE2ISEEFE218H K F 2968 °
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TEER®E
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
E.1.3 | The remuneration committee should C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
make available its terms of reference, on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
explaining its role and the authority FMEE G2 BESRED ZEHN AR B KB ATE -
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
website and the company’s website. include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
FMWNE B G RESZATA KRB policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and the senior
W EFAREEESE BEEACK management, and determining with delegated responsibility, the
EEESERMES - remuneration packages of all executive Directors and the senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives of the Board resolved from time to
time.
FNEE S T ERAOERARAIEE RS REBAB ZHM
HERRERNESGELESR  W2REFSIRIRZLER
BTt EEETENEET  BEE@ENRTESRSRAERE
ABRFHES  UHMIERTESTNTFHRAESSREEH -
E.1.4 | The remuneration committee should C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support
be provided with sufficient resources to and implements the approved remuneration packages and other
perform its duties. human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration
FTHEEERERGTEERNEIT Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to
HBE - independent advice at the Company’s expense if considered
necessary.
ANBRBEERBITEXELPITEFMNEES G2 HMT
BREMADEREBARE - FTHEEENAIRERREFTER
SRBYUFEEER - BAHAREXM -
E.1.5 |The company should disclose the C e Director’s fees are reviewed every 3 years by the Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration policy, details
of any remuneration payable to
members of senior management by
band and other remuneration related
matters in the annual reports.
NRIEERFRAREE EHMBOR,
REMERBRESRERBAENMS
G R A EE AR EIR

Committee with reference to the financial condition of the Company
and the remuneration offered for similar position in comparable
companies and put forward to the Board for approval.
EFHeHFNEE ST =FRi —X  Y2RARINHMBHRR
%E‘rﬁﬂtbﬁ@ﬁ?%ﬁﬁHH&%@FE%%%Z%M CWRREEFEH
)

Remuneration and incentive payment of Executive Directors are
reviewed and approved annually by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to their individual performance, the financial condition
of the Company and the remuneration offered for similar position in
comparable companies.
BITESHFNNRRESEFEHTMEE SR RME - I
SRE[RIRI - D78 I ISAR S R E A 7] LB A B8 R AL
Fréa T2 % -

Please refer to notes 11 and 44 in the Notes to Financial Statements
for details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
EARRERATMN FEF20MBRRMT11R44 0
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX BR(E) PEERER
F SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
iR 2
F.1 Effective communication
BRUBE
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.
EEGRATERIFERFYUE  LERERRBAFAGHAMBRRAES RBRFERERFEMOMH2E -
F.1.1 The Company should have a policy C e The Board adopted a dividend policy which aims to allow

on payment of dividends and should

disclose it in the annual report.

éﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁw
E o

shareholders to share the Company’s success whilst preserving
the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.
The Board devotes to achieving prudent capital management and
meeting shareholders’ expectations with the dividend policy.
NAIERMABREREK EEEBRRDZARAARIKLEXNR - BKTE
BARBNRBESANMBERRAIEREE - EZTFHNHRBB
TREBFEHEENERER  WHERRAHEL -

Under this policy, the normal dividend payout ratio of the Company
is about 30% of the net profit attributable to Shareholders in any
financial year but no more than 50% thereof unless otherwise
approval by the Board.

RIBZBR - NRRBPAME A B IE E 4G T IR AV R R B F
ENB0%MR BN - BRIFEEGSITHE - BRITEBEBKRE
FEAE % T B FE8Y50%.

The declaration of dividends, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, is subject to the discretion of the Board in considering
the following factors in each financial year:
BREMNER(THEEATHE ARBRLZHELREETING
ES R FERBEEEATEE :

= Financial performance and liquidity conditions;

BHRBARREDESMR

— Retained earnings and distributable reserves;

B 2R

— Company’s debt level to equity ratio and return on equity;

AR A B R SR R b R AR AR B R K

— Dividend received from the Company’s associates and
subsidiaries;

PEA X B BB 8 X B RN B BB X R ER B AR S

— Expected working capital requirement and capital expenditure;

BEMEBESBRNERRM

— Future expansion, other investment plans and other funding
requirements;

RARIER - RREAIINEMESHZR

— Global economic condition and other internal or external
factors, including any restrictions under the applicable laws and
regulations and the Articles or contractual restrictions as may
apply from time to time; and
IRIRECOBEARR - R E MR ER Sk HMNED H & (BL4E B AT R AR 5
FRRDERIER R ERMRRE N ERREISE LRED © &

- Othe( factors*that the Directors deem appropriate.
EXRREENEMEE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA

71



72

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
F.1.1 e Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
(cont’'d) ordinary resolution of shareholders at an AGM and must not exceed
&) the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may, without
the approval of shareholders, also declare an interim dividend if it
appears to them that they are justified by the distributable profits of
the Company.
AR TAEROABRE N AERTEAFAR LU EBRERE
BREHE - ENEBBERRRANEE  #E R A ALERE
#E  ERERB/REBEARAAHIRENESENPHRE -
e The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
BEEEHTHRFIREBUE
F.2 Shareholders meetings

BERRE

Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA

The Company should ensure that shareholders are given sufficient notice of shareholders meetings and are familiar with the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and should arrange to address questions from shareholders in the shareholders

meetings.
NEBHABRREARERETRRRES B
BRI EX=

o WEBRRRAT AR E S NETRANFARF - FARELTHERRARE L

F.21

For each substantially separate issue
at a general meeting, a separate
resolution should be proposed by the
chairman of that meeting. The company
should avoid “bundling” resolutions
unless they are interdependent and
linked forming one significant proposal.
Where the resolutions are “bundled”,
the company should explain the
reasons and material implications in the
notice of meeting.

ERRAE L SZTFENERE
BEZAEEREAIRERESR - BRI
BRARBERZBEMEEKTFRESE &
RRF R —IHAEBRNEZE - BAIRAE
BRI DRRR - S E2[HILIAZE
RLQAEESEBERERALE
R RNERTE -

C

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of
the Company on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual Directors.

BEERBUNEE HEARARBRRAE FUERDRZERIR
2 BPREZRAEANES-
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEKX fR(E) PEERER
F.2.2 |= The chairman of the board C e The 2022 AGM at which the external auditor attended was

should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the
chairman should invite another
member of the committee to be
available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting.

é% ITRELERRBF X

g ﬁi&i%%’%iﬁa S
g REZESGREMEME
SBg(RAEERMNE)NEFH
F-EBHZEQ@XIRARY
B -EBEFEIRERSS—RZE
BHE  ZALTHAERRAEFK
2 FREIZRER -

— The chairman of the independent

board committee (if any) should
also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’
approval.
SR THNBYZEEWAN
TEIEEEMBAENTRSHHE
RERE LRIEMBE - BIBER
5 ok A fa] L B 45 98 7 AR SR L
5 o

- The company’s management
should ensure the external
auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
/AETE@%EJ%E&%M%V%{EW
HERREAFRE  DEFH
erI{’F %’%%V%{Eﬂixﬁi&ﬁ

B ETBUR A R BET ) B
’\E%F:ﬁi g

H}Eﬁ}

convened on 29 June 2022. A general meeting (“GM”) of the
Company was also held on 4 May 2022 for approving the continuing
connected transactions.

T CFRFRAFASER T FANAZFTNBEEIT  H
BERBMAMBEHE - ARATFR-F__FHAHARTTRR
R (RERE]) - BUBEBBISERERS ©

e Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2022 AGM and GM are set

out below:
TRHEIEFHE T __FREAFAGRBREAGZFHE :
2022 AGM
—ECCF GM
Name of Directors L RRAFAE RRAE
Teo Siong Seng RINE 1/ 1/1
Chung Pui King, Efx 11 11
Rebecca
Kwa Wee Keng FEE 11 il
Chan Kwok Leung BREIR 11 11
(resigned on (R-F-=F
24 February 2023) Z A=+ AEHT)
Tan Chor Kee (retired on ~ REE (R-F-——#F 11 il
30 September 2022) NA=1HREE)
Cheng Fu Kwok, David P& 11 1/1
Lau Ho Kit, lvan ERIE 1/1 11
Ho Teck Cheong BE= 11 1/1

e In 2022, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of
Nomination Committee), the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Company’s
external auditor attended the 2022 AGM and were available to
answer questions during the meeting.

R-ZZE_—F BEFEFRERHRIRBZESERHE) - %*Fé,\ =
ITF - FHMEESERARARRINEREMATEE T
REBAFARE - WrlHNE LEIERRE -

e In 2022, the Chairman of the independent board committee
attended the GM and was available to answer questions during the
meeting.

RZZB__F BUEFZESIRHERRAT  WARGL
@ERMA -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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TEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
F.2.3 |The chairman of a meeting should C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for conducting poll

ensure that an explanation is provided
of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any
questions from shareholders on voting
by poll.
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by Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the
2022 AGM and GM.
BUERRUARZEFAKRANEFNFARBEER_ZE__FRE
BFERG RRR ARG FLIEFRRME -

At the 2022 AGM and GM, the Chairman of the meetings put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in
accordance with the Company’s Article.
RZBZ_FERRAFAGRBRREAE F » KEFFEREAR
AIERMA] RASREAZEHRBRETREARNKAR -

Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
the 2022 AGM and GM.
RARBRNBFPETLRIREEZAR T __FREAFKAE
EBRRAESHEEE  UBEREERMEZLY -

All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings
were taken by poll. o
FIARARAIRRAE LREZRARYBBRETANETE

TR

Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.
REXRAEREBEHNAR R RB R o
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The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45, 19 and 20, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 114 to 115.

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2
cents per ordinary share (2021: HK11 cents per ordinary
share) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board
did not recommend the payment of a final special dividend
(2021: HK5 cents per ordinary share) and an interim
special dividend (2021: HK20 cents per ordinary share)
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Together with an
interim dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share (2021:
HK7 cents per ordinary share), total dividend for the year
would be HK6 cents per ordinary share (2021: HK43
cents per ordinary share).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Friday, 23 June 2023 (“2023
AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at 2023 AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
19 June 2023 to Friday, 23 June 2023, both days
inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be effected during such period. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at 2023 AGM, all transfers of shares
of the Company, duly accompanied by the completed
transfer forms and all relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 16 June 2023. The
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 23 June 2023, the
record date of 2023 AGM, will be entitled to attend and
vote at 2023 AGM.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 5 July 2023 to Friday, 7 July
2023, both days inclusive, and no transfer of the shares
of the Company will be effected during such period. In
order for a shareholder of the Company to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the completed transfer
forms and all relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 July 2023. Subject to the
approval by the Company’s shareholders at the 2023
AGM, the proposed final dividend is payable on Friday, 21
July 2023 to those shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 7 July
2023 (the record date).
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from
pages 8 to 13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5
and Frequently Asked Questions from pages 14 to 20
of this Annual Report, which discussion forms part of
this Report of the Directors for purposes of Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The outlook of the Company’s business is
discussed throughout this Annual Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and are in addition to the matters referred
to in the Chairman’s Statement and Frequently Asked
Questions of this Annual Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market
Competition Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the demand
of dry freight containers of the Group. In 2022,
certain major economies increased their central
bank rates to fight inflation, it had significantly
affected consumption demand from the second
half of 2022. In addition, the unexpected Russia’s
war in Ukraine leading to the soar in energy price
and continuously affecting overall market sentiment.
According to International Monetary Fund’s January
2023 World Economic Outlook Update, it projected
a global growth rate of 2.9 percent in 2023, which
is below the historical average of 3.8 percent
between 2000 to 2019.
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Political tensions between the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”/“China”) and the US have not
been eased. Further, the Ukraine war triggers US,
European Union, Britain and some of their allies
to impose sanctions against Russia. As a result of
the above, global trade and economy had been
affected and expected to be continuously affecting
the world economy this year, it in turn may affect
the Group’s container manufacturing business in
China.

The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in the PRC. Good market demand in 2021
attracted new players to the market, competitors
may attempt to gain market share by offering
lower prices especially when the market demand
slows down. The Company may be required to
reduce prices when facing competition, which may
affect the Group’s profitability. For the purpose
of reducing its dependency on trade-driven
market and focusing on developing higher-margin
specialized containers as well as becoming a
container solution provider, the Group is on the way
transforming to “New Singamas” which is focusing
on developing green related products.
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Product Diversification and Market
Expansion Risks

To reduce the reliance on single market, the Group
put more resources on developing customised
containers for meeting various demand across
different industries. The level of market acceptance
on the new products and the Group’s capability
in meeting technical requirements set forth the
products would affect the product diversification
and market expansion process. On the other hand,
as the customised containers generally enjoy higher
profit margin, which may attract competitors or
new players to enter into the market. The Group
continues to recruit engineers and technicians from
various sources for strengthening the research and
development team in order to differentiate itself with
the competitors. In addition to self-development,
the Group cooperated with other patent owners for
entering into unique markets directly and effectively.

Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence for meeting
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover, in
view of continuing increase in wage rate in China,
the Group will increase the level of automation in the
production process in order to reduce manpower
requirements in the future and to minimise the
labour cost.
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4. Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow interest rate
risks.

a. Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the credit risk and impairment

assessment are set out in note 40b to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings,
if any and ensures compliance with loan
covenants or to timely negotiate with the
lenders if any non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
40b to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, bank
balances and cash, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. To mitigate the
foreign currency risk, the Group entered into
certain forward contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
of the Company monitors the movement of
the foreign currency closely and will consider
hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
40b to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which is available at the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. As a listed
company in Hong Kong, the share of the Company is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
8 July 1993, the Company continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange including the
disclosure requirements, corporate governance code and
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Company is required to maintain a register of interests
in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is
obliged to the disclosure requirement of inside information.
The Board will monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.
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The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental technologies to ensure its operations meet
the standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.

To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the
Group has registered its domain name and its trademark
have been applied for or registered in various classes in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
takes all appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual
property rights.

During the year, the Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
its business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, suppliers
and customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and services to its customers. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard. The Group also organised staff-friendly activities
for employees, in order to provide communication
opportunities among staff, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 310 to 312 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 46
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2022, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$104,444,000
(2021: US$162,013,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
45, 19 and 20, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$ 369,770,000 (2021: US$438,171,000)
and without interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. As the Group was debt free as at 31
December 2022 and 2021, calculation of gearing ratio and
net debt to equity ratio was not applicable.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US Dollars
(“US$”). To match with the revenues stream, the Group’s
interest-bearing debts will be mainly in US$, if any.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. To mitigate the foreign currency risk, the
Group entered into certain forward contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk.

BANK BORROWINGS

The Group and the Company did not have bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following continuing connected

transactions during 2022:

*‘J’nﬁ@gﬁg
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(1)

On 14 August 2020, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2020”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL and its subsidiaries (“PIL
Group”)), for the provision of container depot and
logistics services to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Services Contract 2020 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Services
Contract 2020 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Master
Services Contract 2020 took effect from 14 August
2020 and expired on 31 December 2022.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2020 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 14
August 2020 in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 30 December 2022, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a renewed master
services contract (the “Master Services Contract
2023”) with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group),
for the renewal of the Master Service Contract
2020 for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025 in
relation to the provision of container depot and
logistics services to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Services Contract 2023 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Services
Contract 2023 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2023 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published on
30 December 2022 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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On 18 March 2022, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a transportation
framework agreement (the “Transportation
Framework Agreement”) with PIL Logistics (China)
Co., Ltd. (“PIL Logistics China”) (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PIL) in relation to the provision of
transportation solution services by PIL Logistics
China for the containers manufactured by the
Group. In view that PIL is a connected person of
the Company, the entering into the Transportation
Framework Agreement constituted a connected
transaction. As the Transportation Framework
Agreement involved transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Transportation Framework
Agreement took effect from 18 March 2022 and
will expire on 31 December 2024. On 24 October
2022, the Board resolved to revise the annual caps
for the three years ending 31 December 2024.

As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant
to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of
the proposed annual caps for the transactions
exceeds 0.1% but all of them are less than 5%.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Transportation Framework Agreement were
subject to annual reporting, announcement, and
annual review but are exempted from shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcements published on 18 March 2022, 25
March 2022 and 27 October 2022 respectively in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 2 November 2021, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2022”)
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sales of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that
PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Master Purchase Contract 2022
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Purchase Contract 2022 involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 18 March
2022, the Company and PIL entered into a revised
Master Purchase Contract 2022 (the “Revised
Master Purchase Contract 2022”) to extend the
term of the Master Purchase Contract 2022 from
the original expiry date of 31 December 2022 to
31 December 2024 and to revise the annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and to set
the annual caps for the years ending 31 December
2023 and 2024.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual caps for the transactions exceeds
5%. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the Revised Master Purchase Contract 2022
are subject to annual reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. After obtaining the approval from
the independent shareholders on 4 May 2022,
the Revised Master Purchase Contract 2022
took effect from 4 May 2022 and will expire on
31 December 2024. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcements published on 2 November 2021,
15 February 2022 and 18 March 2022 respectively
and the circulars dated 25 November 2021 and
14 April 2022 respectively in compliance with the
Listing Rules.
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On 31 January 2022, Teamwill International Limited
(“TIL”) (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a container leasing agreement (the
“Container Leasing Agreement”) with PIL, for the
lease of containers from TIL to PIL. In view that PIL
is a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Container Leasing Agreement constituted
a connected transaction. As the Container Leasing
Agreement involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Container Leasing Agreement
took effect from 31 January 2022 and will expire on
31 December 2032.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Container
Leasing Agreement are subject to annual reporting,
announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the term
of the Containers Leasing Agreement exceeds three
years, pursuant to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules,
independent financial adviser had been appointed
by the Company to review the Containers Leasing
Agreement and confirmed that it is normal
business practice for agreements of this type to
be of such duration. Details of these continuing
connected transactions have been disclosed in the
announcement published on 31 January 2022 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (1) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions between the Group and
PIL Group for the provision of container depot and logistics
services to PIL Group were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in accordance
with the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole and on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year ended
31 December 2022 was US$2,463,879 (equivalent to
approximately HK$19,218,256) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,000,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions
in paragraph (3) above have been approved by the
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion
that those continuing connected transactions between
the Group and PIL Logistics China for the provision of
transportation solution services by PIL Logistics China for
the containers manufactured by the Group were entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, conducted on normal commercial terms and
entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole
and on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMB10,758,074 (equivalent to approximately
US$1,691,521) and did not exceed the annual cap
of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$3,144,654).
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The aforesaid continuing connected transaction in
paragraph (4) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions for the sales of the
Equipment from the Group to PIL Group were entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, conducted on normal commercial terms and
entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole
and on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended 31 December
2022 was US$105,765,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$824,967,000) and did not exceed the annual
cap of US$120,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$936,000,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction in
paragraph (5) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that
those continuing connected transactions for the lease of
containers from TIL to PIL were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in accordance
with the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole and on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year ended
31 December 2022 was US$1,150,026 and did not
exceed the annual cap of US$9,200,000.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditor of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The external auditor has reported to the
Board and confirmed that for the year 2022 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval of
the Board; (i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (iii) have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(iv) the continuing connected transactions in paragraphs
(1), (3), (4) and (5) above have not exceeded the relevant
caps as disclosed in the announcements dated 14 August
2020, 27 October 2022, 18 March 2022 and 31 January
2022 respectively.

The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2022, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Group and were set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report (“Annual Report
2022”). Including in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Annual Report 2022 in respect of related
party transactions, sales to immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, transportation services fee to a
fellow subsidiary and rental expense to a fellow subsidiary
were the continuing connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirms that it has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, no asset of the Group was
pledged as securities to any third parties (2021: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2022, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The Group does
not provide any guarantee to any third parties and does
not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022
(2021: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie (appointed on 1 January 2023)

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee* (retired on 30 September 2022)

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung” (redesignated from Executive
Director to Non-executive Director with effect from
1 January 2022 and resigned on 24 February 2023)

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan*

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*

. Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election. Pursuant to articles 92 and 92A of the Articles,
Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong
shall retire from office at the 2023 AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to article 98 of the Articles, Ms. Siu Wai Yee,
Winnie will hold office until the 2023 AGM and, being
eligible, offer herself for election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules
from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and considered them as
independent.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)
Current directors of Subsidiaries:

CHEN Nengxiang
CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
DING Zhong Fu

LAl Zhi Yong

Lilian LEE

LIU Kecheng

PAN Chun Ling
QIAN Ming

SIU Wai Yee, Winnie
SONG Yan Yan
TEO Siong Seng
TEO Teng Seng
WENG Sheng Qiang
XU Jin Yong

Phil YU

ZHANG Tian Bao
ZHAO Bing

ZHAO Xiaobing

Resigned as directors of Subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report:

CHAN Kwok Leung
CHEN Tao

SUN Da Peng

WU Bing Hong
WU Ding Xiang

YIP Ching Han
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
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into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c) 2<FRIBAAR R BRI Z s AR
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in the |~ :
Listing Rules, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:
Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) ZA&QTEBER (KRB
Percentage
Number of Shares/ of Total
Underlying Shares Held Issued
BEZRG/ HERGHE Shares
Personal  Corporate Total g
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest B R{TRA
i 54 BARR ARG Hits R [27i)>
Mr. Teo Siong Seng Beneficial Owner 42,377,250 - - 42,377,250 1.78%
RINE T4 ERBBA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Beneficial Owner 195,291 - - 195,291 0.01%
Rebecca
@Rzt ERBBA

SESSEEH o BEKELEARAR
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ExgRE

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares and underlying Shares.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such
Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which
(c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above), had
an interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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FTERRZ2ER

RN_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8 BEAQF
Z(BHRAE KRN FE336KFE 2 ELM
WA URBRESEIA DA EITHAR
Frsn» TOATFBRREIESENRG, - HE
B EEZECESRAR | —BEEETE
EHBIERIN ERHOREBEROERSZ
BRXRE  WEAREBGESMAEGEG)E
XVEBZE2 K3 EMA ARG HBEHAT -

Number of Shares

R EB
Percentage of
Direct Indirect Total Issued
Name Notes Interest Interest Shares
H2WE BT
& Hiat BEiEER BEES OB
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (1) - 993,825,345 41.72%
(“Temasek”)
REHIERFA)ERAB(AFH])
PIL Pte. Ltd. @) - 993,825,345 41.72%
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited ) 993,825,345 - 41.72%
(“P”_Jl)
REMBER 2B (A FMEED
Notes: Btat

(1) Temasek is deemed interested in the Shares held by PIL via vy
2 Investments VCC (“Ivy 2°). Ivy 2 is a controlling shareholder
of PIL Pte. Ltd.. Ivy 2 is controlled by Heliconia Capital
Management Pte Ltd. (“Heliconia”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of 65 Equity Partners Pte. Ltd. (“65EP’). In turn, 66EP
is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Temasek. 65EP and
Heliconia are independently-managed Temasek portfolio entities.

@) A total of 993,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL which is
100% owned by PIL Pte. Ltd..

(1) K5 #5317 8Ivy 2 Investments VCC([Ivy 2))#%18 4
X FHHBRFER D FHEEER © lvy 22PIL
Pte. Ltd.B9#ERARE ° Ivy 2HHeliconia Capital
Management Pte Ltd. ([Heliconial) BT#E#l o if1
Heliconia;265 Equity Partners Pte. Ltd.([65EP])
R BT 2 BB B L~ F] o 65EPHIZ KB 85 0 R 1
2EW1E 7] - TI65EPHIHeliconia g 7 &1
BIK IR B A BB -

@) 4421 75993,825,345/8 1R 17 77 H1 K FHH iS5 H 1275

B - A FRHZ 100% 8 RIEPIL Pte. Ltd.#F
,g °
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ExgRE

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2022, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than transactions disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” above
and in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements
(which were approved by the independent non-executive
Directors and in the opinion of the Directors were carried
out on normal commercial terms and in ordinary course
of the Group’s business), no material transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its immediate
and ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought
against its directors and officers. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:
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Percentage
Bo
Percentage of purchases attributable to the AEBE & AHEEAMGEERE 19%
Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to the AEBE A AHEEEATLHEERE 49%
Group'’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to the AEBZARFPAGEXERE 14%
Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to the AEBRAARRFPAGEXERE 32%

Group'’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.

REAN > FSEFHNEBEALRETARRGL
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased a total of 34,714,000 ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange, with the aggregate consideration
paid (before transaction expenses) amounting to
USD2,958,000. All the shares repurchased were
subsequently cancelled. As at 31 December 2022, the
total number of shares of the Company in issue was
2,382,205,918.

BE - HENEE EHES

REBEE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—BLFE
W ARalRABRATEE S 34,714,000
ReE@mlk BENCBREXRSHAIAA
2,958,000k 7T ° FIEE L 2 ki BT
H - RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H " KRQF
BT 42 852,382,205,918% °

Particulars of the share repurchase are as follows: RIDEER 2 BT ¢
Aggregate
Consideration
(before
transaction
Number of ordinary expenses)
Month of repurchase in 2022 shares repurchased Purchase price per share BRE
“ECEBEAHR EREERYE SREEE (RSB X A
Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$) Us$
&= (8) BECET) E
October 16,256,000 0.67 0.62 1,335,000
+ A
November 18,238,000 0.72 0.63 1,603,000
+-At
December 220,000 0.72 0.72 20,000
+=A%
34,714,000 2,958,000
Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 B EXFIEEEN  REBEE-_ZT-_—_F+=

December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 21 to
26 under the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group, including
subsidiaries employed 2,970 (2021: 3,850) full-time
employees; its associates and joint ventures employed
880 (2021: 869) full-time employees in total. Staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
US$91,824,000 (2021: US$125,700,000) for the year. All
full-time salaried employees, except for factory workers
and contract employees, are being paid on a monthly
basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus. Factory
workers are being remunerated based on a basic wage
plus production incentive. The Group ensures that the pay
levels of its employees are competitive and employees are
awarded on a performance related basis within the general
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To
further enhance the capability of its human resource, the
Group provides on-the-job training to its employees.
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Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a labour
union.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 15 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Singamas Container Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 114 to 309, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

RARETEE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2R E

HAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHET MR EFERBET SR

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment

HEREIBABRNNE  BERRBUREAREE ZRENL

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating
to the manufacturing segment as a key audit matter
due to the involvement of significant judgements and
estimates in determining the recoverable amounts of
the respective cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets relating to the manufacturing segment have
been allocated.

MR EETREED AN E - BB KRE NI
NEREEEMAKENZREELE TN AIRE S
RS R BRI R fAE AT ERES A
BRI - BE KRB R REEE 2B
P REAREFIE

In view of the financial performance of one CGU
of the manufacturing segment during the year, the
management of the Group performed impairment
assessment on the relevant CGU which contain
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets by preparing value in use calculations.
As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the value in use calculations require the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU, based on key inputs, such as
the expected selling prices, budgeted sales volume,
gross profit margin, growth rate, and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
ERNEED TN —EREEL BTN FANT KR
R AEEEEERARMEEABEAER BB
EETYE BERREBEUARFEAEEENEBR
SEHETTETREN G - NEEMBREMT4
PREZER E%Fﬁﬁ”ﬁi$ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
TREHEE ENX  EBRIXNEENTREEH
REAE HTZRELETHEARKRRER
£ UFtERE -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing
segment included:

RITHWE - BB KR EAREREREZBER
HAITHEARFBRIE

° Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s process and basis adopted in
preparing the value in use calculations of the
CGU, including key inputs;
TW”EFE%%ﬁiFﬁﬁﬁ@%1@#

BEREFEKANREFNKE - 21EERHE A
B :

° Comparing the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume and gross profit
margin used against historical performance,
recent sales transactions and the
management’s budget;

BERANEHRERE  BEHEENERNKH
G MHEERIMEREREETT
HEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARESEE

FAEENEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RTHET MR EBERBFTER

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment (Continued)

HEREIBERNYNE  BERRBURCEABREE ZRENMLE

As disclosed in notes 4, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the net carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing
segment for which the management has performed
impairment assessment as at 31 December 2022
are US$7,902,000 and US$872,000 respectively.
No impairment losses in respect of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets have been
recognised by the Group during the year.

MR HIRERM T4 - 16 RATFTIEEE - 120224
128310 @ B EEETREMNGHNERESEE
MR BEMRERERAEEENRIIFED
A /7,902,000% 7T % 872,000 7T - NEBRFR
RERYE - MERREMEBEEERRRER

18
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the growth
rate applied by the management of the
Group, by referring to the industry information
and discussing with the management of
the Group on revenue growth strategies in
respect of the CGU;

BABETEER  WEASEEREN®
FRRSELETHRAERER - FEXR
SEHEEBRANERRELAIE

Working with our internal valuation expert
in assessing the appropriateness of the
discount rate applied by the management of
the Group;

HEAITARBEEEREGE  FHEAEEEE
BERANFTHEEZSRRE

Comparing the assumptions adopted in the
prior year’s management budget with actual
results for the current year, investigating
significant variances identified and considering
the impact on the current year’s impairment
assessments; and

M ETFEEECREPRANRRESZFHN
BERERETHR  AEERNERER
W EEHARNFERENEOTE © R

Evaluating the potential impact on the value
in use calculations of the CGUs based on the
reasonably possible changes of the budgeted
sales volume, growth rate and discount rate
applied by the management of the Group.
BREAEEEEEEANEREHERE  BK
EMTERNESIEA L FHEHREE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuecd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuecd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022

BB MBI SR M RRBRE
Z2EFE

HEERAKBKLE S ERNRE
HIEL&Ew - REMEDROHEFSR
EREEATEEFEEXBEREAH
BVERTHEE M - M Al e BB R
SENKERLERNELTARE
MRRITRB/TFEERNTEEN - 8
BUEAZEMBETRBEEREL
ERAMBHRRTINEERE - BRE
ERARETRE  AIRNTTEREEZNE
R RINEREEN KB ®RE B
HIFFTERIS BT RRE » AT » R2K
FERBEAURERAEE R ILFE

gz o

AHEFAMBHRRNERI®RT N
EBNMAR  BREE  UREEHM
BHREARODAARREBERISZME
I8 o

RAKEANERAEXBEDNONKE
HEDRER - BENERTRE - AE
U BBRRERER - X1TRE
BE  EBNRITEESE - A17(E
HWEFTBRAEZHMEME -

b FEIRIN - ANITERIR B T 5818
BHEE - REZH EXFAREAS B
BAITEZE PE HARESNERNEAR



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuecd)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEmEkHMEZENRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ = F = —4#+—=-H =+—HIFFZE

2022 2021
=== —E-—F
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Hiat TER FET
Revenue E - 5 775,983 | 1,151,764
Cost of Sales SHE AR (629,324) (826,061)
Gross profit EF 146,659 325,703
Other income H A 7 12,681 10,484
Distribution expenses DIHE A (18,361) (24,841)
Administrative expenses THEA (34,215) (59,390)
Finance costs % ER 8 (366) (1,083)
Other gains and losses H bz & E5 18 9 (17,687) 2,240
Gain from derecognition of IR RERIRE SHR AN AT 2 /Y
financial assets measured at B RELE EAIF I E
amortised cost 27 - 27,001
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% - #28 & %45 2 ME
and equipment Bk - (2,000)
Share of results of associates FEAGEE S N R 2 ¥4E 1,349 761
Share of results of joint ventures JEIEEBEREZFEE (135) 196
Profit before taxation BR L AT A R 10 89,925 279,071
Income tax expense FriStiIER 13 (33,360) (70,606)
Profit for the year REERF 56,565 208,465
Profit for the year attributable to: 7~ E {5 EF) :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIL 3 46,340 186,802
Non-controlling interests FEIZE R AR R M A 10,225 21,663
56,565 208,465
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEkEMEZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 {2 —F — —F 1+ _—H=+—HI-F/E

2022 2021
—=-—= SRS
Note US$’000 US$’000
Hiat FExn FET
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 E Wz ()
(expenses)
Items that will not be reclassified TE®E#H 7 EEZ1EBHH
to profit or loss: ==
Fair value gain (loss) on equity AEBEFAHEMEE
instrument at fair value through a2 #m T AR
other comprehensive income Tﬂi‘% TE )R EE
(“FVTOCI”), net of tax effect = (BR) 2,677 (687)
Surplus on revaluation of property, — #1% - #2S RREBEAKE
plant and equipment upon transfer V¥R ELEERES
to investment properties - 6,627
Items that may be reclassified @~ EHZUEEREFT T EZE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEE
Exchange differences arising on AEINEFTE ERR
translation (4,190) 1,029
Release of exchange translation E— B R R 2 INE
reserve and other reserve upon §1 %{% N H b fE
disposal of an associate - 6,778
Release of exchange translation T — A ERERERCINE
reserve upon deregistration of a BiEH
joint venture - (15)
Other comprehensive (expense) FRHEM2ME () K
income for the year (1,513) 13,732
Total comprehensive income FAZEWRRARE
for the year 55,052 222,197
Total comprehensive income EBEE2EW AR :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NE1 8 45,365 200,446
Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR Rt = 9,687 21,751
55,052 222,197
Basic earnings per share EXGRER US1.92 US7.73
15 cents E1ll | cents ZALl

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 R=FE ==+ —-HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Kat FEx FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R REE 16 86,991 76,399
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 39,130 40,174
Investment properties REMEHE 18 35,330 37,913
Interests in associates REEERR 2w 19 15,768 18,114
Interests in joint ventures REeEBLEZER 20 6,302 7,031
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BEAnBEGAHMER
Wz Em T A 21 28,367 25,392
Financial asset at fair value through AR BEFFAEBZZ
profit and loss (“FVTPL”) TRIEE 22 3,044 3,246
Other receivables H i fE W IB 26 4,842 15,485
Trade receivables JE U BR 3k 25 10,798 -
Deposits for non-current assets FEMBEERS 23 94 806
230,666 224,560
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 24 105,662 209,814
Trade receivables JE U BR 3K 25 80,136 79,082
Prepayments and other receivables — Fa 15 K E fib & Uk 2518 26 24,324 41,820
Amounts due from associates N B el 34 424 -
Amounts due from joint ventures JEW A B EFIA 34 995 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMITA 35 - 202
Tax recoverable AT B 2 R IE 276 353
Cash and deposits with banks H& RIRITHEK 29 369,770 438,171
581,587 769,442
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ZEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2022 R —F - —F+—H=+—H

2022 2021
—=E== =SS
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Ktat FEx FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables JE T BR K 30 40,230 106,211
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 2,664 2,389
Accruals and other payables FEETE R K EH fth FE T BR K 32 50,367 64,361
Advances from customers TR BR X 33 37,704 46,171
Amount due to immediate holding ~ JE{T B A% A &) /18
company 28 62 6
Amounts due to associates AR NC Bzl 34 473 123
Amounts due to joint ventures JERT & B EFIA 34 7 5
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITA 35 461 S
Tax payable FETEEIR 3,161 23,249
135,129 242,515
Net current assets RBEEFE 446,458 526,927
Total assets less current EEABERARBERE
liabilities 677,124 751,487
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital N 36 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits E&hm 248,584 340,913
Other reserves HAth & 79,093 67,210
Equity attributable to owners RATIRREE S
of the Company 595,826 676,272
Non-controlling interests FE A A% SR 2 63,051 56,973
Total equity EREE 658,877 733,245
ZEIEFR c BHEELCEFRLAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBEMRRE
As at 31 December 2022 R=—FE - —F+—_H=+—H
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E -
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Bt FEx FET
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 31 3,473 2,740
Deferred tax liabilities BEREIBEAE 37 14,774 15,502
18,247 18,242
677,124 751,487

The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to &N FE114B 2 FE309E 2 MK EE

309 were approved and authorised for issue by the board FEe&W —T - == A+ 7 At /E RIZH#EE

of directors on 15 March 2023 and are signed on its &I » A NIEEFERKKEE
behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng R E Chung Pui King, Rebecca & il I
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F 1+ -HA=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRRRRELE
Exchange PRC Property  Investment Non-
Share  translation statutory  revaluation  revaluation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
HE HE ES #E 2R
Bx  FERG  tERR  ERERSE  ERERE  HBEE  ZHEd a8 RRER b
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
Txn Txn Txn Txn xn xn e T%n RE 5
(Note b) (Note g)
(Hiztn) (Hita)
At1 January 2021 R-E--£-f-A 268,149 13 16974 11,514 17,593 452) 183,801 497592 36,004 533,686
Proft forthe yeer RERE - - - - - - 1882 186802 2168 208465
Fair value loss on equity instrument at VIOCI, &A% BIEG AR 2ERE
net of tax effect JERTA(MRTEZE)
ZAnEEER - - - - (687) - = (687) = (687)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant % BERREE\RE
and equipment upon transfer toinvestment NI EBIEEERH
properties - - - 6,627 - - - 6,627 - 6,627
Release of exchange translation reserve and ~ (HE—BE AR ZINE
other reserve upon disposal of anassociate  TEEEREMEE = 1047 = = = (269) = 6778 S 6778
Release of exchange translation reserve upon s~ A ELERIZINE
deregistration of a joint venture nERE - (15) S S S S S (19) S (15)
Exchange diferences aisng on translation ~~ #ESNEEEE = 94 = = S = = 941 8 1,029
Total comprehensive income (expense) TEERENE L) 8%
for the year - 7973 - 6,627 687) (269) 186,802 200,446 21,751 222,197
Dividends paid to non-controling interests R TEERRRERKE = S S = = = = = 872 872
Dividends paid to owners of the Company XA ERER S = = = = = = (21,766) (21,766) S 21,766)
Transfer from accumulated profits BERZ:ET - - 7924 - - - (7,924 - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE=-F+-fA=1-R 268,149 7,986 24,898 18,141 16,906 (121) 340913 676,272 56,973 733245
Profit for the year RERET - = = = = = 46,340 46,340 10225 56,565
Fair value gain on eqity instrument at VTOC!, 24 BfEF AR 2EMRE
net of tax effect EETAMRRETE)
ARG - - - - 2677 - - 2677 = 2677
Exchange diferences aisng on ranslation £ ESNEEEE S (3652) S S S S S (3,652) (538) (4,190)
Total comprehensive (expense) income TEEREH IR EE
for the year - (3,652 - - 2677 - 46,340 45,365 9,687 55,062
Share repurchased and cancelled RIEE R - = S = S S 2,958) 2,958) S 2,958)
Forfeiture of dividend previously declared BUGENTE) - - - = = = 741 741 S 741
Dividends paid to non-controling interests ~~ TFEERRRERRS - = = = = = = = (3,609) (3,609)
Dividends paic to owners of the Company AR ARERS - - - - = - {2859 (123504) - (12350
Transfer from accumulated profits ERARHET = = 12,858 = = S (12,858) S S S
At 31 December 2022 R-E--F+-A=1-R 268,149 4334 37,756 18,141 19,583 (721) 248,584 595,826 63,051 658,877
e —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ = F = —4#+—=-H =+—HIFFZE

Notes:

(@)

(®)

Other reserve included the difference between consideration
and book value attributable of the related net assets arose when
acquiring additional shares of subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC’) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have
to provide for the PRC statutory reserves before declaring
dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board of
directors. The reserves are not distributable until the end of
the operation periods of the respective entities, at which time
any remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The reserves
can be used to offset accumulated losses of the entities or
increase capital upon approval from the PRC’s relevant authority.
The distributable profits of the subsidiaries are determined based
on their accumulated profits calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £l = FE = —4F 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—=-= S EE
Note US$’000 US$'000
HtaE FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 38 )
Profit before taxation BR B A 7 89,925 279,071
Adjustments for: THE
Depreciation of property, plant M - WEREREZ
and equipment e 7,780 7,655
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FREEENTE 3,912 3,432
(Gain) Loss on disposal of HEME - HEREH
property, plant and equipment < (Wz) 518 (525) 1,398
Loss on property, plant and T - eSS MR 1E
equipment written off Z BB 231 2,172
Share of results of associates JE(LEE RR 2 %A (1,349) (761)
Share of results of joint ventures EEaBELEZEE 135 (196)
Investment income wE WA (8,276) (5,738)
Interest expense FEZ W 287 928
Fair value loss (gain) on derivative MTEEMIAEZAR
financial instruments EEEE W) 5,686 (583)
Fair value loss (gain) on investment  EWEZ AR EE
properties E1E (k) 909 (142)
Fair value gain on financial asset BARBEFABREZ
at FVTPL TRMEEZAREE
W as (74) (149)
Gain from derecognition of 1R ERERIR R SR AR
financial assets measured at AENSREEMS
amortised cost e - (27,001)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—WBAR K= 38 - (412)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BE AR 2 W - (1,370)
Gain on deregistration of a joint HE—AERFE WS
venture - (769)
Allowance for credit losses, net of 1k B # ~ A %k
reversal i
- trade receivables from third - B= KR
parties (20) 82
— trade receivables from - Bt R E U BR 5K
associates - (208)
- other receivables — H M e kI8 (2) (10)
Adjustment to consideration HERKENAR
receivables 3,360 -
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% - #28 K& 15
and equipment VEREREES - 2,000
Unrealised exchange difference REIRER =58 2,376 =

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 £ = F = —4#+—=-H =+—HIFFZE

2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Operating cash flows before EELESEHAI2EE
movements in working capital BRE&RE 104,355 259,399
Decrease (increase) in inventories FER A (L) 95,261 (149,907)
Increase in trade receivables from 5 = 77 U BR FIE A1
third parties (11,142) (16,344)
Increase in trade receivables from  [F Z I B A &) fE UL BR X
fellow subsidiaries 0 (67) (162)
Decrease in trade receivables NS B
from associates 44 4,017
Decrease in prepayments and TENT e H A FE U 5k I8
other receivables B 19,364 23,761
(Decrease) increase in trade JE A~ BR 5K ORL ) 38 0
payables (65,992) 55,231
(Decrease) increase in accruals JEFtE A R HEMER
and other payables BRFRCREA) 1 N (14,097) 45,015
(Decrease) increase in advances TEUSBR K ORL ) 35 1N
from customers (816) 26,293
(Decrease) increase in advances BEEZER AR AR
from immediate holding CRUA) I BN
company (7,846) 7,971
Increase (decrease) in advances B Z M B A R FE IR X
from fellow subsidiaries 1250 Gk 2>) 11 (53)
Increase in advances from 2 2 R TR Y BR FAE AN
associates - 550
Cash from operations EEFEESE 119,075 255,771
Interest paid BEAFE (272) (946)
Income tax paid EBMRMPTE T (54,397) (42,631)
Net cash from operating EETHFBRESTFE
activities 64,406 212,194
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 £l = FE = —4F 1+ =-H =+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—=-= S EE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE1
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREED
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE S NERE
equipment (7,932) (17,505)
Addition in right-of-use assets EAEEEEM (158) -
Deposits paid for non-current assets BfIERBEEZR S (1,091) (795)
Proceed arising from disposal of HEMBARME
subsidiaries 4,279 35,841
Proceed arising from disposal of an & —Et & A &l FT15
associate - 49,101
Proceed arising from deregistration/ 4,/ HEA B EME
disposal of joint ventures - 7,857
Repayment from immediate holding B 12 A FE K
company - 116,455
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries 7] X[ EB A & A FER - 34,870
Capital reduction of an associate H-EENRRE - 138
Proceeds on disposal of property,  HEWE - a2k
plant and equipment HIEFTIS 647 613
Dividends received from associates ©WEHE A FIRAE
and joint ventures TERE 2,210 1,071
Dividend received from unlisted B ETERERERE
equity investment 1,926 1,864
Interest received B2 UH B 5,274 794
Cash settlement (paid for) received () WESTAE SR T A
from derivative financial RetEE
instruments (5,023) 946
Placement of bank deposit with FEHRDEBEBE=18A
original maturity over 3 months BRI TIF 3K (40,000) -
Net cash (used in) from RETE (FT#E) B
investing activities HEFE (39,868) 231,250

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # =

—E——Ff—A=F+—HIFFE

2022 2021
=== T —F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New bank loans RITFIE K - 74,200
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - (101,775)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT IR AR R AE AR B
interests (3,609) (872)
Dividends paid to owners of the XA REIRERERE
Company (123,594) (21,766)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEaRE (2,591) (2,209)
Advance from immediate holding BABRERARIIE
company 115 179
Repayment to immediate holding EEEEZERARINIA
company (59) (362)
Advances from associates BARZ QA RIFIR 2,447 359
Repayments to associates EERE R RFIA (2,079) (348)
Advances from joint ventures BAGEBELEFNIEA 36 41
Repayments to joint ventures BEAEDENE (34) (48)
Payment of repurchase of shares AT IR 0 [ (2,958) -
Net cash used in financing METEERES R
activities (132,326) (52,601)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASEIN R&RZR®BEE 2 (D)
CASH AND CASH BnFEE
EQUIVALENTS (107,788) 390,843
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—H—BZHE&R
AT 1 JANUARY ERKRE 438,171 48,787
Effect of foreign exchange rate XS E
changes (613) (1,459)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=-A=+—-Hx2
AT 31 DECEMBER REREFRE 329,770 438,171
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B RER[RLIER :
REPRESENTED BY:
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR KRS 369,770 438,171
Less: bank deposits with original B REBABRA=EAN
maturity over 3 months RITFEN (40,000) -
329,770 438,171
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”) is the controlling shareholder
of the Company that directly holds 993,825,345
shares, representing 41.72% of the total issued
shares capital of the Company as at 31 December
2022 and it is considered as the immediate
holding company of the Company. According to
the latest corporate substantial shareholder notice
filed by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and
uploaded on the Stock Exchange’s website prior
to the publication of this report, Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by PIL by virtue of
certain corporations deemed to be controlled by
Temasek Holding (Private) Limited. Both companies
are incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information of this annual
report. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (‘US$”), which is
also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

The expenses presentation of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income has been reclassified from the analysis by
nature to the analysis by function. The management
of the Group considered that the current
presentation is more appropriate for analysing the
financial performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS

RMNEIBT 2 BERYMBRE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the

ZR([HRMBHREERA]

RAFERFATHEET 2E
B H 2 A

RAFEAEE G REMB B GETED
NEBEHTHIR _TE-_—_F—HA—H
HA1& [ 16 HY 6F J2 08 1) 1 A 30 T A1 A
BRI BBV BHEMEER - UFEELR
E I BEmE

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfiling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuead)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non
-current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)!

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction'
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eI |RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in

issue but not yet effective (Continued)
U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date
to be determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments to clarify that:

0] the classification should not be
affected by management intentions
or expectations to settle the liabilities
within 12 months; and

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 2
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuead)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

(ii) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1
to align the corresponding wordings with no change
in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2022, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because of the
nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuead)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the consolidated
financial position or performance of the Group but
may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments, equity instrument
at FVTOCI, financial asset at FVTPL and investment
properties, that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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A AN
3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 HmESEHMBERENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTHE#E

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated RAEGREUBRRENER B
financial statements (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties BEARBEEE 22T ARKEY
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation ¥ AREZHMEEANRTATERESE
technique that unobservable inputs are to be used B .:JFE”&/‘E BEZHELZE  HEHA
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the ERETRIE - KBYBHEREEES
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial EZERBERRZER -

recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair toN - BB EHEmMS - A EEET

value measurements are categorised into Level 1, EERETREENALBETEH

2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs BHRAEEERAR FTEJEEHU\%Z

to the fair value measurements are observable BNERBEZUE AR B

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value E=M o T

measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) . —REBEAERBUNGTEHE
in active markets for identical assets or HXE’MHIT,%F_JZ%EE’\\ ER TS
liabilities that the entity can access at the B HRME CRE )

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted . FEMBIBIRE - BRE AR
prices included within Level 1, that are WELAIN  BESBENHME
observable for the asset or liability, either EBE 2 EREE &

directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for . FREEBREESBENTA
the asset or liability. BIRATSEUR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(a

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
tangible assets that held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than
construction in progress. Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(c) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful lives
Leasehold land and buildings and
site improvements
= on medium term lease 20 to 50 years
Buildings and site improvements
—on short lease 110 10 years
Plant and machinery 5to 15 years
Furniture, fittings and office
equipment 51to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years
Leased containers 13 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress in the course
of construction for production, supply,
or administrative purposes are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant
leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant property revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair
value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU
when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU
or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit of the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or the group of CGUs) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from
associates and joint ventures, bank deposits
with original maturity over three months
and bank balances which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9).
The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables, including trade related
amounts due from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s internal credit
rating;

- significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0] Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

- an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iif) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the

borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBmRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 mMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant accounting policies BEEGSHBE®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9 =Z=EITAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TEREERE(E)
() Measurement and recognition of ECL V) TEEAfERBXRZFTERE
(Continued) RE
Where ECL is measured on a collective EEHERABEARRER
basis or cater for cases where EEEHSHEHTEENT
evidence at the individual instrument HEERER m AR A/
level may not yet be available, the BAT  AlemITARE
financial instruments are grouped on A B AR A AR BTN 45
the past due status and settlement BERADHE - EEETH
pattern of debtors. The grouping is BEMAR - AEERFEAE
regularly reviewed by management to FIBEES ZHEUMNEER
ensure the constituents of each group RRFRN o
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based FEWAZE#EENR
on the gross carrying amount of the HAENE  RIFEZER
financial asset unless the financial BEEBRERARE Tt
asset is credit-impaired, in which case BAT  FEKRAZE R
interest income is calculated based on BEEMESRKAGE -
amortised cost of the financial asset.
The Group recognises an impairment AEERAFABMEBE T
gain or loss in profit or loss for all TEMEEHEREZPE
financial instruments by adjusting their RBERZXERE  BRE
carrying amount, with the exception W BR 0 Ko JE i B = A B %
of trade receivables and amounts due EETEREMNHEAAE
from associates and joint ventures BABAEGRBEER
where the corresponding adjustment 4N o
is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition
of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if
the contractual cash flows are renegotiated
or otherwise modified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(Continued)

Except for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform
in which the Group applies the practical
expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in
a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors. If
qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and amounts due to
immediate holding company, associates and
joint ventures are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial
liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are
offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

A contract liability (presented as “advances
from customers” in consolidated statement
of financial position) represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of
services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date
(service contracts in which the Group bills a
fixed amount daily of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract (Continued)

The Group applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

- the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease

liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever the
lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate
at the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification
as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope
of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases
increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease incentives from
lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use assets. When
the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at
commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using
the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of
the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return
on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

At the commencement date, the Group
as a manufacturer or dealer lessor should
recognise: i) revenue, which is the fair value
of the underlying asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the lease payments accruing
to the lessor, discounted using a market rate
of interest; i) the cost of sale, which is the
cost (or carrying amount if different) of the
underlying asset less the present value of
the unguaranteed residual value. Initial direct
costs for leases in which the Group is the
manufacturer or dealer lessor are recognised
in costs of sales at the commencement date
of the finance leases; and iii) selling profit or
loss (which is the difference between revenue
and the cost of sale) in accordance with its
policy for outright sales to which HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
applies. The selling profit or loss on a
finance lease should be recognised at the
commencement date, regardless of whether
the lessor transfers the underlying asset as
described in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases
(Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

When a contract includes both lease and
non-lease components, the Group applies
HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before taxation because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

e M |RME

RAUGECHERENERR
EESTHE#E

EEETEER®)

0

HIE(#E)

EEH A

EFEFR IR TS RAR & B 75 3Rk /Y
BENAERASAETERR
BOs MR E R IR EE R IRE R
MERBRIARR - ELHIER
E—RERMBRRREB 2E
RHER - EEREEE—RR
FERR AT IS B 12 AR HIRL B SR B i
F M ERIR R 2 A AN E i
Z8 - MARXZHERER
(FEEHBRINREERBEE
I R 3 FE SR 4 M) 3 & R Al i
REENEREEZR  ZEBEER
BES TSR o Ui Wy
BEREBERELERMEER A
TERRBETCHEARE

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR

183



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

() Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over
the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities results in net deductible
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0

(k)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised
to profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
group entity are presented in the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (its
functional currency). For the purpose of
the consolidated financial statements, the
financial performance and position of each
entity are expressed in US$, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Foreign currencies (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (“foreign currencies”)
are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. US$) using exchange
rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated
at monthly average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisitions of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

Retirement benefit costs

In respect of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
the Group contributes to a state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Contribution payable by
the Group to the schemes is charged to the
profit or loss when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group
contributed to defined contribution retirement
schemes which were available to certain
employees of Hong Kong. The assets of
these schemes are held separately and
managed by independent trustees. The
amount of the Group’s contributions, net of
any contributions forfeited in respect of those
employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, is charged
to the profit or loss as incurred when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group
operates and contributes to Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) schemes which are
available to all employees of Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees. Contribution payable by
the Group to the MPF scheme is charged
to the profit or loss when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing
to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods
in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Government
grants relating to compensations of expenses
are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented
under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Dividend payable

A liability to pay dividend is recognised when
the dividend is appropriately authorised and
is no longer at the discretion of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Q)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position
include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on
hand and demand deposits, excluding
bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the
definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises
of short-term (generally with original
maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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eI |RME

4

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets relating to manufacturing
segment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and fair value less cost
of disposal; and (3) the appropriate key inputs to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
assets belongs including allocation of corporate
assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of
CGUs, for which the relevant corporate assets
have been allocated. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets relating to manufacturing
segment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, in view of the financial
performance of a CGU of the manufacturing
segment during the year, the Group performed
impairment assessment on this CGU which contains
net carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment of US$7,902,000 (2021: US$8,533,000)
and right-of-use assets of US$872,000 (2021:
US$894,000) by preparing a value in use
calculations that require the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
based on key inputs, such as the expected selling
prices, budgeted sales volume, gross profit margin,
growth rate, and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. No impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment (2021: impairment
loss of US$2,000,000) and right-of-use assets
(2021: nil) have been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Details of the impairment
of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 16. In addition, there is no impairment loss
recognised for the group of CGU of manufacturing
segment that includes the carrying amount of
corporate assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
REVENUE 5 EXH
Revenue represents sales of goods from EEBEREEB CHERYRRSG
manufacturing and services income from logistics ZRBWRBBEBEEN - D0
services operations, less sales related taxes, and is N

analysed as follows:

2022 2021

—=F=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

FExn F=T

Manufacturing BB 748,375 | 1,117,195
Logistics services W m AR 7S 27,608 34,569

775,983 1,151,764

Disaggregation of revenue from FoREEFEHANKE
contracts with customers

2022 2021
—=E—= —E—F
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET

Types of goods or services [EEEER S Lk
Manufacturing (recognised at a RUE ST (— (AR B RERR) -
point in time):
Dry freight containers WEEME 610,091 1,011,532
Tank containers B 59,639 37,504
Other specialised containers HEMEERA R EEA
and container parts fig (4 78,645 68,159
748,375 | 1,117,195
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5 REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from

5 ®BXHE»
FoORBEFAHNNKE &)

contracts with customers (Continued)

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Logistics services (recognised e AR %5 (B By Rl HEE 72 T 2
over time):
Container storage and handling SRERTEREERS
services 4,084 3,835
Repair and drayage services s NEE AR TS 5,269 4,752
Container freight station SRBEEWLRYE
services 15,214 10,678
Other container related services H & R A AE R AR TS 3,041 15,304
27,608 34,569
775,983 1,151,764
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group manufactures a wide range of
products including dry freight containers, tank
containers, other specialised containers (including
but not limited to collapsible flatrack containers
and offshore containers) and container parts.
The Group charged the selling price of each of
containers based on the agreed purchase order.
The performance obligation of the contract of
manufacturing containers represents producing
the containers to its customers in accordance to
the industry standard requirements stated in the
purchase order (i.e. with alternative use to the
Group). The Group only provides assurance type
warranty of which no distinct goods or services
is identified. The Group sometimes requires
customers to make upfront payment before the
commencement of the production activity and the
remaining amount is to be settled within the credit
term. Revenue is therefore recognised at a point in
time when control of the containers has transferred.
Control of the containers is considered transferred
to customers upon the completion of inspection
through acknowledging the acceptance notes
by customers and delivering to specific location
under certain circumstances. Transportation and
handling activities that occur before the customer
obtains control of the containers are considered as
fulfilment activities.
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eI |RME

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers (Continued)

Logistics services of the Group include container
storage and handling services, repair and drayage
services, container freight station services and other
container related services (collectively referred to
“container related services”). Revenue is recognised
over time when the container related services
are rendered, and is measured based on output
method. The Group generally charges the container
service fee based on either fixed daily rate or
cost-plus, which is the direct measurement of the
value of the services transferred to the customers
from the Group’s performance. The Group elects
to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue from logistic services in the amount to
which the Group has a right to invoice. The Group
normally bills monthly to the customers and credit
term offered to the customers is normally 30 to
60 days. The performance obligation for logistics
services is to provide the container related services
in the depot to its customers. The Group fulfils the
performance obligation by completing the container
related services for its customers.

All manufacturing and logistics services are provided
for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (i.e. Chief Executive Officer) for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance are organised into two
operating divisions — manufacturing and logistics
services. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its segment information under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Principal activities are as follows:

Manufacturing - manufacturing of dry freight
containers, tank containers, other
specialised containers (including
but not limited to collapsible flatrack
containers and offshore containers)
and container parts.

Logistics services ~ — provision of container storage,
repair and trucking services, serving
as a freight station, container/cargo
handling and other container related
Services.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION cContinved) @6 SHER #
ZESBMERZHMT

nuP

Information regarding these segments is presented

below:
Segment revenue and results DEHEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue AEELERAREDH EETR
and results by operating and reportable segment: XESWWT -
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_E_—_F+-A=1+—HLFE
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEEK W R k)
US$'000 US$000 US$’000
TER TER TEx
REVENUE EEH
External sales HIMHE 748,375 27,608 775,983
SEGMENT RESULTS TEEE 84,125 2,288 86,413
Finance costs HBEER (366)
Investment income BEKRA 8,276
Fair value loss on derivative fTHEERTIAYZ
financial instruments PABEEBR (5,686)

Fair value gain on financial asset KA A BEFABHRZ
AN

at FVTPL PREEZAREE
g 74
Share of results of associates JE(EBE N2 $E 1,349
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EfRABNEZ 28 (135)

Profit before taxation BT A i 89,925

202 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021

e M |RME

DEER &)
PHMUEEREE#)
BE-—T-—F+-A=+—ALEE

Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEETK W PR A% k]
US$'000 US$'000 US$000
FET TET FET
REVENUE 1]
External sales HINEE 1,117,195 34,569 1,151,764
SEGMENT RESULTS PEEE 243,564 2,162 245,726
Finance costs B%ER (1,083)
Investment income REWRA 5,738
Fair value gain on derivative THEeRIAL
financial instruments ~AEEKE 583
Fair value gain on financial asset KA BEFABRZ
at FVTPL SRMEEZLAEE
Wezs 149
Gain from derecognition of financial #% - FE A $5AK &
assets measured at amortised ATENESRBEEMS
cost Wegs 27,001
Share of results of associates il N 761
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EIRABNEV£4E 196
Profit before taxation BRI A A1 279,071

Segment results represent the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of finance
costs, investment income, fair value (loss) gain on
derivative financial instruments, fair value gain on
financial asset at FVTPL, gain from derecognition of
financial assets measured at amortised cost, share
of results of associates and share of results of
joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the
Group’s Chief Executive Officer for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

DEMREEEDEABEN - BRD
EMBER REBRA - TEERT
AZ AR EBEER) WG - BOAE
Bt A\BRZERMEEZAABER
7w RUIERRAREERAAENE R
BEMRBWE  BIEBERRZERE
LEGEELEZRE - WIRER
DEMFESBREMAAEEER
TRREE R EE -
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 IHER®E
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s total AEELERAREDH CBREER

E3

assets and total liabilities by operating and REEITWT
reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2022 R-ZZE-_—+=-A=+—H
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
BUEER W IR ok
USs$°000 US$'000 US$’'000
TERT TEn T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 355,777 20,596 376,373
Interests in associates SN T 15,768
Interests in joint ventures REBERE ER 6,302
Unallocated corporate assets APBEAREE 413,810
Consolidated total assets GARBERR 812,253
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NEBE 118,287 16,151 134,438
Unallocated corporate liabilties KA EARIEE 18,938
Consolidated total liabilities ReaREE 153,376
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit

or loss or segment assets:

Additions of capital expenditure ¥ EARFR
Depreciation expense (note) WEER MWL)

Impairment losses under expected JEEAERIELERXT
credit loss model, net of reversal B EIE AR E R %

FEEME

Provision of inventories

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME « KRR RE
plant and equipment Wz (B8)

S BERRRE
2K

Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off

A BN
6 DEHERE
PMEEREREE)

HipEp
BE-_ZE_—_F4+-A=1+—HLEFE

ARFTEN BRI HBEENETE

BIE
Logistics

Manufacturing services Total
REER YR R % nE
US$'000 US$000 Us$000
TER FER TR
22,999 593 23,592
10,091 1,601 11,692
1) (1) (22)
1,633 - 1,633
528 3) 525

223 8 231
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eI |RME

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION continuveq) 6 7 EBE R @)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREE®R)
As at 31 December 2021 RNR—_FT-_—F+-_A=+—H
Logistics
Manufacturing services Total
SUEXT MR B
USs$000 Us$000 US$000
TET TEL TEr
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NPEE 454,785 26,675 481,460
Interests in associates N A=YNCIWA = £ 18,114
Interests in joint ventures REERE ER 7,031
Unallocated corporate assets APOEAREE 487,397
Consolidated total assets RABERR 994,002
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NHaE 206,076 15,796 221,872
Unallocated corporate liabilties ~ AD B AR EE 38,885
Consolidated total liabilities neafEeER 260,757
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

A BN
DEER®)
PMEEREREE)

Hh B R

BE—_T-—F+_-_A=+—HULFE

ARFTENHBERRXDBEENE R
B

Logistics

Manufacturing services Total

RERK Mm% ok

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

TEn TEn TErn

Additions of capital expenditure ~ #TIEEREI 20,987 1,392 22,379

Depreciation expense (note) NEBRWR) 8,677 2,410 11,087

Impairment losses under expected T {= AL Tk

credit loss model, net of reversal B B KR E 8 % (138) 2 (136)

Provision of inventories FEEE 2,998 - 2,998
Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% - #23 K R &R E

and equipment 5! 2,000 - 2,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEW¥ « Rk RE

and equipment BB 1,395 3 1,398
Loss on property, plant and TIEME  BEkEE

equipment written off ZE#E 2,163 9 2,172

Note: Certain amounts were capitalised in inventories during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The amounts included in other information are part
of the operating and reportable segments.

Hiet : BHEeHEERE —_T-_—FR-_F=——
F+ A=+ —HIFERNFEFER
1t °

AR AR AR R TV R AT
SEBE— T °

(2
H
=
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures and unallocated corporate
assets, which include equity instrument at
FVTOCI, financial asset at FVTPL, certain
property, plant and equipment, certain other
receivables, tax recoverable and cash and
deposits with banks. Assets used jointly by
reportable segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenue earned by individual
reportable segments; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than unallocated corporate
liabilities, which included amount due to
immediate holding company, amounts due
to associates, amounts due to joint ventures,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.
Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to
segment liabilities.
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e M BHRRME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 IHER®
Geographical information ESBER
The Group’s operations, including both the AEBZER  BREESEB IR
manufacturing division and logistics services MR ARIE D EB - AL E o
division, are located in the PRC.
The following table provides an analysis of the TRBEBERIEXEBE S IR FAEH
Group’s revenue by geographical market, based INEMRRBSEOE DR
on the location of customers for manufacturing R BRWEMISEOTAREE 2 &%
segment and based on the origin of the goods/ AR
services for logistics services segment:
Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B-ECAST-BLEE HE_Z_-S1-A=t-HI%E
Logistics Logistics
Manufacturing services IGIEIN  Manufacturing services Totdl
REXR Nk ag REXH bk ]
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$:000 US$000
TER Tin TER e TEL e
Hong Kong &h 230,358 - 230,358 375,822 1,041 376,863
Singapore ik 144,882 - 144,882 96,562 - 96,562
Europe B 106,913 - 106,913 204,515 - 204,515
Middll East hR 78,663 - 78,663 65,942 - 65,942
PRC i 64,949 27,608 92,557 52,356 33,528 85,884
United States of America 5|24 RE
(USA) (%8)) 46,936 - 46,936 190,555 S 190,555
Talwan = 29,015 - 29,015 106,885 - 106,885
Indonesia DERRS 10,272 - 10,272 169 - 169
Korea #H 9,196 - 9,196 12,738 - 12,738
Indlia g 6,992 - 6,992 3,840 - 3,840
Melaysia SRRBE 4,269 - 4,269 74 - 74
Others -4 15,930 - 15,930 7,137 - 7,137
Total fast 748,375 21,608 715,983 1,117,195 34,569 1,151,764
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eI |RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying
amount of non-current assets other than
financial instruments, other receivables and trade
receivables, analysed by the geographical area in
which the assets are located:

DEER 2
HWESIER B

AT Rz R (B EMEN) D IERE
BEEBTA  HiRUKRENEK

BRARERIN 2 BREFE ¢

As at As at
KERDLET oI 31 December
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
+=A +=A
=+-—H =+—H
US$’000 US$’000
TEx FET
PRC H 147,083 150,837
Hong Kong BB 35,154 27,810
Others HAth 1,378 1,790
183,615 180,437
Information about major customers FEEFEM

RZE-Z—F F—URFERBE
RIEETEI0% A L (ZEZ—F - ) -
ZERBEBBREETEI0NALZER
48 558 5106,915,000E 7T ©

In 2022, there is one customer contributes over
10% of the total sales (2021: no customer). The
customer contributes over 10% of the total sales
amounted to US$106,915,000 in aggregate.

210 Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

7 OTHER INCOME 7 EHilwA

2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —4F

US$’000 US$000
FTEr TR

Interest earned on bank deposits 1TERF B YA 5,056 794
Interest earned on bank deposit RBE 'J HiE 88 =8 A /RTT
with original maturity over FRN B
3 months 218 -
Interest income from immediate BEERARMEKA
holding company - 1,334
Interest income from a fellow —RIRH B A RF WA
subsidiary - 357
Interest income from an associate ~ —H& A AIF EURA - 352
Imputed interest income from FEWARAE 2 HEEF B A
consideration receivable 604 1,037
Lease interest HEFE 472 -
Dividend income from equity BEARBEFAEMZEKE
instrument at FVTOCI ZHEmTERBIA 1,926 1,864
Governments grants BT %8 B 1,432 1,040
Rental income HEWA 1,989 1,805
Others HAb 984 1,901
12,681 10,484
During the year, the Group received US$1,432,000 FRAEBWE E b BT # S
(2021: US$1,040,000) from the local government 1,432,000% 7C(ZZF = —% : 1,040,000
authorities for the encouragement on economic EL)EATBHIZZERNKESR
contribution to the industry development with no Bt BRI R o

specific conditions attached.
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eI |RME

8 HKE

H

2022 2021
=== T —F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFE - 661
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 287 267
Bank charges IRITFES 79 155
366 1,083
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9 HftlhmREE

2022 2021
—E__ B —F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Exchange (loss) gain i H (8518 e (8,122 2,249

Fair value (loss) gain on derivative MEesMIAEZAREE

financial instruments (E518) W e (5,686) 583
Fair value gain on financial assets BEAnBEFABZEZEH

at FVTPL BEZ A BEKE 74 149
Fair value (loss) gain on WEWEZ AR BESEE)

investment properties W e (909) 142
Adjustment to consideration HEKRENFAR

receivables (3,360) -
Impairment losses under TEHE ABAE TR E#

expected credit loss model, EODEAIEREES

net of reversal 22 136
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —R B A R M (AaF38)

(note 38) - 412
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BE AR - 1,370
Gain on deregistration of a joint HE—AEPERE

venture - 769
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEYE - HERERBEZ

property, plant and equipment Wz (B18) 525 (1,398)
Loss on property, plant and FTIHYIE - MBS RRIE

equipment written off B8 (231) (2,172)

(17,687) 2,240
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FEMBmRMEE
10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10 BRBL A &®F
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BREAIRFIE MR GEE) YIS IE -

charging (crediting) the following:

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
US$’000 US$’000
TET FET

Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B & 447 423
Research and development costs HEER
— Included in cost of sales - BEEHERAF 4,597 4,061
= Included in administrative - BERTRERAF
expenses 1,861 5,381
6,458 9,442
Staff costs, including directors’ EBENKAE  BIEESEHE
emoluments
— Salaries and other benefits - Hre REMER 89,019 123,412
- Retirement benefit costs —RIKERE R (AT aE12)
(note 12) 2,805 2,288
91,824 125,700
Depreciation expense HEER
— Depreciation of property, - BBRERETE
plant and equipment 7,780 7,655
— Depreciation of right-of-use - FRAEEENE
assets 3,912 3,432
11,692 11,087
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R UK
10 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10
(Continued)

BB A= R (&)

2022 2021
—=E=-= - —F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Share of taxation charge of FE(LEE R RIBIIR
associates 366 412
Share of taxation charge of joint EHEEERIE
ventures 4 54
370 466
Gross rental income from HREYERS WA B
investment properties (1,871) (1,540)
Less: direct operating expenses B AFEARSRANKE
incurred for investment MEBRENEELCEER
properties that generated
rental income during the year 305 390
(1,566) (1,150)
Cost of inventories recognised EHRABAZFENAR
as expense (including provision (BETFE# 1,633,000
of inventories US$1,633,000 ET(ZT_—F:
(2021:US$2,998,000)) 2,098,000 7)) 629,324 826,061
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e BRI

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11 EERLEBBSHFHMALTZ

PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS <

The following was the emoluments paid or payable NTRENKERNN\GZ(ZZEZ
to each of the 8 (2021: 9) directors of the Company. NDESZSZEEME -

2022 —E-=

Non-executive Independent Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors Directors
#iEs FUTES BUFNTES
Teo Chung  Chan Tan Kwa  Cheng Lau Ho
Siong PuiKing, Kwok  Chor Wee FuKwok, HoKit, Teck

Seng Rebecca  Leung Kee  Keng  David lvan  Cheong
RNE ERR RER REE MEE OHE Y% MES
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 USH000 US$O000 USH000 US$000 USS000
Tin TEn TEr TEn TEn fEn FEn FER
(Note b)  (Note c)
(Wib)  (Hite)

_ﬁ:

Total
2
Us$000
Tin

Fees we 61 32 32 29 45 61 64 46 370
Other emoluments: Hib :
Selaries and other benefits ~ H& REM BT 46 290 - - - - - - 766
Contrioutions to retirement B AiEFIfL S
benefit scheme 24 15 - - - - - - 39
Performance related $ERIfERAES
incentive payments 1,158 61 - - - - - - 1,29
1,719 398 32 29 45 61 64 46 2,304
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eI |RME

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11 EBRIEEEFMALZ
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS & )
(Continued)
2021 —E—
Non-executive Indlependent Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors Directors
anES FHiTES BUFHTES
Teo  Chung Teo  Chan Tan Kwa  Cheng Lau Ho
Siong  PuiKing, Tiou  Kwok  Chor Wee FuKwok, — HoKit,  Teck
Seng Rebecca  Seng  Leung Kee  Keng  Davd an  Cheong  Totd
R®E ERR R9E RER REE ARE U¥E AR fEE 4%
US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US§000 USS000 US§000 US$000  US$000
Tin TEr TEn TEr TR TEr TEr TEr TEn TER
(Noteg) ~ (Note b)
(Wita)  (Witb)
Fees Be 56 29 5 29 35 40 55 57 29 335

Other emoluments: Hfpie
Salaries and other HEREMER

benefits 449 2718 - 907
Contributions to RABHER

retirement benefit

scheme 22 13 - 19
Peformancerelated ~ $ERTHERR

incentive payments 6 3931 184 - A

- - s s e

- - - - -

4,458 504 5 1,160

35 40 5 57 29 6343

Notes:

(a) Mr. Teo Tiou Seng has resigned as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 11 March 2021.

(b) Mr. Chan Kwok Leung has been re-designated as non-
executive director with effect from 1 January 2022, and

resigned on 24 February 2023.

(c) Mr. Tan Chor Kee has retired as non-executive director
with effect from 30 September 2022.
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mEMBHRKME
DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11 EBRIEEEFMALZ
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS [ A€,
(Continued)
Mr. Teo Siong Seng is also the Chief Executive RINBEETD ARG BFITHAE
Officer of the Company and his emoluments NEEBR e BEMIEREFTT
disclosed above include those for services rendered BB EEFTIR LIRS 2 B2 -
by him as the Chief Executive Officer.
The executive directors’ fees are for their services HITEES LM NERERRRIESR
as the directors of the Company and their other HRBOME  EELAEmMeS 5
emoluments shown above were for their services FEERARARASESHBAEBN
in connection with the management of the affairs RS - LiIEMITES KRB LI
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive MITESZMENERERARIZES
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ Frisft RZHI B & -
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
The above analysis includes 2 (2021: 3) directors ot EREASBEERE RS T
whose emoluments were among the five highest MATHERZREB(ZEZ—F : =
paid individuals in the Group. Details of the REEZ - BREH=-R(CT_—F:
aggregate emoluments paid to the remaining 3 MB)BASBELARSTMALTZ
(2021: 2) individuals whose emoluments were 5| - MAEIALMRESHES RN Z A
among the five highest paid individuals in the Group T HEstBlesFseT -
and which have not been included in directors’
emoluments above are set out below:
2022 2021
—==-= B —F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEAET 1,321 308
Retirement benefit costs RIRAE A LR 35 18
1,356 326
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eI |RME

11 DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST 11
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

M < =)

US$127,681 — US$191,522
(Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)
1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000)
US$191,523 — US$255,363
(HK$1,500,001 = HK$2,000,000)

US$893,769 - US$957,610
(HK$7,000,000 - HK$7,500,000)

127,6813 7T — 191,522 70
(1,000,000 7T, — 1,500,000

mE M2 IE T HISEE -

EERTEEEFMALZ

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AH AEK
1 2

BJT)

191,5233 7T - 255,363% 7T
(1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000
BJT)

893,7693% 7T - 957,610% 7T
(7,000,0007% 7t — 7,500,000

12

L)

No waiver of emoluments, compensation loss and
inducement to join or upon joining the Group was
paid to directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals during both years.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Prior to 1 December 2000, the Group operated
defined contribution retirement scheme for certain
employees in Hong Kong. These scheme are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the scheme
are held separately and managed by independent
trustees. Under the rules of the scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. Any amount unvested upon
an employee ceasing to be a member shall be used
to offset subsequent employer’s contributions.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has joined MPF scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

The employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the government in the PRC.
Subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of relevant payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes. Obligations under the scheme are
borne by the PRC Government.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit
or loss representing contributions payable by the
Group to the MPF Scheme operated in Hong Kong
and the retirement benefit schemes in the PRC
amounted to US$2,805,000 (2021: US$2,288,000).

No forfeited contributions of the Group’s defined
contribution retirement schemes was used to
reduce the current year’s contributions. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose from the employees
leaving the retirement schemes and which are
available to reduce the contribution payable by the
Group in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FI8BiEMX
No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as MR MEFEHEERT RN - L
there was no taxable profit during both years. BEITIRBABNEM -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on A B 1 SEFT IS R T0 A SF (N 5T FE SR A
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the mAEAEERPELE R 2IRTT
rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which the MEFHE -

Group operates.

2022 2021
—F=-= —E-—4F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE7T

Current tax: REFEHIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR TS
- Current year - RFEE 29,818 61,477
— Overprovision in prior year - BIFE L MG (8) -
29,810 61,477
Deferred tax (note 37): EEFLIE (H3237) -
— Current year (credit) charge - AFEHR) I (208) 1,017
— Withholding tax on undistributed = & %> B FIJ ;B B9 A 8FR
profits 3,758 8,112
3,550 9,129
Income tax expense for the year REFABHIBRI 33,360 70,606
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13 FEHERX @
Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in BEBEFEEEEZERER a8
the PRC, PRC subsidiaries qualified as Hi-Tech BMt¥ERNPBRMNBARNEZS
Enterprise are entitled to 15% PRC enterprise 15%EI’J RE RGN - E@EP I
income tax. The tax rate of the other PRC DRI R F25% °
subsidiaries is 25%.
2022 2021
—=F=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Profit before taxation BRBERER 89,925 279,071
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25%  ABI AT K &25%
(2021: 25%) (ZT=—% : 25%)% 22,481 69,768
Tax effect of share of results of EIEEERRIZER
associates M E (337) (190)
Tax effect of share of results of joint EBIEAEE T ¥EY
ventures M E 34 (49)
Tax effect of expenses that are not  E&T 5 & 3R i | B T E B
deductible in determining taxable L2 BB
profit 14,384 4,907
Tax effect of income that are not TEAT & e R 4 FI| B 15 2 3R AN
taxable in determining taxable ZWAZ BB E
profit (3,478) (11,908)
Tax effect on tax losses arising in the AN E R IEFER 2 I E B
current year not recognised R 2,402 3,373
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses {5 Fi B &F & R ERER 2 Fi 1%
previously not recognised BREIBRETE (1,714) (4,881)
Withholding tax on undistributed R EEFHER BT
profits 3,758 8,112
Tax relief related to additional tax EATf 5T B A E A M RE AN IR
deduction on research expenses BB R TUOR R (7 52)
incurred (note) (2,582) (2,948)
Tax effect of deductible temporary ~ AR{EMER Z AN E R =R
difference not recognised G E (930) 3,515
Others HAth (658) 907
Tax charge at effective rate for BARFE B W R
the year AT H 33,360 70,606

—_

“THEFEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRKME
13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continueqd) 13 FEHERX @

Note: Pursuant to relevant law and regulations, the PRC Miet - RIZIAEEZZERZM - FENE R FH
subsidiaries are entitled to additional tax deduction on BB T —FR-_F - —F+=
qualifying research and development costs expenditures A=+—HILFEFEEHFNHEER
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. S E R ZWE, o

14 DIVIDENDS 14 KA
Dividends recognised as distributions during the REAERR/EDIKARE
year:
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend in respect of the KRB FE 2 PEHRE
current financial year — HK4 cents ~ — B E BAR4E1(L
(2021: HK7 cents) per ordinary T —F - GREBER
share 7L 12,317 21,766
Final dividend in respect of the E—HRFEE 2 RERKRE
previous financial year — HK11 - B E BRI
cents (2021: Nil) per ordinary share (=& = —4 : ) 33,881 -
Special dividend in respect of the E—HRFEEZ5ERIKRE
previous financial year — HK25 - BRE@AR25B
cents (2021: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZ = —4 : #) 77,396 -
An interim dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary EREBBR4BUWPEHERSE - 6%4

share, total of which equivalent to approximately
HK$96,677,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$12,317,000) was declared and paid during the
year ended 31 December 2022,

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS (continued)

An interim special dividend of HK20 cents per
ordinary share, total of which equivalent to
approximately HK$483,384,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$61,996,000) was declared on 10
December 2021 and paid on 27 January 2022.

The final dividend of HK11 cents and a final special
dividend of HK5 cents in respect of the year ended
31 December 2021 per ordinary share, total of
which equivalent to approximately HK$265,861,000
and HK$120,846,000 respectively (equivalent to
approximately US$33,881,000 and US$15,400,000
respectively) were approved by the shareholders in
the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2022
and was distributed on 22 July 2022.

The final dividend of HK2 cents in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022 per ordinary
share, total of which equivalent to approximately
HK$47,644,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$6,108,000) has been proposed by the
board of directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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A #£49483,384, OOO?%TE(*HEEE’\\?\’]
61,996,000k 7L) R T =-—F+_ A
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HEr—_ET-_—F+=-_A=+—81
FEERETBRIIBILRERER
5B KEBERRKRE - DB& &L
265,861,000/ 7T &% 120,846,000%
7T (D RIHEER 433,881,000 T &
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BRI E YR BE-_—_F+ A=+
—BIREE -

EEggE T F+ =A==+
—HALEFESRTRBRBIREAR
B AHEL47,644,0008 T (FHERH
6,108,000 7T) * MEAKLA R ERFER
B ERITHRR R AT RS LH & o

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA

223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

15 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 EEXBREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share RN A IR R E ARG T ThiR A
attributable to owners of the Company is based on TEEAE -

the following data:

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
US$'000 USs$000
TEr Txx

Eamings: B

Profit for the purposes of calculating basic ~ EAGTEEAFREF 2 BF
earnings per share 46,340 186,802

Number of shares: RGEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares At EEABRAF| 2
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings ~ Z3&f% g T2 B

per share 2,411,359,693 | 2,416,919,918
No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 S —— —E-—F+=ZH
December 2022 and 2021 was presented as the S+—HALFEYEAREEEN
Company has no potential ordinary shares in issue R E - BAARARRF AL EET
in both years. BEETHEBR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRME
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16 % - WBIRRE
EQUIPMENT
Leasehold
and and Furniture,
buildings fittings
and site Leased Plant and and office Motor  Construction
improvements  Containers machinery equipment vehicles inprogress Total
BELIR 8 #ER
ErRivye  HEREE  AERRRE  BOTHE HE BRIR &8
US000 US§'000 US5000 USS 000 US§'000 US$000 USS 000
T i1 i T i T T
Cost WA
At1 January 2021 HZ5=-F-5-8 83204 - 66,728 5,391 3857 5,258 164,438
Transaton difrences BEzE 176 - 18 6 6 - 13
Trngferto imvestment properies —— BERANE (14809 = = (699 = = (15,496)
Addftons RE 456 - 1694 % 125 15,247 17,807
Disposals h& - - (6,808 (37 (486) - (7.331)
Wiite off i (1,636) - 174 (1,43) (64 (1) (1031)
Transler 2 6,000 = 11,79 148 555 (18.498) =
At 31 December 2021 RIBT-ETZA=T-8 78307 - 66,420 3,664 399 2006 149480
Tranglaion diferences BEEE (109 = [618) ) ) = (1,780)
Addtions (Norg/ FEl) %8 8,891 2672 o1 R/l 7,054 19,368
Disposals il - - (496) (18) (519 - (1,033)
Wit off i - = (1,19 (10 (177 = (1,426)
Transler 2 1630 = 5,100 408 % 1.23%) =
At 31 December 2022 HZBZZE+ZAZ1-H 73,963 8,801 71,939 4324 3,688 1824 164,629
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R UK
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16 Y% - BRXEE
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Leasehold
and and Furniture,
buildings fittings
and site Leased Plant and and office Motor  Construction
improvements  Containers machinery equipment vehicles  inprogress Total
HELHR 8 %ER

BFRiMBR  BAREE  ABRRR  BLERE hE REIE 4%
USS'000 Uss 000 Us§00 USS'000 US 000 Us§00 USS'000
T3 T3 T T3 T eI T3

Accumulated depreciaton and ZENERAE

impairment
At 1 January 2021 W-E--£-f-H 31,080 - 43402 3845 1926 - 80,263
Trandlaion iferences iR 161 = 115 9 4 = 2
Himinated on franslerfonvesiment ~ BZRENERHE

properties (3.498) - - (159) - - (3647)
Charge fo the year TEETE 317 = 3832 456 150 = 765
Impaiment loss recognisednproft~ BRRNBEZ RBEE

orloss - - 2000 - - - 2000
Elminete on dsposels HEHH - - (4849 ) (3 - 532)
Eiminated on wit of i [163%) = B.157) (1,29 B = 8,19
At 31 December 2021 NE--F+ZA=1-A 29,324 - 30,344 2830 1983 - 73,081
Transiafion diferences HEEE (680) = (379) %) 2 = (1,117
Charge for the year KEENE 3,084 437 3632 359 28 - 7780
Eiminated on disposals il=35 - = (434 (1 (460) = ot1)
Eiminated on wrie of iHH = = (93] %) (170 = (1,19
At 31 December 2022 W-BZZE+ZR=1-R 3,728 47 4129 3,046 1,198 - 77,638

Cartying values BHERE
At 31 December 2022 i Snke: 3 g 4 42,205 8454 30,710 1,218 2490 1,824 86,991
At 31 December 2021 HNE--F+ZA=1-A 44073 - 21,076 84 240 2,006 76,399
Note:  During the year, included in the additions, there was Wit - BEEFFERETF FEFEHBZ
transfer of leased assets from inventories amounted to B & E8,891,000% 7T °
US$8,891,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16 Y% - BRREE
EQUIPMENT (continued)
The carrying value of land and buildings of the AEENLTHREFZ REEES N
Group is analysed as follows: Ul
As at As at
KA YTl o Tl 31 December
2022 2021
—=E=-= - —F
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
US$’000 US$’000
FTEx FET
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRETF 8,636 8,994
Site improvements TR 33,599 35,079
42,235 44,073
The land and building elements of a lease of land T REFHAOFN T REFHD
and building cannot be allocated reliably between EERTHEEFHEOEAIESE
the land and building elements, the entire lease is BOMAOBRRBEEDE  #HBIRRK
treated as property, plant and equipment. 1o
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eI |RME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

In view of the unsatisfactory financial performance
of a CGU of the manufacturing segment during the
year ended 31 December 2021, the management
of the Group concluded there was indication for
impairment and conducted impairment assessment
on recoverable amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment with net carrying amounts
of US$8,533,000. The Group estimated the
recoverable amount of one CGU of manufacturing
segment to which the asset belongs when it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, including owned properties, the
related right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
US$894,000 which were not impaired individually
as the fair value less cost of disposal is higher than
the carrying amount and allocation of corporate
assets when reasonable and consistent basis can
be established.

The recoverable amount of CGU including opening
net working capital balance which were integrated
with the cash flows of the CGU, amounted to
US$20,746,000 had been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation
used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering the following 5 years with a pre-
tax discount rate of 13%. The annual growth
rate used is 3%, which is based on the industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using 3%. Another key assumption for
the value in use calculated was the budgeted gross
margin, which is determined based on the CGUSs’
past performance and management expectations
for the market development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, based
on the result of the assessment, management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount
of the CGU was lower than the carrying amount.
The impairment amount had been allocated to each
category of property, plant and equipment such that
the carrying amount of each category of asset was
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. Based on
the value in use calculation and the allocation, an
impairment of US$2,000,000 had been recognised
against the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December
2021. The carrying amount of the owned properties
had not been reduced since the amount of fair
value less cost of disposal of the owned properties
was higher than the carrying amount.

Based on the result of the latest impairment
assessment performed by the management of the
Group, no impairment loss has been recognised
on property, plant and equipment during the year
ended 31 December 2022 since the estimated
recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than the
carrying amount. The management of The Group
believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not result in any
impairment loss nor reversal of impairment loss.
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eI |RME

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

17 FRAEEE

Leasehold lands

Leasehold properties

HELH HENE
As at As at As at As at
ST 31 December BERRDELET TS 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-F —E-C —E-—
TZA=1-F pyelieud=l+ — A =+—H gyl =
US$°000 US$000 US$°000 US$'000
S TErn S TET
Carrying amount REEE 33,306 35,197 5,824 4,977
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December REIEDE:glelsTs
2022 2021
BZE HE
—=E== —E -
+=A +=A
=t—H =t—A
IEFE WHFE
US$’000 US$’000
FErx FET
Depreciation charge WEeEEH 3,912 3,432
Expense relating to short-term MHEHMN 1218 A W2 E
leases with lease terms within ZHEHHERBER
12 months 645 312
Expense relating to leases of RKEEEENHEEEEER
low-value assets, excluding (REBEEEMNSHEES
short-term leases of low value BroN)
assets 2 85
Total cash outflow for leases BHEER R 3,685 2,606
Additions to right-of-use assets ~ f& FA#E & E &N 4,204 4,578
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to five years, but may have extension and
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group
is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for certain premises and office equipment. As
at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense incurred during the year.

During the current year, lease liabilities of
US$4,046,000 (2021: US$4,578,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets
attributable to new leases entered into/leases
modified. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor and the
relevant leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes. In addition, certain lease
agreements were early terminated and therefore
certain right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were
derecognised without significant gain or loss. These
are major non-cash transactions of the current year.
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eI |RME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

18 KREWHE

US$’000
FET
FAIR VALUE NREE
At 1 January 2021 R_ZE_—F—H—H 18,866
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B8 ¥ % - #28 R &E (H:2)

(note) 18,466
Change in fair value AREEZH 142
Exchange adjustment ME H, 58 439
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+-HA=+—H 37,913
Change in fair value NREEED (909)
Exchange adjustment ME 5 B (1,674)
At 31 December 2022 R-EBE-__f+=-HA=+—H 35,330

Note: On 3 November 2021, the Group signed a provisional
tenancy agreement with an independent third party
leasing out an office property of the Group located in
Hong Kong for a period of three years commencing
from 1 December 2021. Accordingly, the office property
was transferred from property, plant and equipment
to investment properties. The carrying value of the
office property on the date of transfer amounted to
US$11,839,000 and the Group recognised a surplus
on revaluation amounting to US$6,627,000 to property
revaluation reserve in consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The Group’s property interest held under operating
lease to earn rental is measured using the fair
value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
and the date of transfer from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
the respective dates by Avista Valuation Advisory
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers
not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using income capitalisation approach. The
income capitalisation approach is calculated by
capitalising the rental income derived from the
existing tenancies with due provision for any
reversionary income potential.

18

e M |RME
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eI |RME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuved) 18 REWIZFE(#)

The investment properties are categorised into WENMEPERARBEIBEELAN
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and below is a F=H TRETEBE_ZT_—_F+
table which presents the significant unobservable _H +T—BERZE—F+ZH=
inputs as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December T—HEXRTAHEHBHA o
2021.

Fair value Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

MEE #ERE EXTABRNAA PR

2022 2021
ZECCE e
US$'000 Us$000
TEn T3

Investment properties 17,660 19447 income capitalisation  Capitalisation rate, taking into account A slight increase in the capitalisation

in the PRC the capitalisation of rental income rate used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property, and ~ decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
prevaiing market condition, of 8%

(2021: 8%.
AR ENE WAER BRI RES (CE-—F:8%)  BAEEENEERLABEEE
ZEESMARNERY NEME  HD ReHRe
RRETHER o

Monthly market rent, taking into account A significant increase in the market rent
the differences in location, and used would result in a significant
indvidual factors, such as frontageand  increase in fair value, and vice versa.
size, between the comparables and
the property, at a range of RMB33 to
RMB39 (2021: RMB30 to RMB41)
per sqm per month,

BAMGAS  ZRIMHNZE I FATSESNEZENKEHLLE
RAtBINnEEOENRE . ENEEEN R2HA -
fimERNA) - BREGTHKEE
EARBRTEOTA(ZE=-
£ NR¥OTENT) «
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e BRI

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continved) 18 REWIZ= (%

Fair value Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

MEE HERE EXTTRENAA HRE
2022 2021
ot Sl — T —F
US$'000 ERVAVIN
i Tn

Investment properties 17,670 18466 Income capitalisation  Capitalisation rate, taking into account A slight increase in the capitalisation

in Hong Kong the capitalisation of rental income rate used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the property, and decrease in fair value, and vice versa.
prevaiing market condition, of 3%
(2021: 3%).

(IAEERES BABRL ARERRIR(CF=-F 3% 8 AACEENENRERNABREE
BEWARNERL  WREER WY ROFRe
RhAER

Monthly market rent, taking into account A significant increase in the market rent
the differences in location, and used would result in a significant
indlividual factors, such as frontageand  increase in fair value, and vice versa.
size, between the comparables and
the property, at a range of HK$25 to
HK$28 (2021: HK$25 to HKS26)
per sq. feet per month,

BATSES ZRIMEMER - MATSHENEBENAERAAE

HRAHEmAmE 2 BOHER EHBEZEN k2R
R fIREEAA)  §ABTLS
RE BB T5T R8T

(CB-—F: 5738 °

35,330 37,913

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during PR FERBYLSEE A EYE =
both years. & e

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRERME
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REZE AT 2R
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares and investments: EEM 2D RIEE -
At cost - dDWIN 11,962 11,962
Share of post-acquisition reserves,  FE{GURBBEREE - MBI
net of dividend received el 3,806 6,152
15,768 18,114

Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—BEK=ZF
and 31 December 2021 are set out below: ——F+ZA=+—H XEEHZz=E
BHENRZFBOT ¢

Place of
incorporation/
registration Group’s Proportion of Principal
Name and operation equity interest voting power held activities
R/
£ REEWE AR EERE FrisRRRELL Bl TEEH
2021
—E--F
Ningbo Victory Container Co., Ltd. (‘NVC")* PRC 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" 40.0%" Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
ERRBEERERAR(ERRE]) i AL RAS
BER#EE
TRi%
Singamas Thai Logistics Co., Ltd.* Thailand 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%" 25.0%" Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
*E RUERMA
B RE
TR
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Name and operation
R/
£ REEWE
Xiamen Xiangyu Singamas Container PRC
Co., Ltd#
ERREBRRERERD AN e
ALS Singamas Logistics Limited India
HE
Qingdao Singamas International Logistics PRC
Co., Ltd.*
EEBRERMRERR A hE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

19 REZENTz2ERE

Group’s
equity interest

REBA{LRE
2022 2021
—ECCF kil
35.0%" 35.0%"
30.0%" 30.0%"
25.2%" 25.2%"

Proportion of
voting power held

FrisRRMELL Bl

25.0%"

40.0%"

Principal
activities

IRER

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR

28.6%"

25.0%"

40.0%"

Provision of
container
storage, repair
and trucking
services, and
serving as a
freight station
S

HlTE - e
R ERT
REBHRS

Provision of
liquid tank
logistics
Operation
AL AR
WinEH

Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
RALERAS
REREE
TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)
* Associate held directly by the Company
£ Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations
In proportion to issued and fully paid registered capital

Summarised financial information of material
associates:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material associate is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

19 REZENT 2R =

* ARFIEE I B E A A]

y WRIZB LI R ER T B KT 2
BELFE

3 BEETRYRFMREZ LD

BEABE AR EEREE

BEASEERBE AR 2MEER
BEHINWT - THZMBEERBR
SIRBEBM RS ERRENY
BRZBLERAMBERRPATZE
B e

%EATF$ B4R A B HmERER
EZEANER

\

NVC
B RE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E - —4F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current assets MENEE 5,924 7,944
Non-current assets FEREBEE 28,468 26,714
Current liabilities ViEIR=RES (4,243) (3,897)
Non-current liabilities JERBAaE (2,938) (134)
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

19 REZENTz2ERE

(Continued)
NVC
ERREB
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FER FET
Revenue EEH 13,738 13,900
Profit for the year F N A 2,121 2,180
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMZE G D) K&
income for the year (2,630) 611
Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2E () KWmiEsE
income for the year (509) 2,791
Dividends received from the FAEBEATRIRZKE
associate during the year 1,162 462

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRKME
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REBEQRT 2R E
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial B ERBE B E M BEmEKFT
information to the carrying amount of the interests R E AR AREE Z HR
in the associates recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:
NVC
ERRE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—=E== —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Net assets of the material associate EAHEZ N7 2 BEFE 27,211 30,627
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEBRERBENRZ
interest in material associate A EREE 10,885 12,251
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e BRRME
19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REBERT 2R E
(Continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not EEREE 2B E A RIS ER -

individually material:

2022 2021
—=F=-= —E-—4F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET

The Group’s share of profit REEEE 2 AF R

for the year 500 485
The Group’s share of other REERGZEMEE

comprehensive (expense) income (Z ) e (756) 7
The Group’s share of total AEEREGEZEZR

comprehensive (expense) income () Was4ass (256) 492

Aggregate carrying amount of the R+=—RA=+—BA&%H
Group’s interests in these JE(GEE S AR BEREE
associates at 31 December 4,883 5,863

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REELECHES

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
US$’000 US$’000
TET FET

Unlisted shares and investments: LMz RN RIZE
At cost R 5,429 5,429
Share of post-acquisition reserves,  EGUEERFE - RE WK

net of dividend received AR F 873 1,602

6,302 7,031

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR 241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBELECERE

A
_i_
1

40.0%

e M BHRRME
20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20
(Continued)
Particulars of joint ventures as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are set out below:
Place of
incorporation/
registration Group
Name and operation equity interest
R/
£ REEHE AR E{ERE
Dalian Singamas International Container PRC 36.8%
Co., Ltd. (‘DSIC")*"
REBRERERRERAT E
TRk )
Fuzhou Singamas Container Co., Ltd.*" PRC 40.0%
BNBREBARAR e
# Equity joint venture established in the PRC in

accordance with relevant laws and regulations.

These companies are accounted for as joint ventures

as at respective period end date as in accordance with
the memorandum and articles of the companies, major
financial and operating policies of these companies
require the unanimous consent of all directors of the joint

ventures.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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SRRIVN: S

Proportion of
voting power held

i RRELL I

40.0%

)53

= RS S

BrEBABELEFRB

Principal
activities

IEEH

33.3% Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
RAEEA
BER#EE
TR
40.0% Provision of
container
storage and
repair services
RALERAS
B REE
TR

B BEOI BT R B2 M3
BEDE -

RIEE R AIBIESSRFERE - BL L A]
EEAHMHREEAEREBELEA

A8y £ 2B S £ BOR T

BREPRNTREE-HAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
venture:

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s material joint venture is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

20

e BRI

REELECERE

EAGELEMIHERME

BREAKBERGECE ZMBER
BMEHIWT - Tl zMBEERRE
RBRBEBMBREENRENYE
BRZBECFEHBERRTATLZE
R

RELCERNAKEGAMBHRERKEA
EF VN

DSIC KE B I
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Current assets MENEE 3,782 3,936
Non-current assets IERBEE 13,746 15,627
Current liabilities mEaE (3,117) (3,899)
The above amounts of assets and  FlHIEERBESED
liabilities include the following: BIEATHIER -
Cash and cash equivalents RERFERBE 2,083 2,238
Current financial liabilities RV BEEEREEN
(excluding trade and other AR B FE SRR B I
payables and provisions) B (67) (53)

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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eI |RME

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REELEZERE

(Continued)
DSIC (Continued) REB] &)
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue - 6,843 7,224
Profit for the year F N A 39 66
Other comprehensive (expense) FREME2E (G E) KE
income for the year (1,292) 356
Total comprehensive (expense) FRE2EEL)BERE
income for the year (1,253) 422
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBmRME
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REBLECERE
(Continued)
DSIC (Continued) REB] )
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ERBE RS M EmEKFT
information to the carrying amount of the interest Rz NEBMIERREE CHR
in DSIC recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FExn FET
Net assets of the joint venture BEBREZEERE 14,411 15,664
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ANEEE R KBRS 2 Fi A
interest in DSIC RERE RS 2 Ll 5,310 5,771
Other adjustments Hih7A % (85) (85)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRRKEBM 2
interest in DSIC R REE 5,225 5,686

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20

(Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material:

REBELECERE

FEREZz2EELENGAER

2022 2021
—F=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FExn FET
The Group’s share of (loss) profit AEBERMMZAFE (BEB)
for the year i Al (150) 172
The Group’s share of other AEERGZEMEE (L)
comprehensive (expense) income Wz (118) 21
The Group’s share of total AEBEEAZzZ2E(ZH)
comprehensive (expense) income W 4858 (268) 193
Aggregate carrying amount of R+—A=+—8BA&%
the Group’s interest in these joint EheErERAKREE
ventures as at 31 December 1,077 1,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI

21

e M |RME

BRREEFTAHMBEER
mZEmTHA

I LTHRES

Unlisted security

2022 2021
—=F=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FExn F=T
28,367 25,392

The Group’s unquoted equity investment
represented 14.0% (2021: 14.0%) equity interest
of Xiamen Xiangyu Superchain Supply Chain
Development Co., Ltd., a logistic company in the
PRC.

The directors of the Company have elected to
designate this investment in equity instrument at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit
or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding this investment for long-term
purposes and realising its performance potential in
the long run. This investment is not held for trading
and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s financial asset
at FVTPL represents investment in an unlisted
investment. The investment is classified as financial
asset at FVTPL at initial recognition and measures
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

22

KEERBB I LMEFKRERG
EFfREREHEFEZRROHBERA
F14.0%(ZT=—4F : 14.0%) X #
Bm o ZA—FRAPBRLE ZYMRA
EJ °

ARREFERERZREBER/ER
nEEFAEMEEKE ST
B ERANARBEZHERERZ
ERENDABENEHEINER
EAEEAREENFAEZSRER
ERERREBERRORBEAN - %
KREYHFEEEARRH IR
BRI E -

EAREBETFAEZZEH®
BE

W-_ZE-_—_F#+-_fF=+—8 &%
B ARBEFABEZEREENR
RIEBERFELTIRE - ZIRERVIER
BREIEARRANBEFAEBERZ
THMEE WAEMSHRUAAEE

HE o

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBHRERME

23 DEPOSITS FOR NON-CURRENT 23 FRBEEESE

ASSETS

2022 2021

=== - —F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Deposits paid for property, BN BRLRREBZS

plant and equipment (note) (H:t) 94 806
Note: At the end of the reporting period, deposit of Wiat © REBEBKR - B ARK654,0005T (18

RMB654,000 (equivalent to US$94,000) (2021:

ZR94,000%T) (ZFE=Z—F - ARK
RMB5, 140,000 (equivalent to US$806,000)) have been

5,140,000t (17K 806,000% 7)) {E 5

248

paid for the purchases of property, plant and equipment.

BEYE  BERREIRE -

24 INVENTORIES 24 FE
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FExn F=ET
Raw materials R 45,303 119,797
Work in progress RS 23,210 29,637
Finished goods SIFK mh 37,149 60,380
105,662 209,814
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e M |RME

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES 25 MFEWERR
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —4F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties 5 = 77 FEURBR X 76,697 79,054
Lease receivables from immediate B ZEZERA 7 E R
holding company 195 -
Trade receivables from fellow EEL NG e
subsidiaries 219 152
Trade receivables from associates Bt A &) FEUBR X - 44
Less: allowance for credit losses B S ARk (146) (168)
76,965 79,082
Finance lease receivables from third 5 =5 Bl & 0 & fE X
parties 13,969 -
Net trade receivables e BR FORE 90,934 79,082

The aged analysis of trade and lease receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses, which is prepared
based on invoice date of each transaction which
approximated the respective revenue recognition

ATERBEHRRANRERBRER
ZEWEFMEERKR - MEBRX
52 BHRAMYFE - X EE R ARE
R AR IRTS B I 2 Rk D

dates or date of rendering of services, at the end of Mo
the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
—==-= —E -
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
0 to 30 days TE=+X 46,936 45,306
31 to 60 days =+—FEXRTX 11,403 17,550
61 to 90 days ANT—E=A+X 7,132 8,279
91 to 120 days AT+—FE—AZTRX 6,812 1,100
Over 120 days —BZTXRNRE 4,682 6,847
Classified as current portion WoBRREE D 76,965 79,082

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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eI |RME

25

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Trade receivables from third parties

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The credit terms are agreed with each of its
trade customers depending on the creditworthiness
of the customers ranging from 30 days to 120 days
(2021: 30 days to 120 days).

The Group assessed the credit quality of trade
receivables from third parties based on historical
default rates and the creditworthiness of the
customers.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance from third parties
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
US$14,441,000 (2021: US$22,434,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Included in
the past due balances of US$3,070,000 (2021:
US$3,712,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default on the basis
that these are long term customers with on-going
business relationship with the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables from third parties are set out in note
40(b).
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PE W BR K ()

%=1 EWER
AEBEHTE—EPBIEERREK -
ZEHHRIIOKE1I20R T E(ZE=—
F: B30KE120KTE)  REFF
ZAEEMIE o

AEBREBEELHERENEFZEE
AR =T RBER 2 EEEER -

RZE_ZF+=-_HA=+—H ' =K
SECvERERBRBEESEREEEA
B 14,441,000 L (== —F
22,434,000 )R EHE@B Y
FEWEBR SR - B85 18 5 e R
XA+ 3,070,000t (ZF=—F :
3,712,000% 7T) B #1 BA90 R A £ - B
ERRHRFPFEAEBEFEXELH
7 AT HREBELD -

FE=HEWBRRARENGFASR
B 5E40(b) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 REWERR®)

Lease receivables from immediate

holding company

For lease receivables from immediate holding
company, the lease rental shall be settled within 45

days from the invoice date.

The aged analysis of lease receivables from
immediate holding company, net of allowance for
credit losses, which is prepared based on invoice
date of each transaction, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of

the reporting period is as follows:

BEEZRAREERYK

AR EEERARIMEERK R -
BTN EEHEASINGEE -

UTERBERRANRERBRER

ZHEERAREERK - LR

RHZEBRAHEE - LEBEEA
R A BB Z BRE DT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days TE=1XK 99 -
31 to 60 days =f+—=xt+X 96 -
195 -

Details of impairment assessment of lease

receivables from immediate holding company are BRI FE40(0) ©

set out in note 40(b).

R ONG b e e

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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e BRRME
25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 REWERR @
Trade receivables from fellow & Z Fff B 2 B] FE U BR =X
subsidiaries
The payment term with fellow subsidiaries is that HERWNEARNNRIERAER S E
the transaction amount shall be settled within 10 BERBEHBI0ORK(ZZE=Z—F : 10
days (2021: 10 days) from the invoice date. R)NEE -
The aged analysis of trade receivables from fellow AT RRBERRINRERBRER
subsidiaries, net of allowance for credit losses, ZRIZRMBARIEBKER  UWEBRX
which is prepared based on invoice date of each SZEZRMBHE - WEEERKAR
transaction, which approximated the respective R AL 2R DT
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
0 to 30 days EE=1+X 200 152
31 to 60 days =t+—&E"+X 19 -
219 152

Details of impairment assessment of trade

receivables from fellow subsidiaries are set out in

note 40(b).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables from associates

The general credit terms for trade receivables from
associates is 60 days (2021: 60 days).

The aged analysis of trade receivables from
associates, net of allowance for credit losses,
which is prepared based on invoice date of each
transaction, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

25

PN T £ E
FEUWERFR )
B e )\ T FE R BR =X

HBE N ESEBRN—REERA
BOK(ZZE=—4F : 60K) °

AT ARBERRANRERBRER
ZBMERRRUIER  UBRRHZ
ZEAHHE  THARKARRE
HIRA 2 BRIk DA

0 to 30 days Tz

TX

2022 2021
—EgE-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE7T

- 44

Details of impairment assessment of trade
receivables from associates are set out in note
40(b).

Finance lease receivables from third
parties

Bt =2 2 A R MR SR BV R E R (A RF AL
FAHtEE40(p) °

F=ATREAEEWK

2022 2021
—E-—4F
US$ (010]0] US$’000
FExn FET

Analyse as: DR
Current portion mENER 3,171 -
Non-current portion JEREN I 10,798 -
13,969 -

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRKME
26 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 26 FENKRHEMEWRNRE
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
=== T —F
US$’000 US$'000
FExn FET
The Group’s prepayment and REETER & E b FE IR
other receivables comprise: BIE
Consideration receivables HEWB AR EREAE
in connection with disposal of
subsidiaries 9,848 18,679
Advance to suppliers RS ER 6,833 15,670
Value added tax AR BB TR K 2,585 15,385
Other advance payments H A TERR 9,900 7,571
29,166 57,305
Analysed for reporting purpose of:  AIREAE DT
Amount shown under non-current  FERBIEEIEE T8
assets 4,842 15,485
Amount shown under current MENEEIRE T8
assets 24,324 41,820
29,166 57,305
Details of impairment assessment of other H b W B R A A B E R W T
receivables are set out in note 40(b). 40(b) °
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM IMMEDIATE 27

HOLDING COMPANY/FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

On 4 November 2020, the Group and PIL,
immediate holding company of the Company
entered into the repayment agreement under the
settlement deed (the “Deed”), pursuant to which
the Company and PIL conditionally agreed to the
settlement of the trade balances with PIL and
fellow subsidiaries in accordance with a repayment
schedule over a 10-year period with interest up
to December 2030 (the “Repayment Proposal”).
Details of the Repayment Proposal were disclosed
in the Company’s Circular dated 24 November
2020. The Repayment Proposal was approved
by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting on 11 December 2020 and would be
effective subject to certain other conditions
precedent were satisfied.

Reference was made to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 March 2021, the last condition
of the Deed about the investment by one or more
entities managed and controlled by Heliconia
Capital Management Pte. Ltd. into PIL (directly or
indirectly) had been satisfied on 30 March 2021.
Accordingly, the then existing trade balances
from PIL and fellow subsidiaries with carrying
amount of US$122,696,000 (principal amount
US$149,697,000) has been derecognised, and
new financial assets of amounts due from PIL and
fellow subsidiaries with the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the Repayment Proposal (“Modified
Assets”) with principal amount of US$149,697,000
and carried at coupon interest rate of 1.5% per
annum are recognised at fair value amounted
to US$122,706,000 at the date of such asset
modification with discount rate of 4%. Thereafter,
the Modified Assets are carried at amortised cost.
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27

28

AMOUNTS DUE FROM IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Reference was made to the announcement of
the Company dated 26 November 2021, PIL had
requested to make an early repayment to the
Company of the entire amounts due amounting
of approximately US$149,697,000, together with
the interest accrued up to the date of repayment.
The Company had accepted such early repayment
proposal by way of a deed with PIL, pursuant
to which PIL shall make such repayment on 30
December 2021. The entire outstanding amount
of amounts due from PIL and fellow subsidiaries
amounting to approximately US$149,634,000
and interest accrued amounting to US$1,691,000
was settled on 29 December 2021. The difference
between the repayment received and carrying
amounts of the Modified Assets amounting to
approximately US$27,001,000 was recognised
as a gain from derecognition of financial assets
measured at amortised cost in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY
The non-trade nature amount due to immediate

holding company is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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29 CASH AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS 29

e M |RME

BERBITENX

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FErn FET

Cash and deposits with banks R& RIRTTIFEK 369,770 438,171
Less: Bank deposit with original B REHABB=EAN
maturity over 3 months RITER (40,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents MEHERERFPRER
in the consolidated statement of ZRRE
cash flows 329,770 438,171

Bank balances comprising cash and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less carried interest at prevailing market deposit
rate ranged from 0.001% to 5.56% (2021: 0.001%
to 2.10%) per annum.

Bank deposit with original maturity over three
months carry interest at market rate at 4.90% (2021:
nil) per annum.

RITEKREEReMRIBE A=
AEEMEHER  BRITMER
HEFRENT0.001%E5.56%(—F =
—% : 0.001%ZE2.10%) 5t 5 o

REIHBBGE=E/MBITEFEIIRT
BERNKL90% (20214 « )t E o

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMB MR T
30 TRADE PAYABLES 30 FEMERX
Included in the Group’s trade payables as at AEBR_ZT-_—F+=HA=+—H
31 December 2022 are bills presented by the WENERTEEESENEEGERE
Group to relevant creditors of US$350,000 (2021: AR H350,000F (=T = —F :
US$2,598,000) which are for future settlement. All 2,698,000 L) MERE - EEEEM
bills presented by the Group are aged within 365 RARGEE - REERINAERE
days and not yet due at the end of the reporting K BRERYIFE365 AN » B H & BIR )
period. The Group continues to recognise these REH - AEERBERRZFENE
trade payables as the relevant banks are obliged o AREMHERBENIKREGER
to make payments only on due dates of the bills, MERTEEZEINHAMNK M
under the same conditions as agreed with the FE—SLEH - UTEREBERS
suppliers without further extension. The following MR B ENBRRZ BRI DT -
is an analysis of trade payables by age based on
invoice date of each transaction.
2022 2021
—E__ B —F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE7T
0 to 30 days TE=+X 20,245 63,980
31 to 60 days =t+—ZETX 10,224 29,530
61 to 90 days RT—ENTXK 4,890 7,016
91 to 120 days NT+—ZE2—B=Z+X 2,741 2,937
Over 120 days —B_TARMNUE 2,130 2,748
40,230 106,211

The average credit period on purchases of materials
is 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022

BEMHONTHEEHR/I0E0X -
R B E B TE £ B B % I B R R
R RNFTBOEERPRAGEE -



31

32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

LEASE LIABILITIES 31 HEAE
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERE :
Within 1 year —F R 2,664 2,389
Within a period of more than 1 year BB —F{BMFE AR
but not more than 2 years 1,710 1,660
Within a period of more than 2 years BB BRF AR
but not more than 5 years 1,763 1,080
6,137 5,129
Less: Amount due for settlement B ARTZEARGELR
within 12 months shown MBBEEERNEHE
under current liabilities (2,664) (2,389)
Amount due for settlement after AR+ @A BEETR
12 months shown under IEmBAEERNEE
non-current liabilities 3,473 2,740

The weighted average borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3% to 5% (2021: from
1.36% to 5.25%).

ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES

Accruals and other payables consist provision of
staff cost, selling expenses, construction costs of
new factories and upgrade of facilities, and other
accrued expenses.

32
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FEMBHRERME
33 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS 33 FEWERR
2022 2021
—E-= —E -
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Advances from third party customers 2 =5 & F R TEUKER K 37,384 37,463
Advances from immediate B A RATERER R
holding company 320 7,971
Advances from associates Bt &N B TR MR BR 3K - 737
37,704 46,171

34

Advances from customers for sales of containers at
1 January 2022 were fully recognised as revenue in
the current year (1 January 2021: fully recognised in
2021).

When the Group receives a deposit before the
commencement of the production activity, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The amounts due from/to associates and joint

ventures are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 35 {THE€mIA
INSTRUMENTS
At 31 December 2022, the Company entered into Efq‘_ T _F+ZA=+—H " ' &XAR
two foreign currency forward contracts relating AR BERBAAREEESRT
to the purchase of RMB and the sale of US$ at El’]’ﬁ’l\’ﬁ%z%_,ﬁﬂ &%) AREXRAEE1ET
contract rates of RMB6.39 and RMB6.47 per USD )'?L6 ARKEK6.47 ARME - RIRFIH
with future maturity dates on 13 January 2023 and SRA-ZTE_=F—A+=HEKZ=
15 February 2023 respectively, at an aggregate 2S __i A+HA  BR2ESEAR
notional amount of US$6,000,000. 6,000,000 7T °
At 31 December 2021, the Company entered RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8 ' &R
into a foreign currency forward contract relating AIEF —MERBAARBHERT
to the purchase of RMB and the sale of USD at BN R B A 4 /—\IEIZT’EEFM%?E
contract rate of RMB6.43 per US$ with maturity H6.43ARKE - BHIR AT -
date on 4 January 2022, at notional amount of —HAEAB - #%%%$£% 420,000,000
US$20,000,000. ETT °
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the RZE-_—F+ZA=+—HIEFE
loss on change in fair value of the foreign currency W INERBEHNMEENARER
forward contracts amounting to US$5,686,000 & B8 E5185,686,000F L (T - —F ¢
(2021: gain of US$583,000) has been recognised in Y 2£583,000% 7T) E RN B P 1R o
profit or loss.
SHARE CAPITAL 36 A
Number of shares Share Capital
R38R R
2022 2022 201 201
“E-C “E-C “EC-F “E--F
US$'000 HK$'000 US$000 HK$'000
T#n Tén TEL Thr
lssued and fuly paid: ~~ EETRER :
At beginning of the year 4] 2,416,919,918 | 2416919918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513
Share repurchased and R EEREA
cancelled (34,714,000) - - - - -
Atend of the year ENRER 2,382,205,918 | 2,416,919918 268,149 2,078,513 268,149 2,078,513

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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36 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 36

During the year of 2022, the Company repurchased
its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as

N
MNRZBEZ_FERN KRAIRBRFAT
OiEE &R SFI5T

follows:

Number Aggregate
Month of of ordinary consideration
repurchase —E-F shares (before
in 2022 e A7 repurchased Purchase price per share expense)
BOLER HRE
2B BREEE (NERBA X A

Highest Lowest

RS RIE
HK$ HK$ US$
BT BT EYH
October TA 16,256,000 0.67 0.62 1,335,000
November +—H 18,238,000 0.72 0.63 1,603,000
December +-A 220,000 0.72 0.72 20,000
34,714,000 2,958,000

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 37 ELEBIEAR
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REIRGEBRRAEME -
statement of financial position, US$357,000 357,000% T (ZZ = —4 : 730,000)
(2021:US$730,000) deferred tax assets have been BEEHEEECHEEMNBEEER
offset with deferred tax liabilities. The following are Heo FBEERAFERNEREHASE
the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised EERARCEHIEEE(BE)EE RE
by the Group and movements thereon during the ZET -
current and prior years:
Fair value
Revaluation (gain) loss
of Accelerated on equity
Investment tax  Undistributed instrument
properties  depreciation profits ~ Taxloss  atFVTOCI Others Total
BRAAEE
HARM2E
bz
I8z
REME  NENE MEE
L 08 AORER  REER  (WBEE At 4E
US§000 US§'000 US§'000 US§000 US§'000 US§'000 Us§'000
S T S S T S S
At1 January 2021 R-E--F-f-H (4984) 23 (2362 826 (1,955) 57 (7,705)
(Charge) credt toproftorloss Bt ABRZ (1) E4
fote 19) Wit13) (151) 110 8,112 (826) - (150) 9129
Deferred tax liablity on fair valueloss /A4 BT AL M
onequity nstument t ATOCI — 2EMEZERIA
LR EERE
BithRaG - - - - 7 - 7
Reversal of withholding tax upon ~~ FIEARERAHA
distrbution bdcES - - 1,255 - - - 1,255
At 31 December 2021 i
+-Azt-A 513 w29 S W (1550
Credit(charge toproftorloss B ABRZES ()
hote 13) (Hiit13) 581 014) (8,758) 1,691 - (50) (8,350)
Deferred tax libiity on fair value gain - /2% B EEF AZ
onequity nstument t ATOCI 2 EMREZERIA
LR BB
ERfeak - - - - 299) - (298)
Reversal of withholding taxupon ~~ FIEAREA&HE
distibution L% - - 4576 - - - 4576
At 31 December 2022 i 2
+-A=1-H @54 (68 B4 161 (217 W (4T
ZEIEFR c BHEELCEFRLAA
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37

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax charge of US$3,758,000 (2021:
charge of US$8,112,000) on the undistributed earmings
of PRC subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures has
been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax
losses of US$143,885,000 (2021: US$140,949,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately US$1,691,000 (2021: Nil) of
such losses. The remaining tax losses has not
been recognised as deferred tax assets due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The Group
is not entitled to future benefits from certain tax loss
following from the disposal of a subsidiary (note
38) during the year 2021. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of US$5,044,000,
US$4,712,000, US$10,220,000, US$8,711,000
and US$1,587,000 that will expire in 2023, 2024,
2025, 2026 and 2027 (2021:US$6,341,000,
US$7,288,000, US$4,812,000, US$10,242,000
and US$11,198,000 that will expire in 2022, 2023,
2024, 2025 and 2026) respectively. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of US$13,836,000
(2021: US$17,556,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Eng
Kong Container Services Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group principally engaged in logistics services in
Hong Kong, to an independent third party for a
cash consideration of HK$3,200,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$412,000). The net assets at
the date of disposal was nil and a gain on disposal
of a subsidiary amounting to US$412,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
lease liabilities and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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A MBHRRMET
40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40 £@TH
a. Categories of financial a. SRIAEZEH
instruments
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—4F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Financial assets EWMEE
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BRARBEFAEMEE
Wz EmT A 28,367 25,392
Financial asset at FVTPL BARBEFABRZ
TREE 3,044 3,246
Financial assets at amortised cost & $#5k 51 & B
TREE 477,655 540,617
Derivative financial instruments PTEemT A - 202

509,066 569,457

Financial liabilities - =R

Amortised cost EE RN 62,777 128,539
Lease liabilities MEAaE 6,137 5,129
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 461 -

69,375 133,668
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include equity instrument at FVTOCI,
financial asset at FVTPL, derivative financial
instruments, trade receivables, other
receivables, trade payables, other payables,
current accounts with immediate holding
company, associates and joint ventures and
cash and deposits with banks. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
cash and deposits with banks,
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group entered into
derivative contracts to hedge against
its exposure to currency risk and the
directors of the Company manage
the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the currency rates.

40
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 40 <@tT B %)
b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Market risk (Continueq) 5 8 B (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EEEpEE)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s R HE - REE SN
foreign currency denominated KA EsEBEEREY
monetary assets and monetary BEZREEWNT :
liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
5E =N
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= TE T F el St —E-—F
US$’000 Us$'000 US$’000 USs$'000
TEx TET TEx FTEr
RMB AR 178,607 154,270 58,992 128,837
HKS$ BT 7,037 30,522 8 14
Sensitivity analysis R T
As HK$ has been pegged to US$, the RRE TR EETHE -
Group is mainly exposed to exchange rEEFERMHAREH

fluctuation of RMB relative to US$.

The Company entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations of the RMB denominated
receivables and bank deposits against
USS$, its functional currency.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes non-
derivative monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies which are different from
the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities. If RMB depreciates by
5% (2021: 5%) against the US$ and
all other variables were held constant,
the post-tax profit for the current year
will decrease by US$4,486,000 (2021:
post-tax profit for the current year will
decrease by US$1,141,000), and vice
versa. This is mainly attributable to the
exposure outstanding at the end of the
reporting period on RMB receivables,
bank balances and payables assuming
they are outstanding for the whole
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate
bank balances for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk
arose from fixed interest rate lease
liabilities. Interest rate risk on bank
balances is considered immaterial due
to short maturity.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

b.

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investment in
an unquoted equity security and
price risk from unlisted investment
recognised as financial asset at
FVTPL. The Group also invested in an
unquoted equity security for investee
operating in logistic industry sector for
long term strategic purposes which
had been designated as at FVTOCI
at the end of the reporting period.
Sensitivity analysis for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within level 3 were
disclosed in note 40(c).

The directors of the Company
considered that the fair value of the
unlisted investment is determined
with reference to the fair value of the
underlying assets and liabilities as
reported by the fund manager. No
sensitivity analysis is disclosed for
the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the directors
of the Company considered that the
exposure is insignificant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade receivables,
cash and deposits with banks, amounts
due from associates and joint ventures and
other receivables. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade
receivables from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates)

Before accepting any new customer, the
Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade
receivables from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates) (Continued)

Other than trade balance with related parties,
the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 13.8% (2021: 15.6%) and 44.2% (2021:
49.0%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within
the manufacturing segment. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or collectively. Except
for significant balances or credit-impaired
amounts which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables
are grouped under a collective assessment
based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due
exposure for the new customers. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of these trade
receivables is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (including trade
receivables from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates) (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk
management, the Group used an internal
credit rating by assigning an individual loss
rate to each of its debtors with significant
balances and collective assessment for
the remaining debtors. The estimated loss
rate are based on ageing of individual trade
debtors as well as historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Cash and deposits with banks

Credit risk on cash and deposits with banks
is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for cash
and deposits with banks by reference to
information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. Majority of the cash and
deposits with banks are placed in banks with
credit ratings of AA and A. Based on the
average loss rates, the 12m ECL on cash
and deposits with banks is considered to be
insignificant.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from associates and joint
ventures

The Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associates and joint
ventures. The Group’s credit risks in these
balances are mitigated through the value
of the assets held by these entities and the
power to participate the relevant activities
of these entities. In determining the ECL
for amounts due from associates and joint
ventures, the management of the Group uses
internal credit rating based on the past due
information and adjusted for any forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, as appropriate. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, reversal of credit
loss of US$208,000 was recognised.

Other receivables

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. As at 31
December 2022, the Group assessed the
ECL for other receivables and reversal of
credit loss of US$2,000 (2021: reversal of
credit loss of US$10,000) was recognised.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The Group applied internal credit risk
grading assessment comprises the following

categories:

€T R

b.

(&
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AEBEERNOAGEERRFR
ZAHEBIEAT #8

Trade receivables,
trade related amounts
due from immediate
holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and

Other financial assets at

Internal credit rating  Description associates amortised cost
R - ElES
BERAR BEWELAT ABHERAHEN
RPEETR i RBELREZARTE EAftcREE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and doesnot  Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12-month ECL
have any significant balances past-due over 30 days impaired
Bk RPUFENERRELRBEANRNNRNEALE REFRARARL 12@ARBERER
- RAEEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually Lifetime ECL — not credit- ~ 12-month ECL
settle in full after due date impaired
BRLE ERAGRANFERER ERFEIAAR FENRHERRX 12MERBRERRE
26T -REEEHE
Doulbtful There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL —not credit-  Lifetime ECL —not credit-
since initial recognition through information impaired impaired
developed internally or external resources
R BRBRPRENEE R FERNSRANK FEBRHERRX FRERAEREX
FERREZEM - RBEEHE - RREERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired
B RRERPIAERRGENE RENEHEREL FREERPEREX
-RERE -RERE
Wiite-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
it REBRPEHARRBENMBRS 15825  SROKEH SRO M
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The following table provides information
about the maximum exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables from third parties, trade
receivable amounts due from immediate
holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates, non-trade amount due from an
associate and other receivables, which are
represented by their gross carrying amounts.
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Internal

M¥EREEBEREXK

(&

1= B /21 B2 2 6l 18 5P 1 (4

TRIEHA S =7 EUARR
HEEBRAR - REMBRR R
B N A IR R - EUREE =

NEIFE HHER TR R A bR
REHRAEERR - SEAR
EEEZT -

2022 2021
—F=-= —E-—F
Gross Gross
carrying carrying

credit rating amount amount

R EEFR EEEEEX N REES

US$’000 US$'000
TXx TET

Trade receivables from third parties Low risk 42,130 59,604
(significant or credit-impaired balances 1K [ Bz
assessed individually) Watch list 10,876 4,139
FE=FRBEF(ERSEAXEHRE BREeE
& RIFT ) Doubtful 1,464 -
54,470 63,743
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e BRRME
40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 40 <S@tT B #
b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Credit risk and impairment =B E R R 6871 (&
assessment (Continued)
2022 2021
—E__ B —F
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount

ABEETR PHEEA N RE A S
US$’000 US$'000
FTER TR

Trade receivables from third parties Low risk 13,981 7,991
(not credit-impaired and assessed 1K [ Bz
collectively) Watch list 4,549 4,445
FE=HRERKER(EERATIE BREE
K LASR 8857 l) Doubtful 3,697 2,875
22,227 15,311
76,697 79,054
Finance lease receivables from third parties Low risk 13,971 -
(significant or credit-impaired balances (EWERE

assessed individually)
F=TREHERKF(ERSEAXIEHREE
(EEIEREE)

Lease receivables from immediate holding Low risk 195 -
company (not credit-impaired and 1K 2 B

assessed collectively)
EEREERARHERKF(BRERZE
MIAS R8T E)
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continved) 40 S@tT B %)
b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&
Credit risk and impairment 1= B E kR R 68 7714 (&
assessment (Continued)
2022 2021
—F=-= - —F
Gross Gross
Internal carrying carrying
credit rating amount amount
REEEFR I EA N REETHE
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries Low risk 219 152
(not credit-impaired and assessed 1K [ fg
collectively)
A &M B AR RN (REARXE
K LASR 8857 l)
Trade receivables from associates Low risk - 44
(not credit-impaired and assessed EWERE
individually)
BE QAR RBER(BREARER
(B BRED)
Other receivables (assessed individually) Low risk 9,850 18,683
H A & W kT8 (18 Bl 714D {igEEN
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

As part of the individual assessment of
the lifetime ECL for each significant trade
balances (including those with immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries)
and other credit-impaired trade receivables,
the management of the Group has obtained
an analysis on the counterparties’ credit
risk characteristics by reviewing the trading
history and historical settlement pattern
with the Group. Such analysis also include
operational update and financial position, to
the extent the Group is possible to obtain
such information or from the observable
data in the market. The management of
the Group estimates the amount of lifetime
ECL individually based on expectation
on cash flows after assessing the credit
risk characteristics of individual debtors,
which taking into consideration of historical
settlement record adjusted to reflect current
conditions and forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available
to the directors of the Company without
undue cost or effort, and are updated at
each reporting date if considered to be
required. For credit-impaired trade balances
with related companies, the management
of the Group also considers the expected
timing of the Repayment Proposal becomes
effective and the estimated fair value of the
Modified Asset in determining the lifetime
ECL.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The remaining trade debtors are grouped
based on similar loss patterns and provision
rate is applied using the historical observed
default rates of the trade balance taking into
consideration of forward-looking information
that is reasonably and supportably available
to the directors of the Company without
undue cost or effort, and are updated at each
reporting date if considered to be acquired.
Such forward-looking information is used
by the management of the Group to assess
both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M |RME

b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment 1= B 7 fR R 6 {8 7714 (&)
assessment (Continued)
Movement in ECL by different class of TRERTRALANNEEEER
financial assets is disclosed in the below TEEIERELES -
table.
Trade
Finance  receivables
Trade lease from Trade Trade  Non-trade
receivables  receivables  immediate  receivables  receivables amount due
from third from third holding  from fellow from from an Other
parties parties company  subsidiaries  associates associate  receivables
(not credit-  (not credit- (credit- (credit-  (notcredit-  (notcredit-  (not credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired)
F=F e
$=h RERE HEERDF RZENELF HE LT PEES Aft
WS (e R WS R E55E FEWFE
(BERSE) (BERZH) (ERZB) (ERSR) (EEASR) (EERAIR EERZR
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 Us$000 US$000 US$'000
TEL xR TEL TEL TEn TEL TEL
Asat 1 January 2021 RZB--F
—R—-H 86 - 20,774 6,227 43 165 14
Allowance for creditlosses ~ FTEEASBEERER
recognised for newly BREE
originated financial assets 128 - - - - - -
Allowance for creditlosses ~ RAFREE -
reversed on financial EEN-F=-%
assets at 1 January 2021 -A-BMH
due to settlement during BELERER
the year ki (46) = = = 9) (165) (10)
Wiite off due o derecognition & B4 E 4 1R
of financial assets T - - (20,774) (6,227) = = =
As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-F
+-A=t-H 168 - - - - - 4
Alowance for creditlosses ~ FEEASBEERER
recognised for newly BRER
originated financial assets 76 2 - - - - -
Allowance for creditlosses  HAEREE -
reversed on financial EER=T=F
assets at 1 January 2022 -A-BMcHE
due to settlement during EEVERBL
the year ki 3] - - - - - @
Asat31December2022 WZE-Zf
+ZA=t-H 146 2 - - - - 2
ZEZEER o BWMEECEBRLAA
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment
assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off trade receivables with
non-related party debtors when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
The Group has taken legal action against
the debtors to recover the amount due.
Details of the write off due to derecognition
of trade receivables from immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries during the
current year are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

e BRI

40 EWMIHE#E
b. HM¥EMREEEEREE

(&)

HEEZEE(E)
UNTERRE T AEEIFITES
BEERHERBERENTENR
HIMRSRERZIME - TRAE
RAREFTEIXNZERMEER
HERBRPEEAHARMEA
REeREMBIET - REEFE
MAEIRER - MRANERES
FEFR - KRR SRR IRN TR
SRS RBREEE -

2022 —E-=

Weighted  On demand Total
average orless than 3 months undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months tolyear  1-5years  cashflows amount

mETY  EREEE =fER AERRS
BRAE gOR-BR -2ZfA - -ZEF  REEE  REtE
) US$000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$000 US$000 USs$'000
e Txn Txn TEn iR
Trade payables EER - 4,882 15,114 20,234 - 40,230 40,230
Other payables EfERER - 17,008 4,128 869 - 22,005 22,005

Amount due toimmediate  ENERIERAF

holding company B - 62 - - - 62 62
Amounts due to associates  EREHEAEFUR - 413 - - - 413 413
Amounts due to joint ventures  ERAE L2508 - 7 - - - 7 7
Lease liabilties HESE 4.00 262 523 2,058 3,637 6,480 6,137
22,694 19,765 23,161 3,637 69,257 68,914
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuec) 40 SmiT B

b. Financial risk management b. HMEREBEEBEZEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (#)
Liquidity risk (Continueq) REEL R E)
2021 —E-—F
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orless than 3 months undiscounted Carmying
interest rate Tmonth  1-3months to1year 1-dyears  cash flows amount
mETY  EXREER =fiA AERRS

ERNE ZOR-BA -E=f@A % -Enf  iBEE  KEcR
% Us§'000 Us§'000 Us$000 Us§'000 Us§'000 US$000
Tin T Tin Tin T TEn

Trade payables ERER = 6423 35,808 63980 - st 106,211
Other payables EfeERER = 15,000 5,289 1905 = 22,19 22,194
Amount due toimmediate  ENEEHRAT

holding company E0 - 6 = = = 6 6

S

Amounts due to associates  [ERBE N EHE = 123 = = = 123 123

Amounts due to joint ventures  ERAZ R E3U8 = 5 = = = 5 5
Lease liabilties fEak 500 240 481 1,862 2,824 5,407 5129
21,797 41578 67,747 2,824 133,946 133,668
The amounts included above for variable ERREBHENREHREEZ
interest rate instruments for non-derivative ARG TR - FllBEEE
financial liabilities are subject to change if ETEEMABE L IF BN
changes in variable interest rates differ to B o

those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for the fair
value measurement.

° the fair value of equity instrument
at FVTOCI is determined by the
independent valuer using valuation
techniques including earnings
multiples (based on the historical
earnings multiples of comparable listed
companies) and discounted for lack of
marketability.

° the fair value of financial asset at
FVTPL is determined with reference to
the fair value of the underlying assets
and liabilities as reported by the fund
manager.

° the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is made of discounted
cash flow analysis using the
application yield curve and forward
rate for the duration of the instrument
for non-optional derivatives as quoted
by the financial institutions; and

° the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding equity
instrument at FVTOCI, financial asset
at FVTPL and derivative financial
instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

e M |RME

40 E@MIHE®

C.

EMIRCZAREE
RS B NEERLE
B TAREAA(BENEN -
RABEFRERAEBEFEN
EEHERMAMRA -

. BEARBEFARMEE
Wz = TENARE
BEHRBEEMERGE
TOERETE - BRI EER
(ERAERLETRAD
FE s s 80 KR =
BT -

. BAfEBEAABRZSE
MEENAAEBERSR
EeKEBREHBEEENR
BENAABEMEE

. TEeMTAZAREER
A Bl M 4 R B A0 AR B
HEZMTETAFERNRN
& P Ui 2 o b AR A B MR
N RFRBSRONGE
ho &

. Hte@mEERERAE
(TEERRAREBETA
Httzmbamz#aET
A - MAREERARD
ZeEBMEENMTESRT
RIZ2RAnBESKRRE
BRAEBERENATRR

SREDITETE -

TEICEFR o BWEEEEXBRRA
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eI |RME

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
this financial instrument are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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C.

TMTAZAREBE®R

BREEHBEERTEXEEH
WEREENETHEBZ R
L1EE

REWREHR - STESBT AT
BAREBEFE - THRERE
TIRENER T AN RAAE
BENREFERZIEAER
2B UERETEREENA
A EEFEHENIERERE
EARBENDEBEERE—=
=) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40 <S£RITE &
Fair value of financial instruments c. SRIAZAAREBE®
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial BEEMEERTELRER
assets and financial liabilities that HWEeHEENEHEEZ R
are measured at fair value on a REE &)
recurring basis (Continued)
Fair value
Fair value hierarchy ~ Valuation technique and key inputs
MR MEBEER HERERIEHE
2022 2021
it St “To-F
US$'000 US$000
e e

Financial assets (liabilities)

TRHEERR

Unquoted equity investment at 28,367 25,392 Level3 Market approach*

FvTOCI The key inputs are:
(1) price-to-eamings multiples of comparables and
(2) discount for lack of marketabilty.
FETRERERRABE =4 e
AR AN BRABA -
(1) AL E N m R EERA
W FAI 2R
Derivative financial instruments (461) 202 Level? Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based on
(Foreign exchange forward forward exchange rates (from observable forward exchange rates
contracts) at the end of the reporting period) and the contracted exchange
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

I A RS 224 FRRERE - AXREREREIRERENEREEHR
HABRERNE) RN  RRBEZZUTFEERARE
R -

Financial asset at FVTPL 3,044 3246 Level3 Share of the net asset values of the investee, determined with
reference to the fair values of underlying assets and liabilities and
adjustments of related expenses, if any.

BAn BEFABRL =4 EERREENEEFRMRIENGE  RERBEENREY

tRAE ArEEAREBER (A HERNER -

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR 287
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eI |RME

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

*

Significant unobservable inputs
include:

- price-to-earnings multiples
of comparables, taking into
account of the scale of the
business of the comparables
and other individual factors such
as dividend yield generated by
the comparables at 6.07 times
(2021: 6.52 times). A slight
increase in the price-to-earnings
multiples would result in a slight
increase in fair value and vice
versa.

- discount for lack of marketability,
taking into account of the results
from the finnerty option pricing
model of 20% (2021: 20%). A
slight increase in the discount
for the marketability would result
in a slight decrease in fair value
and vice versa.

The management considers that the
exposure of fair value in relation to the
unobservable inputs of the unquoted equity
instrument is insignificant. No sensitivity
analysis is presented accordingly.

There were no transfers between Levels 1
and 2 in the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of unquoted equity

40

e M |RME

€T R
c. EWMIBEZAREBE®

FLTRERERAEE
FTARMEE K FE=RAL

investment at FVTOCI REETELHR

Financial

assets

at FVTOCI

RAREETA

Hih2mEWEZ

ERMEE

US$’000

FET

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 26,156
Fair value loss in other comprehensive ~ RN E it & E WA

income NRBEER (764)

As at 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+_-_A=+—H 25,392
Fair value gain in other comprehensive ~ A Eth 2 HE WS HY

income NREEKE 2,975

As at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z-F+=-H=+—8 28,367

Included in other comprehensive income
is an amount of US$2,975,000 gain (2021:
US$764,000 loss) relating to unquoted equity
investment classified as equity instrument
at FVTOCI held at the end of the current
reporting period and is reported as changes
of investment revaluation reserve for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RERMERRFERSHEEM
2HEW AN E2,975,0005 TTHY
Wa(ZF = —%F : 764,000E 7T
NEB)EBRESERAAE
BEFfAHEMEEREEAIE Tk
wiRE  WEFR_T-_—_F+
ZTAZt+—RIZBREEHERE
2 BEH o

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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eI |RME

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 40 <@ T B #)
c. Fair value of financial instruments EMIBECAREBEE®RE)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value BARBEFABZZLH
measurements of financial asset at BEF=-RAAEBHETEL
FVTPL i
Financial
assets
at FVTPL
BAREBETA
BRNeREE
US$’000
FET
As at 1 January 2021 R-—E=Z—F—H—H 3,027
Fair value gain in profit or loss RIBEHY BEEKE 149
Exchange adjustment ME H, 8 70
As at 31 December 2021 R—ZE-_—F+-_HAH=+—H 3,246
Fair value gain in profit or loss REERH AR EBERE 74
Exchange adjustment PE 5 (276)
As at 31 December 2022 N-—E-—_—&+=-A=+—H 3,044

During the year ended 31 December
2022, US$74,000 fair value gain (2021:
US$149,000 fair value gain) relating to
financial asset at FVTPL is charged to profit
or loss.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values, determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Financial instruments subject
to enforceable master netting
arrangements

The Group has entered derivative
transactions that are covered by the
International Swaps and Derivatives
Association Master Agreements (“ISDA
Agreements”) signed with a bank. These
derivative financial instruments are not offset
in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the ISDA Agreements are in place
with a right of set off only in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy so that the
Group currently has no legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross
amount of derivative financial instruments
that are subject to enforceable master
netting arrangements are US$3,000 (2021:
US$202,000). No deposit was placed with
the counterparty. No further disclosure is
provided as all the outstanding derivative
financial instruments as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 were entered into with one
counterparty.

40

e M |RME

€T R
d SEHSTRFHELESR

BHURNETMTA

AEBEDETHETEENR
BIEHRTAT AR BRS
([SDAZ D) REMITE SR T
AR5 - GUENTESHT AELR
B BRRRP IR WS - E
BISDAMZESIERBEEE
BY)  BHEBIWER T GE
| B ASEB BRI BER
REIMITHRENIEHEEERANS
EE

HE_ZT_—_F#+-A=+—
H IR ITEELTHNR
MITE SR T EE 2% 43,000
EZ(ZT-—4% : 202,000
T0) e BREGFRRERRRSHF
B mARBE_TS-__FK=F
——H+-A=+—HItABEX
Bz TEeRTAYE—XS
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REMB MR T
41 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 41 BEEZBHEEMAEHIER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s TRENEEEEEAREETDES
liabilities arising from financing activities, including mEl - BRReRIIEREHWEL -
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising METBHELEMNBABERERENRE
from financing activities are those for which cash Ry BEEAEENGFEHEERNER
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in NOHEABRERBEEZREN °
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.
Amount
due to
immediate ~ Amounts  Amounts
Bank holding dueto duetojoint  Dividend Lease
borrowings ~ company  associates  ventures payable liabilities Total
FEfy
BBk EfBE  EARE
g% DRFE  AARE  R¥RE ERRE  HERR gt
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 USS'000 US§'000 US$'000 US'000
SET e TEL TEn T e e
At 1 January 2021 RE=-F
-A-H 27,584 189 12 12 - 2,766 30,668
Financing cash flows BERER (27,575) (183) 11 ] (22,638) (2,209 (62,601)
New leases entered/eases 1311 E /B EEH
modfied - - - - - 4578 4578
Early termination of lease ~ RELXIEE - - - - - ) )
Dividend declared EARRE - - - - 22638 - 22,638
Exchangereaignment &% ) - - - - - )
At31 December 2021 HZF=-F
+-A=1+-H - 6 123 ) - 5129 5,263
Financing cash flows MERER - 56 368 2 (121,209 (2591)  (129,368)
New leases enterec/eases 1311 & /B EEH
modified - - - - - 4,046 4,046
Dividend declared EDRRE - - - - 127,203 - 127,203
Exchangereaignment  BEHE - - (18) - - (447) (465)
At31 December 2022  R=F-=§
+ZR=t-H - 62 473 7 - 6,137 6,679
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42 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

42 EXRERIE

2022 2021
—E__ —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of A KIMEARPNAR G B S R
the acquisition of property, plant BEBAME - #BE R
and equipment contracted but B EARTH
not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 760 2,197
Capital injection in an associate FIHIMERRERE IS HE
contracted but not provided for BEcH—HBEQRZ
in the consolidated financial B
statements 3,925 3,925

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR

293



294

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43

B BRRME

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as Lessor

The Group leases out properties and equipment
under an operating lease with rental receivable
monthly. The leases term range from 3 to 11 years.
The lease contracts do not contain residual value
of guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term, and contain
market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group as
lessor had contracted with tenants for the following
undiscounted lease payments receivable over the
non-cancellable periods:

43

KEHERE

AEEER/EAS

AEEBURERETALEYE LR
- FAREEE - HEHRSIEN
F-HESRTEERERNBEM
HERAEHERRRBEEENE
B WHAEABEATETEEEER
MER T EBEMSEEGRR -

RBEHR  AEEERLEETE SR
ﬁﬂ}f ER/’]EATTT@%HHFMQHXT LR
IR ERR

2022 2021

ol S —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FExn F=T

Within one year RE—F 4,021 2,557
In the second year RE—F 3,291 2,362
In the third year RE=F 2,812 2,137
In the fourth year REME 2,800 1,764
In the fifth year RERF 2,792 1,781
After five years FRFZIE 7,400 4,450

23,116 15,051
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e M |RME

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 44 FRBEAQARXS

The balances with the related parties are disclosed EREBERRZEHREREE VMR
in the consolidated statement of financial position R NBtEE25 « 27 - 28 - 33K BAWE
and notes 25, 27, 28, 33 and 34. Details of AEEREMBELS X FFBERE
transactions between the Group and other related N

parties are disclosed below.

During the year, the Group entered into the RER - AEBEEGHEENTGEARE
following trading transactions with related parties BB ENATEERS :

that are not members of the Group:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$’000
FEx TET

Sales to immediate holding company A & & A% A & &

Sales to fellow subsidiaries (note)

Sales to associates (hote)
Interest expense on lease to
a fellow subsidiary (note)
Interest income from immediate
holding company
Interest income from
a fellow subsidiary
Interest income from an associate
Transportation expense to
a fellow subsidiary

HEEm 106,915 65,705
mRRKBRARHEES R
(HtaE) 2,464 2,352
Mk & A RIS ' m (A aE) - 287
HK—RRMBRARMNHEE
FMEERRZL) 14 39
BEEERARFBRA
- 1,334
—RERKB R RF WA
- 357
e AWNEIV SN N - 352
L—RRMBRARZITER
=33 1,692 =

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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eI |RME

44

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Note:

The fellow subsidiaries are Pacific International Lines (China) Ltd.,
PIL Logistics (China) Co., Ltd., Pacific International Lines (H.K.)
Limited, Mariana Express Lines Pte. Ltd. and Strategic Times
Limited, in which PIL, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
also the immediate holding company of the Company, has
controlling interest.

The associates are the subsidiaries of Modex, including Modex
Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd. and Modex AS. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount included
transactions with these associates from 1 January 2021 up to
the date of completion for the disposal of Modex on 28 July
2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
renewed the lease agreement for the office in Shanghai with
a fellow subsidiary for 3 years. Except for short-term lease in
which the Group applied recognition exemption, the Group
has recognised an addition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of US$260,000 and US$260,000 at the date of lease
commencement, respectively. As at 31 December 2022, such
lease liabilities amounted to US$208,000 (2021: US$365,000).

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

44

EBREQRTARS ®)

Hiz -

Fl XK BBl B A FHE(FE)BR A - X
FEE(RE)ERAE] - X FMEEE)ERA
A + Mariana Express Lines Pte Ltd. X Strategic
Times Limited * X-FREEER A A — AR F] 2%
RIRE R EBEERINA] — B Z S 62 R

Ao
= o
Im

& 2\ Bl AModexmI B - 7] + B #EModex
Energy Rentals Singapore Pte. Ltd. X Modex
AS- B2 T - —F+ _HA=+—HIFE -
REEOEE —E - —F—H—HZ2=-F=-—14F
+ A =+ /A5 H EModex#) H B 2 55 1Lk B
ERNAIMR S -

R-IE-—F+-A=+—HIFEAN FTEH
H—KEAENE LI EFH LGN BEENHER
i BHISE o AN E B E AR R A9 57 B
ESh - REERIE AR AEBE BEREHELE
FIFE B &7 5l 51 7 260,000 it #1260,000
ETL BHE-_F-_—_F+_-_HA=4+—H %H
E B & /4208000%E T (=F = —4 : 3650005
JL) °

FTEEBAB RN

AEEEEREMTEEREAB 2R
B

2022 2021

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FET

Short-term employee benefits HHIBE TR 3,247 6,109
Post-employment benefits ZEE i tE A 70 508
3,317 6,617

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE KRR
45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERNTZ2ETEMBATIZF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15
a. General information of a. MBARIZz—MBHEER
subsidiaries
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 R _FR-_EBE-_—F+=
December 2022 and 2021 are set out below: A=+—8 ARQFZHERF
ZEBEIT

Name of subsidiaries

WEARZHE

Issued and fully

DY Terminal Ltd.
THEEERAA

Eng Kong Container & Warehousing Ltd.
KEEEEEARAA

Eng Kong Container Services Ltd.
KEERRBERAA

Huizhou Singamas Energy Equipment
Co., Ltd."
BB IRL BERATY

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
registration by the Company capital activities
BRTRMR
RY/EMeE  KARMEZRELA Rt/ BaRAE IERH
2022
—E-C
Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary  Provision of container
R HK$1,000000  storage and repair
LER servioes
100000087 REKEEEER
BERY
Hong Kong 73.3% 73.3% Ordinary ~ Investment holding
B HK$300,000 REER
300,000/
Hong Kong - - Ordinary  Provision of container
R Note &) HK$3,000,000  storage, drayage and
(Hita) LER repair services
30000008  REEREEE
HEREERS
PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$25,000,000  Manufacturing of dry
G 25,000,005 freight and specialised
containers
HEGERMR
GRS
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A AN
45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERATZTEMBLAT Z2E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities

BRARAR
i PR RY/EMbs  KORMEZRELH Rt/ BaRAE IERH

2022 2021
8= —EC-E

Leading Joy Limited” Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HKS$1 Property holding
Bk LRR1ET ESS]
Qidong Singamas Offshore Equipment PRC 100.0% 100.0% RMB20,000,000 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd." i ARE20,0000000  offshore containers
BRBEMEIREERAR" HEGIEER
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific Container PRC 71.2% 77.2% US$25,300,000  Manufacturing of dry
Co., Lid.f B 25,300,000%7C  freight and specialised
LEELATERERAR containers
HEGERMR
GRS
Shanghai Pacific International Container PRC 64.9% 64.9% US$26,000,000  Manufacturing of tank
Co., Ltd.* B 26,000,000 containers
HEATERERERAF" BiEER
Shanghai Reeferco Container Co., Ltd.* PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$22,000,000  Holding of investment
LEERRREBBRAR 4: 22,000,000%7 property
RERENR
Shanghai Singamas Container Integration PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000 Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd.* ﬁF 2,000,000%7C  specialised containers
HEBRENRBRRAT" HERNBERN
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A BN
45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERTZTEMBLAT Z2E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRIRAR
WEARER RY/EMbE  KARMEZRELH Rt/ BaRA IERH
2022 2021
—8-C —EC-E
Singamas Container Industry Co., Ltd. PRC 75.0% 75.0% US$5,100,000 Property holding
BRERIZARAR" i 5,100,000% ¢ VESSE
Singamas Depots Holdings Limited" Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary  Investment holding
iy 2o NG Bk HK$10,000 REER
LR%10,0005 7
Singamas Management Services Limited* British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Provision of
Islands 1,000%7T  management services
EBRAME REEERE
Singamas-Modex Limited Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary ~ Investment holding
BRZREARAA & HK$200,000 REER
LRk
200,000/ 7T
Singamas Logistics (Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* PRC 60.0% 60.0% US$5,780,000  Provision of container
BRI (ES)BRAR h 578000057  storage and repair
services
RESKMHER
BERY
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eI |RME

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

a. General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries registration
WEARER R/ A e
Singamas Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.*" PRC
BRORRB)ERAD" i
Singamas Terminals (China) Limited British Virgin
Islands

ZBRAHE

Singamas Terminals Holdings Limited” British Virgin
Islands

EBRANE

Singamas Terminals (HK) Limited British Virgin
Islands

EBRANE

Singamas Terminals (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
BRERER (R ERAT B
Superb Gain Holdings Limited* British Virgin
Islands

EBRAHE

45 AERFRZTEMB AT ZF

15 &)

a.

Issued and fully

MEQR .z —REER @

Proportion of paid share/
ownership interest held contributed Principal
by the Company capital activities
BRARAR
ARl 2 RELA R/ BERE IERH
2022 2021
8= —EC-E
100.0% 100.0% US$6,500,000  Provision of container
6,500,000%7  storage and repair
services
REERERER
BERH
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Investment holding
1,000% 7 RERR
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Investment holding
1000% 7 REBR
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Investment holding
1000% 7 REBR
100.0% 100.0% Ordinary Provision of
HK$5,000,000  mid-stream services
LaEk  RETRERRE
5,000,000 7T
100.0% 100.0% US$1,000 Property holding
1,000%7 VESE]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BN
45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERTZTEMBLAT Z2E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRIRAR
WEAFAH RY/EMbE  KARMEZRELH Rt/ BaRA IERH
2022 2021
—8-C “E--F
Taicang Modex Energy Engineering Ltd." PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,500,000 Manufacturing of
AREMBREIRERAR) G 250000057 offshore containers
BERTIEER
Teamwill International Limited” British Virgin 100.0% 100.0% US$1,000  Provision of container
Islands 1,000% 7T leasing business
EBRANE REESERREXH
Tianjin Singamas Container Co., Ltd.” PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$2,000,000  Provision of container
REBRERAR AR G 2,000,000% 7 storage, repar,
trucking services, and
serving as a freight
station
RESENRRE
e HER
SEURH
Well Key Limited* Hong Kong 100.0% 100.0% Ordinary HK$1 ~ Provision of human
AR ERAR R LERIBT  resource management
service
REANER
ERRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A AN
45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 45 ERATZTEMBLAT Z2E
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 15 (&)
(Continued)
a. General information of a. MEARZ—RHEER®)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of Proportion of paid share/
incorporation/  ownership interest held contributed Principal
Name of subsidiaries registration by the Company capital activities
BRARAR
WEARER RY/EMs  KRREZRELA R/ BERE IEER
2022 2021
—E-C —E--F
Wellmass Group Limited British Virgin 60.0% 60.0% US$10,000  Investment holding
Islands 10,000% 7T RERR
EBRUES

Xiamen Pacific Container Manufacturing PRC 100.0% 100.0% US$23,000,000  Manufacturing of dry

Co., Ltd." B 23,000,000%7C  freight and specialised

EMATERREERAR" containers

HEGERAR

HBERE

Yixing Singamas Metal Products PRC 95.0% 96.0% US$200,000 Manufacturing of

Co., Ltd.* ﬁF 200,000% 7T container parts

HEEReBHRERAR" HESRMRN

* Subsidiaries held directly by the Company * AREIEZEFEZ B A
g Equity joint venture established in the PRC in E RIZE %P R TE R B 7
accordance with relevant laws and regulations CRERAEELE
g Wholly owned foreign enterprise established in i RIZF BT % P R 4 E R BIAE 57
the PRC in accordance with relevant laws and CEINEHB T E

regulations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

a.

General information of
subsidiaries (Continued)

The principal place of operation of each
subsidiary is the same as the place of
incorporation/registration stated above,
except for those companies incorporated in
British Virgin Islands which are incorporated
for investment holding purpose.

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries
of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results and assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities outstanding at the end of the year.

Note:

a On 18 October 2021, the Group disposed the
entire equity interest in Eng Kong Container
Services Ltd. Please refer to note 38 for details.

e M |RME

45 QAR ZTEMBAR 2
\=XC)

a. MEBRAAzZ-—KRUEER@®@

BRI S BE 2 BE B AR ST AR R 4R
BEBARSN > EHMBRRIKE
Xz ERMERE FXXFE 2K
3B AR

ERFAINGRARRESRRY
rEEZBNREEREATE
MEEMBAR - ARFESRE
RASTRHEEMK B AR ZFES
SIEFEBAR -

BEAFEL - LR EANS
AREREEZ EHES -
Mt -

a RZZBZ—F+H+NH K&

B EXFERREER L AE
BEERHE o S AIE 2 BINIEE38 ©

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI |RME

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have

45 AERFRZTEMB AT ZF

15 &)

b. EEEXRFERBRRER
ZHEEEHEAZHBAT
=41

TRETASEHRREGERNIFER
BREDIFRERAZHBR

material non-controlling interests: AJRYFEE
Proportion of Profit (loss)
Place of ownership interests allocated to Accumulated
incorporation/  and voting rights held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary registration non-controlling interests interests interests
FERRREREEN B (58 2EE
WEARER R/ EMes  RERRRELA FERRRES Rt RRRRER
As at 31 December Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=B=t-H BE+-A=t-8H Rt=A=t+-8
2022 2021 2022 2021
CE-CF Eebdmiidll —E-—F bl
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000
TR TEL TEn e
Shanghai Baoshan Pacific PRC
Container Co., Ltd. i
FEELATERERAT 22.8% 22.8% 8,395 24,816 54,760 46,810
Shanghai Pacific International PRC
Container Co., Ltd. i
HERTEARREERAR 35.1% 35.1% 468 (3,227) 3,184 5,154
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controling interests
ABHERRRRER L
BRI FEEANBAR 5,107 5,000
63,051 56,973
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b.

Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect
of each of the Group’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

e BRI

45 QAR ZTEMBAR 2

\=XC)

b. EEEARFERBRRESR
ZIZEREZHBAT
=3 4€))

Shanghai
Baoshan Pacific
Container Co., Ltd.

ATER A SEETER BRI
B REm 2 FEERE ZWE
RAZHBERRE - THIEK
BRI R S AREEAREHEAZ
T o

Shanghai
Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd.

EERLATEEERAR LEATVEREEERAT

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= TE - —E-—F
US$000 US$000 US$’000 US$'000
S TEx TEr TEx
As at 31 December W+ZA=1+—H
Current assets MBEE 197,088 272,008 76,554 65,204
Non-current assets ERBEE 25,183 24,827 8,759 9,412
Current liabilities mEAE (56,779)|  (124,370) (21,237) (33,615)
Equity attributable to owners AREIRREM
of the Company 110,732 125,655 60,892 35,847
Non-controling interests IR R R i 54,760 46,810 3,184 5,154
Year ended 31 December B52+-A=1+—H
Revenue EER 350,945 525,846 59,639 37,504
Expenses BA (314,192)| (417,197  (58,307)|  (46,688)
Profit (loss) and total AEFERN (BB R
comprehensive income 2EME L)
(expense) for the year k| 36,753 108,649 1,332 (9,184)

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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eI |RME

45 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

b. Details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interest (Continued)

45 AERFRZTEMB AT ZF
\=XC)

b. EREAFEZERRRERS
ZHEEERRT BT
=3 1E))

Shanghai
Baoshan Pacific
Container Co., Ltd.

Shanghai
Pacific International
Container Co., Ltd.

EERLATERERAR LEATVEREEERAT

2022 2021 2022 2021
TECCE Pubdnbll — T Bl
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T£n TET TER TET
Year ended 31 December HE+ZA=1—H
Profit (loss) and total AR BB EGR R
comprehensive income (BR) k2ERE
(expense) attributable to ()@
owners of the Company 28,358 83,833 864 (5,957
Profit (loss) and total IR R n
comprehensive income R T (B8 &
(expense) attributable to 2EMEF )
non-controlling interests k] 8,395 24,816 468 (3,227)
Profit (loss) and total KEZRMEE) &
comprehensive income FEkE )
(expense) for the year ek 36,753 108,649 1,332 (9,184)
Net cash (used in) from LRI FE
operating activities Be 58 (14,460) 71,992 14,199 (3,659)
Net cash used in REEBDHMFERE
investing activities FE (2,661) (8,778) (78) (8,600)
Net cash from (used in) BEEEME AR
financing activities ReFE 63 1,052 (13,422 11,952
Net cash (outflow) inflow FRE(RE)RA (17,058) 64,266 699 (307)
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B BRRME

46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46 ZAATZHBMRAKRERE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2022 2021
=== —E -
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R REE 67 104
Investments in subsidiaries Wﬁ% NElZIE 157,113 163,224
Investments in associates Nii—/NE] ZTX & 122 122
Amounts due from subsidiaries F UGB B 106,088 61,542
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BEARE ﬁ.ﬁrkﬁﬁﬂiﬁ
Was o Em TR 11,108 9,943
Other receivables H th fE WK IE 4,840 15,485
279,338 250,420
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables  F8 1< Kz H i & I zk 18 10,089 22,141
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRmT A - 202
Cash and deposits with banks Re RIBITHER 237,368 234,152
247,457 256,495
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EFtE A RHEMEMNERER 4,926 5,648
Amounts due to subsidiaries F’EH iy =MNGIE S 140,342 63,279
Amount due to immediate holding B EEZERA T/TAIE
company 382 327
Amounts due to associates JETEE & N B FRIE 11 123
145,661 69,377
Net current assets REBEEZFE 101,796 187,118
Total assets less current liabilities EEAFERMABERE 381,134 437,538

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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REMBRRME
46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46 AQFzHBRREERER
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (&
COMPANY (Continued)
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$’000
FTER FET
Capital and reserves BEXRR#E
Share capital & A 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits 2R A 104,444 162,013
Other reserves H b fEE 7,687 6,639
380,280 436,801
Non-current liability FREEE
Deferred tax liability EERIERE 854 737
381,134 437,538
The Company’s statement of financial position was KA ZHBERARER AT EED
approved and authorised for issue by the board of R-_ZE-—=—F=—A+HBHERERE
directors on 15 March 2023 and are signed on its & WhH T AAFBEEREER
behalf by: =
Teo Siong Seng Chung Pui King, Rebecca
RIAE i& fAl IR
Director Director
= EF
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

e M |RME

46 ARTFZHBMRRRERR

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (%)
COMPANY (Continued)
Investment
Movement in the revaluation Accumulated
Company’s reserves reserve profits Total
AR ZEREE REEMHERE L HE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Fxr Fxr S
At 1 January 2021 W-_E-—-F—H—H 6,007 154,361 161,268
Profit for the year TERHM - 29,418 29,418
Fair value loss on equity instrument AR BEFALMLEZE
at FVTOCI, net of tax effect Wz R T AGIRH
BB inBEEE (268) - (268)
Total comprehensive (expense) FAREH kRER
income for the year (268) 29,418 29,150
Dividend paid to owners IRARARRRE
of the Company - (21,766) (21,766)
At 31 December 2021 RZT_—F
+-A=+-H 6,639 162,013 168,652
Profit for the year KERE R - 68,983 68,983
Fair value gain on equity instrument R AR BEFAEM2E
at FVTOCI, net of tax effect Wz ST AGIRH
B2 inBEKR 1,048 - 1,048
Total comprehensive income ERRPENEESE
for the year 1,048 68,983 70,031
Share repurchased and cancelled M7 B R AU - (2,998) (2,958)
Dividend paid to owners IHARFARERS
of the Company - (123,594) (123,594)
At 31 December 2022 gt St -2
+ZA=+-H 7,687 104,444 112,131

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31
December 2022, calculated under section 297 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounting
to US$104,444,000 (2021: US$162,013,000).

BRIBEBEB N HEME207I1KTE - AR
AN _E-__F+_A=+—HA#
DR 2 FEE B104,444,000% T (Z 2 =
—4F 1 162,013,000%7T) °

ZEICEER o BRWEBELEXERAR
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFUBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BEZ+t-A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020 2019 2018
TR ZTZTF —T-NF ZT-N\F
% % % %
Sales Mix HEAS
(as a percentage (HERE
of sales) ERvidi43p)
Manufacturing: BUEERK
Dry freight containers #5548 78 88 68 64 78
Refrigerated containers /2 REEFE - - - 13 6
Tank containers e 8 3 6 5 4
US domestic EE Ak
containers SEM - - - 3 6
Other specialised Hth ¥ 7
containers and SRMER
container parts SRR 10 6 16 11 4
96 97 90 96 98
Logistics services W AR 4 3 10 4 2
Total wmz 100 100 100 100 100

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2022



Five Year Financial Summary

LEHMBERE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- bkl — T —F —T-TF —T-NF ZT-)N\F
US$’000 US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn FET FTEx FTEx FTEx
Revenue R 775,983 | 1,151,764 274,305 712,209 1,807,819
Profit (loss) from & (B 18)
operations 86,487 245,463 (9,337) (95,960) 35,031
Finance costs S E R (366) (1,083) (799) (14,515) (18,549)
Investment income REBA 8,276 5,738 7,381 9,629 7,515
Fair value (loss) gain TEEMIAL
on derivative financial NREE
instruments (B8)t= (5,686) 583 109 (382) 47
Gain on disposal of HERBRRZ
subsidiaries Wiz - 412 8,457 7,771 65,604
Gain from derecognition 4% |- R 1 $4
of financial assets AT EH
measured at TREBEMB
amortised cost Wz - 27,001 - - -
Share of results of i)k /NCI
associates S 1,349 761 1,651 (829) (2,512)
Share of results of joint ~ EIRAE ¥
ventures Ed (135) 196 408 127 37
Profit (loss) before BRBEAT S A (B518)
taxation 89,925 279,071 7,870 (94,159) 87,173
Income tax expense PriSHiIE (33,360) (70,608) (3,120) (16,638) (13,791)
Profit (loss) for the year AN & & F (E518) 56,565 208,465 4,750 (110,797) 73,382
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company AN A% 5 46,340 186,802 4576 (110,230) 72,252
Non-controlling interests ~ JF#% % A% SR i 25 10,225 21,663 174 (567) 1,130
56,565 208,465 4,750 (110,797) 73,382
Earnings (loss) BRER (FB)
per share
Basic AR US1.92 US7.73 US0.19 US(4.56) US2.99
cents E1l | cents Efll  centEl  cents Efll  cents El
Diluted g N/A N/A US0.19 US(4.56) US2.99
FEH @A centE{l  cents Ell  cents 1l

Y —

—FE-=

FHEH o BWEBRERBRAR
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBERE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- St Wl T —F —T-TF —T-HF —T)\F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn F=r FTEx FTEx FTEx
Assets and Liabilites ZERAE
Total assets mEE 812,253 994,002 657,349 673,412 1,399,983
Total liabilities BaE (153,376)| (260,757)  (123,663)  (110,705)  (704,204)
Net assets FEE 658,877 733,245 533,686 562,707 695,779
Equity E&
Equity attributable RARIRREN
to owners of Em
the Company 595,826 676,272 497,592 525,810 656,697
Non-controlling interests ~ F#22 % A% SR 25 63,051 56,973 36,094 36,897 39,082
Total equity R 658,877 733,245 533,686 562,707 695,779
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BMEEEXARAE
SINGAMAS CONTAINER HOLDINGS LIMITED

19/F, SUP Tower, 75-83 King's Road, Hong Kong
BB EEE75-83RHA HIRAE 1918

Tel E5 1(852) 2598 7831

Fax§E  :(852) 2598 7847

E-mail BE : info@singamas.com

Website #8141t : http://www.singamas.com




	Cover
	Contents
	Singamas Operations
	Corporate Profile
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Frequently Asked Questions
	Directors and Senior Management Profile
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover



